
 
 

June 05, 2023                                                                           - 1 -                                                                               2:20 PM 

A G E N D A  •  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 5, 2023 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
City Council Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or General 
Services Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 
 
The Clovis City Council meetings are open to the public at the physical address listed above. There 
are numerous ways to participate in the City Council meetings: you are able to attend in person; you 
may submit written comments as described below; you may participate by calling in by phone (see 
“Verbal Comments” below); and you may view the meeting which is webcast and accessed at 
www.cityofclovis.com/agendas. 
 

Written Comments 
 

 Members of the public are encouraged to submit written comments at: 
www.cityofclovis.com/agendas at least two (2) hours before the meeting (4:00 p.m.).  You 
will be prompted to provide:  

 

 Council Meeting Date 
 Item Number 
 Name 
 Email 
 Comment  

 

 Please submit a separate form for each item you are commenting on. 
 

 A copy of your written comment will be provided to the City Council noting the item number.  
If you wish to make a verbal comment, please see instructions below. 

 

 Please be aware that any written comments received that do not specify a particular agenda 
item will be marked for the general public comment portion of the agenda. 

 
 If a written comment is received after 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting, efforts will be 

made to provide the comment to the City Council during the meeting.  However, staff cannot 
guarantee that written comments received after 4:00 p.m. will be provided to City Council 
during the meeting.  All written comments received prior to the end of the meeting will be 
made part of the record of proceedings. 

 

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

1

http://www.cityofclovis.com/agendas
http://www.cityofclovis.com/agendas
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


June 05, 2023                                                                           - 2 -                                                                               2:20 PM 

Verbal Comments 
 

 If you wish to speak to the Council on an item by telephone, you should contact the City 
Clerk at (559) 324-2060 no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 

 
 You will be asked to provide your name, phone number, and your email. You will be emailed 

instructions to log into Webex to participate in the meeting.  Staff recommends participants 
log into the Webex at 5:30 p.m. the day of the meeting to perform an audio and mic check. 

 
 All callers will be placed on mute, and at the appropriate time for your comment your 

microphone will be unmuted. 
 

 In order for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 
minutes per topic 

 
Webex Participation 
 

 Reasonable efforts will be made to allow written and verbal comment from a participant 
communicating with the host of the virtual meeting.  To do so, a participant will need to chat 
with the host and request to make a written or verbal comment.  The host will make 
reasonable efforts to make written and verbal comments available to the City Council.  Due 
to the new untested format of these meetings, the City cannot guarantee that these written 
and verbal comments initiated via chat will occur. Participants wanting to make a verbal 
comment via call will need to ensure that they accessed the WebEx meeting with audio and 
microphone transmission capabilities.   

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
FLAG SALUTE - Councilmember Bessinger 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 
 

1. Presentation of Proclamation honoring Fire Chief John Binaski upon his retirement and 
commending him for his overall 32 years of fire service and 10 years of service to the 
Clovis Community.  

 
2. Presentation of Proclamation honoring City Engineer Mike Harrison upon his 

retirement and commending him for 39 years of service to the Clovis Community.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the City 
Council on any matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the Agenda.  In order 
for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes per 
topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the City 
Manager’s office and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 
 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - With respect to the approval of resolutions and ordinances, 
the reading of the title shall be deemed a motion to waive a reading of the complete resolution 
or ordinance and unless there is a request by a Councilmember that the resolution or ordinance be 

2



June 05, 2023                                                                           - 3 -                                                                               2:20 PM 

read in full, further reading of the resolution or ordinance shall be deemed waived by unanimous 
consent of the Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR - Items considered routine in nature are to be placed upon the Consent 
Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as one item unless a 
Councilmember requests individual consideration.  A Councilmember’s vote in favor of the Consent 
Calendar is considered and recorded as a separate affirmative vote in favor of each action 
listed.  Motions in favor of adoption of the Consent Calendar are deemed to include a motion to 
waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution on the Consent Calendar.  For adoption of 
ordinances, only those that have received a unanimous vote upon introduction are considered 
Consent items. 
 

3. Administration - Approval - Minutes from the May 8, 2023, Council Meeting. 
4. Administration - Adopt - Ord. 23-03, R2023-003, A request to establish prezoning 

classifications for approximately 333 acres of property and to modify prezoning 
classifications on approximately 35 acres within the overall 500-acre project area, 
located within the area generally bound by Shepherd Avenue on the south, Willow 
Avenue on the west, the Enterprise Canal on the north and the Peach Avenue 
alignment on the east.  City of Clovis, applicant. (Vote: 5-0) 

5. Administration - Receive and File – Economic Development Corporation Serving 
Fresno County Quarterly Report, January - March 2023. 

6. Administration - Receive and File – Business Organization of Old Town (BOOT) Third 
Quarter Report, January through March 2023. 

7. Administration - Approval – Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with 
Pro Ag Management, Inc. on the lease of 1625 Shaw Ave., Suite 101, for $116,000 
per year. 

8. Administration – Approval – Waive Formal Bidding Requirements and Authorize a 
Service Contract with The Lew Edwards Group to Conduct Polling and Feasibility 
Analysis of Revenue Options for $49,400.   

9. Finance – Receive and File – Investment Report for the Month of February 2023. 
10. Finance – Receive and File – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of February 2023. 
11. General Services – Approval - Claim Rejection of the General Liability Claim on behalf 

of Phorum Sheth.  
12. Planning and Development Services – Approval – Final Acceptance for Final Map for 

Tract 6367, located at southeast area of Armstrong Avenue and Nees Avenue 
(Gleneagles Homes, a California Corp DBA Gary McDonald Homes, a California 
corporation). 

13. Planning and Development Services – Approval – Bid Award for CIP 19-11 Bullard 
Avenue Rehabilitation; and authorize the City Manager to execute the contract on 
behalf of the City with Dave Christian Construction Company in the amount of 
$761,162.25. 

14. Police - Approval – Res. 23-___, Authorizing the Police Chief and the Police 
Department to Execute an MOU and Grant Cooperative Agreement between 
MARJAREE MASON CENTER, INC., a California nonprofit corporation (MMC), and 
Approval - Res. 23-___, Amending the Police Department Budget to reflect the award 
of $25,000. 

15. Public Utilities – Approval – Award Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreements for Hauling 
of Construction and Demolition Debris, and Update the City’s Approved Hauler List. 

3



June 05, 2023                                                                           - 4 -                                                                               2:20 PM 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - A public hearing is an open consideration within a regular or special meeting 
of the City Council, for which special notice has been given and may be required.  When a public 
hearing is continued, noticing of the adjourned item is required as per Government Code 54955.1. 
 

16. Consider Introduction – Ord. 23-__ An ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Clovis adding Chapter 4.14 to Title 4 of the Clovis Municipal Code prohibiting 
spectators at vehicle sideshows in the City of Clovis.  
 
Staff: Iri Guerra, Police Lieutenant 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

17. Consider Approval – Res. 23-___, A resolution revising the Master Development Fee 
Schedule and Providing a Description of Fees to be Requested for County Adoption. 
(Continued from the May 8, 2023, meeting.) 
 
Staff: Sean Smith, Supervising Civil Engineer 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

18. Consider Approval - Res. 23-___, 2023-2024 City of Clovis Annual Budget, Five Year 
Capital Improvement Program, and Information regarding the Clovis Successor 
Agency. (Continued from the May 15, 2023, meeting) 
 
Staff: John Holt, City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

COUNCIL ITEMS 
 

19. Consider Approval – Change of Council Meeting Schedule. 
 

Staff: John Holt, City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
CLOSED SESSION - A “closed door” (not public) City Council meeting, allowed by State law, for 
consideration of pending legal matters and certain matters related to personnel and real estate 
transactions. 
 

20. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Deciding whether to initiate litigation 
One potential case 
 

21. Government Code Section 54957 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EVALUATION 
Title:  City Manager 
 

4



June 05, 2023                                                                           - 5 -                                                                               2:20 PM 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
Regular City Council Meetings are held at 6:00 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are future 
meeting dates: 
 
June 12, 2023 (Mon.) (To be Cancelled) 
June 19, 2023 (Mon.) 
July 3, 2023 (Mon.) (To be Cancelled) 
July 10, 2023 (Mon.) 
July 11 (Tue.) - Aug. 6 (Mon.) Summer Recess 
August 7, 2023 (Mon.) 
August 14, 2023 (Mon.) 
August 21, 2023 (Mon.) 
 
 

5



6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



7

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

  CLOVIS  CITY  COUNCIL  MEETING 
 
 
May 8, 2023       6:00 P.M.         Council Chamber 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Ashbeck at 6:01 p.m. 
Flag Salute led by Councilmember Pearce 
 
Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers Basgall, Bessinger, Mouanoutoua, Pearce 

Mayor Ashbeck 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – 6:02 
 

Zoie McColm, resident, shared concerns regarding development impact fees  

 

CONSENT CALENDAR – 6:06 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bessinger, seconded by Councilmember Basgall, that the items on the 
Consent Calendar be approved. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
1.  Administration – Approved – Updated Program Guidelines for Clovis’ Home Rehabilitation 

Grant Program.  
2. General Services - Approved – Award of Workers’ Compensation Claims Administration 

Services Contract to Acclamation Insurance Management Services, Incorporated in the 
amount of $870,552 over the next three (3) years.  

3. General Services - Approved – Res. 23-32, Authorizing Amendments to the City’s 
Classification and Compensation Plans to Adopt the Finance Manager Classification with 
a Salary Range of $10,635 to $12,927 per month, and Approved – Res. 23-33, Amending 
the City’s FY 22-23 Position Allocation Plan. 

4. General Services – Approved - Claim Rejection of the General Liability Claim of Edgar 
Lawson, Jr. 

5. General Services – Approved - Claim Rejection of the General Liability Claim on behalf of 
Christian Perez. 

6. Public Utilities – Approved – Final Acceptance for SPR 1987-048A, 79 N. Sunnyside 
Avenue Site Improvements. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  – 6:07 

 
6:07 ITEM 7 - APPROVED – RES. 23-36, ADOPTION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 2023-2024 

ANNUAL ACTION PLAN FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT FUNDS. 
 

Paul Williams, Resident, spoke in support of the CDBG program and various services 
provided by the City.  

 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Motion for approval by Councilmember Bessinger, seconded by Councilmember 
Mouanoutoua. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

6:37 ITEM 8 – APPROVED – UPDATE ON COMMUNITY SERVICES FEE POLICY. 
 

Motion to approve the update on the Community Services Fee Policy with the condition that 
staff return to the City Council approval before implementing changes and to engage the 
seniors for feedback. Motion for approval by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, seconded by 
Councilmember Bessinger. Motion carried 4-1, with Mayor Ashbeck voting no.  

 

7:16 ITEM 9 - CONSIDER ITEMS ASSOCIATED WITH VARIOUS FEES UNDER THE 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND FIND THAT THE 
PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW UNDER SECTION 
15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT GUIDELINES. 
CITY OF CLOVIS, APPLICANT. 
 

9A. APPROVED - RES. 23-34, A REQUEST TO APPROVE A RESOLUTION AMENDING 
PLAN CHECK, INSPECTION SERVICES, ENCROACHMENT PERMITS, AND 
COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAM RATES. 

 

Motion for approval by Councilmember Basgall, seconded by Councilmember Bessinger. 
Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

9B. APPROVED - RES. 23-35, A REQUEST TO APPROVE THE 2023 CITY OF CLOVIS 
PLANNING DIVISION FEE SCHEDULE.   

 

Motion for approval by Councilmember Bessinger, seconded by Councilmember Basgall. 
Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

9C. APPROVED INTRODUCTION - ORD. 23-02, A REQUEST TO APPROVE AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS AMENDING SECTION 
8.1.01.1 OF CHAPTER 8.1 OF TITLE 8 RELATING TO AMENDMENTS TO UNIFORM 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE TO ADD PHOTOVOLTAIC AND ENERGY STORAGE 
SYSTEMS FEE TABLE S-1. 

 

Motion for approval by Councilmember Bessinger, seconded by Councilmember 
Mouanoutoua. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

7:26 ITEM 10 - CONTINUED – RES. 23-XX, A RESOLUTION REVISING THE MASTER 
DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE AND PROVIDING A DESCRIPTION OF FEES TO BE 
REQUESTED FOR COUNTY ADOPTION. 
 

Sayre Miller, shared concerns regarding water and the fees charged to property owners 
within the Fresno Irrigation District. 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Mike Prandini, proposed for the City Council to approve the proposal submitted by the BIA 
for a 4.6% increase (CCI).  

Arakel Arisian, spoke in support of the BIA’s proposal and encouraged the City to further 
research and evaluate other options for development impact fees. 

 

Darius Assemi, spoke in support evaluating more options for development impact fees and 
possibly conducting a workshop.  

 

Drew Phelps, spoke in support evaluating more options for development impact fees. 

 

Motion to continue this item to a date uncertain to review all development impact fees 
except for the water fee. Motion by Councilmember Bessinger, seconded by 
Councilmember Pearce. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 

9:32 ITEM 11 - APPROVED – RES. 23-37, A RESOLUTION REVISING THE MASTER 
DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE AND PROVIDING A DESCRIPTION OF FEES TO BE 
REQUESTED FOR COUNTY ADOPTION. 

 
• 2395 BEVERLY AVENUE, CLOVIS, CA 93611, APN NO.: 551-211-23 
• 607 COVENTRY AVENUE, CLOVIS, CA 93611, APN NO.: 554-105-01 
• 2951 PURVIS AVENUE, CLOVIS, CA 93611, APN NO.: 554-073-05S 
• 101 N. POLLASKY AVENUE, CLOVIS, CA 93612, APN NO.: 491-133-01 
• 1495 FOURTH STREET, CLOVIS, CA 93612, APN NO.: 491-191-10 
• 982 ROSEBROOK DRIVE, CLOVIS, CA 93612, APN NO.: 498-082-08 
• 3155 WINERY AVENUE, CLOVIS, CA 93612, APN NO.: 430-491-03 
• 1419 CHENNAULT AVENUE, CLOVIS, CA 93611, APN NO.: 563-101-02 
• 339 W. ASHCROFT AVENUE, CLOVIS, CA 93612, APN NO.: 499-322-17 
• 660 BARSTOW AVENUE, CLOVIS, CA 93612, APN NO.: 497-150-32 

 
Alex Renteria, Representing Janie Dominguez, Requested for the City Council to dismiss 
the lien on 339 W. Ashcroft as the property has been restored.  

 

Brady Steward, Requested for the City Council to dismiss the lien on 2951 Purvis.  

 

Motion for approval, except 339 W. Ashcroft, by Councilmember Basgall, seconded by 
Councilmember Bessinger. Motion carried 4-1 with Councilmember Mouanoutoua voting 
no.  

 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS – 10:01 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS – 10:01 
 

 

 

10

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

CLOSED SESSION – 10:14 
 

ITEM 12 - GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY 
NEGOTIATOR PROPERTY: 1625 SHAW AVENUE, #101, CLOVIS, CA AGENCY 
NEGOTIATOR(S): ANDY HAUSSLER, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER; JOHN HOLT, CITY 
MANAGER NEGOTIATING PARTY: PRO AG MANAGEMENT, INC. & JAMISON FAMILY 
COMMUNITY PROPERTY TRUST UNDER NEGOTIATION: PRICE AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 

 

ITEM 13 - GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY 
NEGOTIATOR PROPERTY: 1011 FIFTH STREET, CLOVIS, CA AGENCY NEGOTIATOR(S): 
ANDY HAUSSLER, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER; JOHN HOLT, CITY MANAGER 
NEGOTIATING PARTY: JUDICIAL COUNCIL OF CALIFORNIA UNDER NEGOTIATION: PRICE 
AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 

 

ITEM 14 - GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(D)(1) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL 
COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION CASE NAME: DESIREE MARTINEZ V. CITY OF CLOVIS, 
ET AL., CASE NO. F082914 

 

No action was taken by the City Council during the closed session.  

 

Mayor Ashbeck adjourned the meeting of the Council to May 15, 2023  
 

Meeting adjourned:  10:38  p.m. 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor      City Clerk 

11

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Administration - Adopt - Ord. 23-03, R2023-003, A request to establish 
prezoning classifications for approximately 333 acres of property and to 
modify prezoning classifications on approximately 35 acres within the 
overall 500-acre project area, located within the area generally bound by 
Shepherd Avenue on the south, Willow Avenue on the west, the 
Enterprise Canal on the north and the Peach Avenue alignment on the 
east.  City of Clovis, applicant. (Vote: 5-0) 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

 
This item was approved for introduction on May 15, 2023, with a unanimous vote. 
 
Please direct questions to the City Manager’s office at 559-324-2060. 

12

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration  

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Administration - Receive and File – Economic Development Corporation 
Serving Fresno County Quarterly Report, January - March 2023. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. EDC Third Quarter Report, January 1 – March 31, 2023 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the City of Clovis receive and file the Third Quarter Report, January - March 2023, from the 
Economic Development Corporation Serving Fresno County. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Economic Development Corporation serving Fresno County (EDC) has submitted their Third 
Quarter Report of activities for the City Council to receive and file, as required per the 2022-
2023 Agreement with the City. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the summer of 2022, the City of Clovis and the EDC entered into a contract for the 2022-2023 
fiscal year to provide regional marketing and business services to Clovis businesses.  The 
contract provides for $40,000 in baseline funding and provides $10,000 for a medical attraction 
study implementation plan to be completed.  This allows Clovis to be part of a regional effort in 
attracting commercial and industrial businesses to Clovis. Attached is a report detailing the 
progress of their activities to provide information to industrial/commercial representatives not 
currently located in Clovis for recruiting purposes, and to continue to assist existing Clovis 
businesses with informational and/or technical assistance to access statewide business support 
programs.    
 
 
 

13

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



Highlights of the EDC quarterly report include: 
 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The City will forward the third quarter installment payment to EDC.  The funds were budgeted in 
the 2022-2023 fiscal year budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The attached report meets the requirement established in the 2022-2023 Agreement between 
the EDC and the City of Clovis. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will file the report. 
 
Prepared by:   Chad McCollum, Economic Development, Housing and Communications Director 
 
Reviewed by:  City Manager AH 

 

14

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



03/31/2023

Terms

City of Clovis
ATTN:Mr. Andrew Haussler
1033 5th Street
Clovis, CA  93612

Date:
9591Inv. No.:
517Account No.:

Fresno County EDC
1060 Fulton St., 4th Floor
Fresno, CA  93721

Remit To:

Membership Level Contact

INVOICE
1060 Fulton Street, 4th Floor
Fresno, CA 93721
(559) 476-2500

Description Total

DIAMOND 1 YearMr. Andrew Haussler

City of Clovis Q3  January - March 2023 $12,500.00

$12,500.00Balance Due:

$0.00Paid/Credited:
$12,500.00Total:

Attachment 1 15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



City of Clovis 

Quarterly Activity Report 
Quarter 3 

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

January 1, 2023 – March 31, 2023 

Lee Ann Eager President/CEO 

Sherry Neil Chief Operating Officer 

Paul Thorn Controller 

Will Oliver VP of Business Services 

Julian Ramos Client Services Manager 

Chris Zeitz Director of Special Projects 

Spencer Bremer Research Analyst 

Jackie Cuevas Business Expansion and Retention Coordinator 

Danielle Dixon-Oglesby Workforce Training Coordinator 

Darian Galindo Business Retention Specialist 

Cody Laird Economic Development Specialist 

Marcella Lara Business Retention Specialist 

Andrea Lee Economic Development Specialist 

Tiffany Louk Business Attraction Specialist 

Kaila Lugo Office Administrator 

Merritt Pacini Executive Assistant to the CEO 

Miguel Ruelas Business Attraction Specialist 

Mai See Vang Program Coordinator 

Malee Vang Social Care Coordinator 

Ross Williams Research Analyst 

16

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

City of Clovis 
Quarterly Activity Report 

 
This report summarizes the agreement requirements between the City of Clovis and the Fresno 

County Economic Development Corporation (EDC). 

Division Mission 

To market Fresno County as the premier location for business prosperity. 

Fresno County EDC Services 

The Economic Development Corporation serving Fresno County is a nonprofit organization 

established to market Fresno County as the premier location for business prosperity. We 

facilitate site selection for new businesses within Fresno County, and assist in the 

retention and expansion of businesses through our alliance with collaborative partners 

and resources.  

The EDC agrees to the following services:  

1. Provide information to the industrial and office representatives not located in 

the City of Clovis for recruiting new businesses and industries; 

2. Assist in the development of marketing materials to attract new investments, 

commercial and industrial brokers, developers, and site selectors. Assist in 

utilizing online marketing to advance economic and community development 

efforts;  

3. Assist existing businesses and industries that contact the EDC with 

information and technical assistance through the BEAR Action Network; 

4. Work to foster a closer working relationship with local business associations 

to enhance the EDC services provided to Clovis area employers; 

5. Continue acting in a leadership role in promotion of high-speed rail and 

promote the Clovis area for related development; 

6. Inform Clovis of legislation important to the economic and community 

development of the region and act on their behalf; 

7. Assist in identifying economic development projects on the City’s behalf for 

the inclusion in the County of Fresno’s Comprehensive Economic 

Development Strategy (CEDS) for possible grant funding; and 

8. Provide administrative staffing at all Executive Committee, Board, and related 

events. 

 

17

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

Q3 Snapshot 

The EDC team conducts outreach marketing business expansion and retention services by: 

• Providing an operational analysis to evaluate the health of the business. This tool offers 

us a thorough understanding of the appropriate referrals or resources needed for 

business growth or retention; 

• Connecting businesses to labor subsidy programs; 

• Providing education on federal/state/local tax Incentives; and 

• Providing referrals and information on financing assistance. 

 

Stemming from direct outreach, workshops, one-on-one meetings, and marketing efforts, the areas 
of interest and number of referrals generated are reflected below: 

  Q3 FY23 FY23 YTD 

Businesses Served   30 53 
Business Referrals  1 27 

 

Type Goal Q3 FY22-23 Completion 

Top 50 Business List 1 1 1 100% 

Economic Profile Update 1 1 1 100% 

Comparative Healthcare Analysis Enhancement 1 1 1 100% 

Broker Events 2 0 0 - 

New Business Leads 40 12 41 100% 

Targeted Healthcare Engagements 20 30 30 100% 

 

Clients and Businesses Served 

A Mind Above, A Professional Psychology 
Corporation 
Accounting America 
AMA Management, Inc. 
Anjaleoni Enterprises Inc 
Bob Warner Insurance Agency 
Cabinet Connection 
CALBEC Group 
Catuira Home 2 
Clovis Chamber of Commerce 
Clovis Crossfire Soccer League 
Clovis Insurance Agency 
Comfort Suites 
Denny's #9549 
Facelogic Spa 
Gilbert K. Moran, M.D. F.A.C.O.G. INC. 

High Performance Academy 
Hilton Garden Inn Clovis 
Huckleberry's 
HuckleBerry's Clovis 
Jackson Young Drywall 
Kuppa Joy - Clovis 
La Quinta Inn & Suites by Wyndham Clovis 
Michael Angelo Custom Painting Inc 
Philip Call State Farm Insurance Agent 
Sandys Country Junction 
SMS Services Inc. 
The 500 Club Casino 
The Body Building 
Tri-Valley Plastering, Inc 
United States Postal Service

18

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

City of Clovis Economic Snapshot 

Quarter 3, FY22-23 
Industrial, Office, and Retail Vacancy 
 
This quarter in the City of Clovis, the industrial vacancy rate 
increased to 0.2% from zero, the office vacancy rate decreased 
from 5.7% to 3.0%, and the retail vacancy rate dropped from 
4.7% to 4.3%.  

 
  
 

 
 

Source: CoStar.com 

February 2023 Unemployment Rates 
The preliminary unemployment rate in Clovis was 3.8% in 

February 2023, an increase from 3.3% in November 2022. This 

compares with a non-seasonally adjusted unemployment rate 

of 4.8% for California and 3.6% for the nation during the same 

period. 

Source: State of California Employment Development Department 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Q3 FY22-23 Industrial Office Retail 

Fresno County 2.4% 8.7% 4.0% 

City of Clovis 0.2% 3.0% 4.3% 

Area Labor Force Unemployment Rate 

Fresno County                                                466,800 8.1% 

City of Clovis 58,500 3.8% 

19

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

Business Attraction and Expansion Activity 

During the third quarter, the EDC generated 15 new business leads, and responded to 4 requests for 
information. 

New Leads 

MONTH 
CLIENT 

NUMBER 
SOURCE INDUSTRY JOBS 

SITE 
REQUIREMENTS 

PARTICIPATING 
CITIES 

JANUARY 

230105A1 
Valley Ventures 

Outreach 
Computer 
Software 

TBD TBD Fresno 

230117A2 
Valley Ventures 

Outreach 
AgTech TBD TBD All 

230120A1 
Valley Ventures 

Outreach 
Water 

Purification 
TBD TBD All 

230124A1 Team CA 
Solar 

Manufacturing 
150 

150,000-250,000 
SF 

16 Loading Docks 
30’ Clearance 

All 

230126A1 
Valley Ventures 

Outreach 
AgTech 5 TBD All 

230130A1 Referral 
Mineral Wool 

Manufacturing 
TBD 

2,000 SF  
 20ft ceiling height 

All 

FEBRUARY 
 

PROJECT 
MAYFLOWER 

GO-Biz Lead 
Electrical 

Manufacturing 
218 

25 AC Industrial 
45’ Clearance 

All 

PROJECT 
KALMEX 

GO-Biz Lead 
Hemp Product 

Manufacturing 
110 TBD All 

230210A1 Direct Lead Biotechnology 10 TBD East Side 

230213A1 Direct Lead 
Marketing and 

Advertising 
15 

2,000 – 5,000 SF  
Office 

All 

MARCH 
 

230310 Direct/Company Wholesale 10+ 
50,000 SF Light 

Industrial 
All 

230309 Direct/Company 
Electric Vehicle 
Repair/Delivery 

10 15,000 SF All 

230316A1 - 
PROJECT 2306 

CCVEDC Lead 

Lithium-Ion 

Battery 

Manufacturing 

TBD 
50,000 - 200,000 

SF 
All 

PROJECT 
EAGLE 

GO-Biz Lead 

Lithium-Ion 

Battery 

Manufacturing 

266 TBD All 

PROJECT 52 GO-Biz Lead 
Defense 

Contractor 
TBD TBD All 

20

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

Requests For Information 

MONTH 
CLIENT 

NUMBER 
SOURCE INDUSTRY DETAILS 

JANUARY 
 

RFI 230118 
Local Partner 

Lead 
Management 

Consulting 
Food processor data management company 
seeking assistance in establishing client base. 

RFI 
230118A1 

Real Estate 
Agent/Broker 

Real Estate 
Client is seeking assistance on next steps 

regarding Opportunity Zone property. 

RFI 230110 
Local Partner 

Lead 
B2B 

Organizing B2B meetings during delegation's visit 
April 2023. 

FEBRUARY RFI 230222 City Lead Waste Processing 

Client designs and operates Anaerobic Digesters 
for use in organic waste disposal. Currently 

seeking feedstock partners and location within 
Fresno. 

 
  

21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

Partnership with Department of Social Services 

The EDC has been contracted to assist the Fresno County Department of Social Services in 
marketing the New Employment Opportunities (NEO) program, Ready2Hire, and identify 
prospective employers to hire from the pool of eligible NEO job seekers.   

NEW EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES (NEO) 2022-2023 To be completed by 9/30/2023 

METRIC Actual Contract Goal 
PARTICIPATING BUSINESSES 86 150 

JOB PLACEMENTS  82 200 

JOB POSTINGS 736 500 

JOB FAIRS 4 4 

EMPLOYER TRAINING 5 4 

Customized Workforce Trainings 

Realizing the current labor demands among our local businesses, the EDC, Department of Social Services 

and educational partners have worked with industry stakeholders to develop customized trainings to fulfill 

today’s workforce needs.  Utilizing input from various industry practitioners, each training curriculum is 

developed to create career pathways to meet tomorrow’s industry needs, help businesses grow, and put 

individuals back to work.  Below is a list of customized training programs underway: 

 
Valley Apprenticeship Connections 

Pre-Apprenticeship Program. The partnership between Fresno County EDC, the 
Department of Social Services, and Fresno EOC will provide a 12-week program 

comprised of classroom and construction-based training. 

John Lawson Truck Driving 
Class A Truck Driving Class. The 10-week training is a partnership between Fresno 

County EDC, the Department of Social Services, West Hills Community College, and 
Lawson Rock and Oil. 

Central Valley Training Center 
Pre-Apprenticeship Program. The partnership between Fresno County EDC, the City of Selma, and High-
Speed Rail Authority will provide a 12-week program comprised of classroom and construction-based 

training.                                          
  

22

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

Highlights 

January 2023 

Relyion | All 
Since initially meeting at the Valley View presentation, the EDC has continued to work with Relyion, 
introducing them to potential partners that can help their business succeed. They have expressed 
interest in locating in Fresno in hopes of growing their company with the contacts Fresno EDC made.  

 
California Government Inauguration | All 
EDC President & CEO Lee Ann Eager traveled to Sacramento to attend the inauguration for Governor 
Gavin Newsom. She also participated in the march to the event. While there she was able to attend the 
inauguration of Lieutenant Governor Eleni Kounalkis and State Controller Malia M. Cohen. Each event 
was well attended, and Lee Ann was able to network with many. The Governor delivered his inaugural 
address, underscoring California’s commitment to continue leading the way forward to prosperity and 
progress for all. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

CART Showcase | Fresno & Clovis 
EDS Andrea Lee attended the Center for Advanced Research and Technology (CART) showcase and 
interacted with the student’s presentations. The students did a fantastic job with their projects. It was a 
great experience to support the next generation of thinkers and leaders.  

 
January Clovis Chamber of Commerce Mixer | City of Clovis  
EDS Andrea Lee attended the January Clovis Chamber of Commerce Mixer at The Painted Table and 
networked with Clovis business owners and professionals.  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CTC Transportation Research Board Annual Meeting | All 
As California Transportation Commission Chair, President & CEO Lee Ann Eager was invited to attend the 
Transportation Research Board’s Annual Meeting in Washington DC. She attended sessions that 
included The Case for Inland Ports and Growing Demand for Warehousing: Why It Is Happening & Effects 
on Communities & Truck Drivers. 

24

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

Clovis Chamber Salute to Business Luncheon | City of Clovis  
EDC Staff were delighted to attend the Clovis Chamber of Commerce Salute to Business Luncheon on 
January 26th. We look forward to working with the Chamber and honored businesses to continue 
making Fresno County the premier location for business prosperity. 
 

 
 
Fresno County Women’s Chamber of Commerce Member Connect | All 
EDS Andrea Lee attended the Fresno County Women’s Chamber of Commerce Member Connect. There 
were multiple female business owners and professionals that she connected with.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

25

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

February 2023 

High Speed Rail 10,000 jobs Press conference | All 
Workforce Training Coordinator Danielle Dixon-Oglesby attended the press conference that celebrated 
the creation of more than 10,000 construction jobs since the start of the high-speed rail 
construction.  Several leaders spoke and emphasized the ability to provide opportunities for those who 
are from disadvantaged communities and how the jobs are changing those lives in a positive way. Those 
leaders included Mayor Jerry Dyer, Chuck Riojas, Administrator Amir Bose, California Transportation 
Secretary Toks Omishakin, and Andrew Meredith. A current worker spoke about how she has worked on 
the project for 6 years and has enjoyed her experience thus far. 

   
 
NEO Program | Fresno County  
The BEAR team has successfully enrolled four new businesses, including Rise and Shine Services, Brother 
Collision and Auto Repair, Central California Asthma Collaborative, and Alert-O-Lite Inc., into the NEO 
program to address their workforce needs. These businesses are currently seeking to hire full-time 
employees. The NEO program is an exceptional opportunity for businesses to fulfill their hiring needs, as 
it provides wage subsidy reimbursement for up to one year for each eligible new hire. Additionally, the 
program assists individuals in the Welfare to Work program to reintegrate into the workforce. 
 
SelectUSA | Fresno County 
Fresno EDC is serving as the fiduciary for the Governor’s Office of Business and Economic 
Development for SelectUSA, the premier Foreign Direct Investment conference in the United States, 
taking place May 1-4, 2023. Business Attraction Specialist Tiffany Louk and Controller Paul Thorn 
have been closely collaborating with Maria Onorato, Foreign Direct Investment Program Manager at 
GO-Biz, to gather sponsorships as well as invoice and register an extensive list of participants who will 
be attending as part of the California Delegation. For more information on the SelectUSA Investment 
Summit, please visit: https://www.selectusasummit.us/  

 

 

26

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

Food Processing Expo | All 
Business Attraction Specialist Miguel Ruelas attended the Food Processing Expo in Sacramento on 2/14 
and 2/15. The Expo attracts a wide variety of attendees, including CLFP food processor members, non-
member food processors, those with ideas for new food products, university personnel and students, 
food processing industry vendors, suppliers and more. At the expo, Miguel was able to connect with 
several businesses that Fresno EDC has worked with in the past and / or is currently assisting. Sierra Agra 
and Tropical Food Machining held a booth and Fresno EDC provided additional assistance to their efforts 
at the expo. Additionally, new business contacts were made, and follow-up meetings are being 
scheduled. 
 
SJVMA First Quarterly Members Meeting | All 
Director of Special Projects Chris Zeitz and Program Coordinator Mai See Vang attended the San Joaquin 
Valley Manufacturing Alliance (SJVMA) members meeting. SJVMA is a partner under the Good Jobs 
Challenge as the backbone of the manufacturing sector. The first quarterly meeting of the year was held 
on February 15, 2023, at Keiser Corporation, which specializes in the manufacturing of exercise 
equipment for personal and commercial buyers. Members of SJVMA consist of manufacturing 
employers, educators, and other organizations in support of the manufacturing industry. At the meeting, 
Chris and Mai See presented on the Good Jobs Challenge award EDC secured and provided a survey to 
collect more information on employer hiring needs. They connected with Keiser's HR to learn more 
about their hiring needs and extended their support to provide information about an existing 
maintenance mechanic training program to help upskill one of their employees.  

 
 
World Ag Expo | All 
On February 15th-16th, 2023, Business Attraction Specialist Tiffany Louk and Client Services Manager 
Julian Ramos attended the Tulare World Ag Expo. Tiffany established contact with a business 
delegation from Northern Ireland that the UK Consul mentioned was in attendance. She will assist 
the companies with in-region business networking. She also coordinated and led a meeting between 
a UK FDI Business Ag Tech lead and the City of Fresno Economic Development Team in order to 
establish contact and connect the company with sites, incentives, and other resources.  

 

 
 
 

27

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

UK Deputy Consul General Meeting | All 
Fresno EDC President and CEO Lee Ann Eager was thrilled to host United Kingdom Deputy Consul 
General Tammy Sandhu MBE, UK Head of Politics, Press and Public Affairs Chris Cambises, and UK 
Economic and Trade Policy Liz Venn alongside Fresno County Supervisor Steve Brandau, Fresno Mayor 
Jerry Dyer, Clovis Mayor Pro Tem Vong Mouanoutoua, Clovis Assistant City Manager Andy Haussler and 
CSU Fresno VP of Student Affairs Dr. Kent L. Willis. All parties were enthusiastic to discuss areas of 
collaboration, including economic exchange, business development, and academic exchange. We look 
forward to continuing this collaboration to make Fresno the premier global location for business 
prosperity! 

 

  
 
Westpack and Medical Design and Manufacturing Conference | Fresno County, City of Clovis 
Tiffany Louk and Julian Ramos represented the California Central Valley Economic Development 
Corporation at the WestPack Tradeshow in Anaheim Feb 7th-9th. Tiffany also networked with 
medical device wholesale and manufacturing companies at the adjacent Medical Design and 
Manufacturing Conference. She cross-referenced the list of attendees with EDC’s Clovis Healthcare 
Analysis and initiated conversations and presented tailored marketing packets to matching company 
representatives.  

  

28

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.

https://www.linkedin.com/in/ACoAAABnGOYB4RA8kWDNYy3YOYqMgQHPh0eoivc
https://www.linkedin.com/in/ACoAAAs5elYBR2zf8AuwO5mi6Hd3TFE_cjuOBDM
https://www.linkedin.com/in/ACoAADgLMKQB5ShYnb_dmkhUhfZa-Ku8oigHPfY
https://www.linkedin.com/in/ACoAAAD2_EMBPGBqW8PGdp3oEKs5OsOjEVql2ok
https://www.linkedin.com/in/ACoAABEsYRkBPKmHMhsAqdzRfnUwIq63C-fbUKc
https://www.linkedin.com/in/ACoAAAjx70sB98f5pPSFmZobq0WznLqxY4GU-FA


 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

“Go Golden” Initiative Awardee Press Conference | All 
On February 24, 2023, EDC Chief Operating Officer Sherry Neil and Client Services Manager Julian Ramos 
attended California Department of Water Resources press conference in which it was announced that 
$15 million has been awarded to eight local water resilience projects, including the City of Parlier. The 
EDC would like to thank California Natural Resources Secretary Wade Crowfoot and congratulate Kings 
Basin Water Authority Chair Mayor Mary Fast of Reedley, City of Parlier Mayor Alma Beltran, and other 
awardees for their outstanding efforts in water conservation and sustainability. 

Tour of Caltrans and PG&E Training Centers | All 
EDC President & CEO Lee Ann Eager and COO Sherry Neil traveled to the Bay Area to tour the Caltrans 
Training Center in Oakland, as well as the PG&E Training Center in Livermore. These tours were not only 
a chance to learn more about the individual training programs offered at each center, but also to 
explore opportunities for the EDC to partner with them in the future. 

  

Workshops / Webinars Attended 
• Roadmap to Building Registered Apprenticeship Programs  

o Hosted by Foundation for California Community Colleges attended by Good Jobs Team 
• Inflation Reduction Act Briefing  

o Hosted by Accelerator for America attended by Special Projects Team 

 

 

29

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

March 2023 

World Agri-Tech Summit | All 
From recruiting innovative businesses and technologies to our region, to collaborating with 
representatives of the F3 initiative, to attracting domestic and foreign investment to Fresno County, 
Tiffany Louk has had an exciting (and busy) time at the World Agri-Tech Innovation Summit in San 
Francisco! As Business Attraction Specialist and FDI lead, she is proud to represent Fresno EDC, forging 
connections for Fresno County at this cutting-edge conference.  

 

   
 
2023 Mayor’s Leadership Round Table | City of Clovis 
Will Oliver, the Vice President of Business Services, participated in the 2023 Mayor's Leadership 
Roundtable hosted by Mayor Lynne Ashbeck in Clovis. The main objective of the workshop was to 
discuss trends affecting the local community and 
generate innovative ideas to be included in Clovis' 
strategic plan. The community leaders engaged in a 
dynamic conversation that focused on preserving the 
city's quality of life, maintaining educational 
excellence, and managing growth in a sustainable 
manner. Various challenges related to workforce and 
business were brought up, including the need to 
protect Old Town, attract small businesses, and 
develop a skilled workforce capable of meeting the 
needs of various industries. The EDC emphasized the 
lack of industrial land availability, which hinders 
Clovis' ability to showcase itself to exciting companies 
with advanced technologies, sustainable practices, 
and higher-paying jobs. The EDC also highlighted the 
Good Jobs Challenge program, which provides job 
seekers with short-term training, support services, 
and pre-apprenticeship opportunities, to bridge the 
gap between job seekers and employers. 

 
 

 
Central Valley Career Fair | Clovis  
Andrea Lee, Economic Development Specialist, attended the Central Valley Career Fair to promote the 
New Employment Opportunities program to employers. She interacted with over 20 employers, with 
over a dozen expressing interest in the program.  

30

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

Leveraging Federal Infrastructure Funding via the Catalyze Registry | All 
On March 12, 2023, Fresno EDC Director of Special Projects Chris Zeitz presented on an invite-only 
webinar to approximately 20 major foundations interested in supporting workforce and economic 
development projects highlighted by the Federal Government for maximum impact. The Fresno area’s 
Good Jobs Challenge was one of two projects discussed in the webinar, which was organized by America 
Achieves and included two advisors to the White House as well. The EDC Good Jobs Team has met with 
one foundation that was in attendance already to discuss service gaps in the Good Jobs project that 
result from federal regulations and how philanthropy can step in to address those gaps.  

 
Fresno DRIVE - REDF Meeting | All 
On March 15, 2023, Fresno EDC Director of Special Projects Chris Zeitz attended a meeting held by 
Fresno DRIVE and Every Neighborhood Partnership to be introduced to REDF’s (The Roberts Enterprise 
Development Fund) regional team in the valley. REDF supports social enterprises, organizations that are 
run as a business but provide community benefits. REDF is interested in supporting the organizational 
and business development of more social enterprises in the region and this meeting was a first 
introduction to organizations that could facilitate these connections.  

 
Valley Apprenticeship Connections Graduation | Fresno County 
On Friday, March 24, 2023, Danielle Dixon-Oglesby and Mai See Vang were present at the VAC 
graduation ceremony, which took place at the new EOC building located at 1371 Stanislaus Street. A 
total of 23 graduates were honored during the event. The atmosphere was uplifting as VAC staff 
motivated the students to embrace their future journeys and utilize the skills they acquired. Several 
students delivered heartfelt speeches, sharing their personal experiences and expressing gratitude to 
VAC for positively transforming their lives. Notably, one student, who was learning English, tearfully 
expressed appreciation to her fellow cohort members for their acceptance and support despite her 
limited English proficiency. She credited the class for boosting her self-confidence and instilling 
excitement for her future prospects. The EDC will be assisting the graduating students with retention 
services for a year post graduation.  

 

 
 

31

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

         Quarterly Activity Report 

California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley Quarterly Meeting | All 
On March 10, 2023, Fresno EDC President & CEO Lee Ann Eager and the EDC’s Good Jobs Team 
presented the Good Jobs project, a four-county workforce development grant from the US Economic 
Development Administration, to the quarterly meeting of the California Partnership for the San Joaquin 
Valley Board (CPSJV). During the meeting, the Good Jobs Team reviewed the current status of the 
program and described how regional approaches to workforce and economic development were 
producing results in the Central San Joaquin Valley area. CPSJV invited the team to continue attending 
quarterly meetings to provide ongoing updates.   
 
H2B2 | All 
Fresno EDC assisted H2B2 submit a Cal Competes application for $500,000 towards their hydrogen 
production facility located just outside of Kerman. This is not the first time that the company has applied 
for tax credits, and it demonstrates their ongoing commitment to maximizing their financial benefits. 
Overall, the submission of this tax credit application highlights H2B2's focus on financial optimization 
and their willingness to take advantage of available tax benefits. 
 

 
Workshops / Webinars Attended 

• Advancing Equitable Outcomes: A Roadmap for Investors hosted by the NY Fed Community 
Development Team attended by Ross Williams 

• CAL OPR Training Series: Maximizing Federal Funds hosted by California Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research attended by Chris Zeitz 

• CAL OPR Training Series: American Rescue Plan Compliance Supplement Addendum hosted by 
California Governor’s Office of Planning and Research attended by Chris Zeitz 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

32

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



FY 22-23 Overview of Work Product 
Deliverables FY 2022 – 2023 Target Outcomes  Q3 2023 

Economic Development Corporation 
Serving Fresno County  
 
Contract: $40,000 
 
Comparative Healthcare Analysis 
Phase 3: $10,000  
- Marketing & Recruitment Plan 
- Healthcare Company Engagement 
 
Staff: 
President & CEO 
Lee Ann Eager 
 
Chief Operating Officer 
Sherry Neil 
 
Vice President of Business Services  
Will Oliver 
  

Business Retention:  
Staff will continue to analyze Clovis 
businesses impacted by COVID-19 and 
incorporate into the Top 50 Analysis.  
Targeted businesses will be contacted by a 
variety of methods to educate Clovis 
businesses on available retention resources, 
such as utility rate reductions, rehiring 
incentives and low-cost emergency relief 
funding.  

• Conduct Analysis to determine Top 
50 companies in Clovis that should 
be focused on for retention and 
expansion. 
 

New Business Recruitment: 
Facilitate information and conduct tours for 
company representatives not currently 
located in Clovis for the purpose of 
recruiting new businesses to the City of 
Clovis.  Assist the City of Clovis in promoting 
future industrial areas and existing 
industrial sites to new clients.  

• Coordinate virtual and in-person 
site tours for the purpose of 
business attraction and expansion. 

• Create and update marketing 
materials. 

• Support in-person or virtual 
commercial and industrial broker 
events for the City of Clovis. 

Top 50 targeted business analysis for 
expansion/retention 

Complete 

Respond to all City of Clovis business 
inquires and connect them to 
appropriate resources 

53 Businesses contacted and 
27 Referrals provided YTD in 
2023. 

Comparative Healthcare Analysis (HCA) 
Enhancement & Recruitment Plan 

 Completed 

2 Broker Events No Broker Events held YTD 

40 new business leads 
41 New Business Leads in 
FY23 YTD. 

20 targeted healthcare company 
engagements from HCA  

Completed 

Economic Profile Update Completed 

  
 

 

33

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



ATTACHMENT 1  

• Communicate leads status during 
monthly EDC - City of Clovis 
meeting.  

 
Comparative Healthcare Analysis:  

• EDC has completed a Comparative 

Healthcare Analysis (CHA) and draft 

marketing collateral to conduct 

proactive company engagement.  20 

unique businesses have been 

identified for direct engagement 

between the City and EDC. 

Engagements in FY22-23 shall 

include preparation of detailed 

marketing materials based on the 

CHA analysis including City 

demographics, labor data, available 

Clovis real estate, anchor assets, 

clovis4business.com website 

promotion and other pertinent data 

and information as approved by the 

City of Clovis.  EDC staff shall work 

in coordination with the City of 

Clovis on delivery of materials, 

company contacts and planning and 

logistics for subsequent site visits.  

  

34

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Administration - Receive and File – Business Organization of Old Town 
(BOOT) Third Quarter Report, January through March 2023. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Business Organization of Old Town (BOOT) Third Quarter Report, 
January through March 2023. 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the City Council receive and file the BOOT Third Quarter Report, January through March 
2023. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
According to the 2022–2023 agreement between the City of Clovis and the Business 
Organization of Old Town, BOOT is to submit quarterly reports to the City Manager and City 
Council. The amount to be funded is $15,000. 
 
BACKGROUND 
According to the 2022-2023 agreement between the City of Clovis and the Business 
Organization of Old Town, BOOT is to submit quarterly reports to the City Manager and City 
Council detailing progress of BOOT’s promotional and marketing activity. Attached, as 
Attachment 1, is the Third Quarter Report covering January through March 2023 activities. The 
amount to be funded is $15,000. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The amount to be funded is $15,000, which is called out in the 2022-2023 Budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The attached report meets the requirement established in the 2022-2023 agreement between 
the City of Clovis and the Business Organization of Old Town. 

35

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will process payment to BOOT. 
 
Prepared by: Shawn Miller, Business Development Manager 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH 

 
 

36

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



37

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



38

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



39

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



40

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



41

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



42

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



43

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Administration - Approval – Authorize the City Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Pro Ag Management, Inc. on the lease of 1625 Shaw 
Ave., Suite 101, for $116,000 per year. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Draft Lease Agreement  

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Pro Ag 
Management, Inc. on the lease of 1625 Shaw Ave., Suite 101.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Information Technology (IT) Division has been working out of a modular building for the last 
22 years.  The building was initially acquired on a lease as it was meant to be a temporary home 
for IT staff.  At that time, staff found that it was more cost effective to purchase the modular 
building instead of renewing the lease and it became permanent location for IT.  The building is 
now showing signs of its age.  
 
There have been multiple roof leaks, water damage and other issues. Rather than continuing to 
invest in the modular building, staff began researching for other locations to temporarily place 
the IT Division until a plan for a more suitable space somewhere here on the City Hall campus 
area can be developed. The proposed office location at 1625 Shaw Avenue, Suite 101, meets 
the City’s needs. The initial lease is for two years with three optional one-year renewals.  Staff 
is recommending that Council authorize the City Manager to enter in the lease agreement for 
this office space.   
 
 
 

44

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



BACKGROUND 
The Information Technology Division has been working out of temporary locations for the last 
26.5 years.  Initially, IT staff worked out of a house on Russel Avenue, which was demolished 
for the Public Safety Headquarters building.  At the time, and since this was meant to be a 
temporary fix, the decision was made to lease a used-modular building (current Building H) and 
place it on jacks to limit construction activity and not affect the parking lots asphalt and planter 
box areas.  After the term on the lease completed, the city purchased the unit, as staff found that 
purchasing it would cost less than what the vendor was asking for on the lease renewal.  
Unfortunately, the facility is now showing signs of age. There have been multiple roof leaks, 
mildew/water damage, and other issues.  
 
Rather than continuing to invest in temporary fixes to the modular building, staff has been looking 
at other locations to temporarily place the IT Division. The proposed office location at 1625 Shaw 
Avenue, Suite 101, meets the City’s needs.  The initial lease agreement is for two years with 
three optional one-year renewals. That should provide sufficient time to develop a plan for a 
more suitable and permanent space for the IT Division here on the City Hall campus area. Staff 
is recommending that Council authorize the City Manager to enter in the lease agreement for 
the office space at 1625 Shaw Ave., Suite 101.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost for leasing the office space is $150,000 per year for two years including common area 
charges starting on July 1, 2023. It is included in the Information Technology Division’s proposed 
FY23-24 budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The cost for maintaining the current facility is increasing and there have been multiple problems 
like water leaks and other issues. Additionally, once the staffing vacancies are filled, the cubicles 
and office spaces will be at capacity.  The new leased building will provide the City an interim 
office space for the IT Division until a more permanent facility becomes available on or near the 
City Hall campus area.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The lease agreement with Pro Ag Management, Inc. will be executed and staff will begin moving 
on or after July 1, 2023. 
 
Prepared by: Andrew Haussler, Assistant City Manager 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

 

45

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



1. Basic Provisions ("Basic Provisions").
1.1 Par es: This Sublease ("Sublease"), dated for reference purposes only May 15, 2023 , is made by and between Pro Ag

Management, Inc., an Illinois Corporation ("Sublessor") and City of Clovis, a California
Municipal Corporation ("Sublessee"), (collec vely the "Par es", or individually a "Party").

1.2 Premises: That certain real property, including all improvements therein, and commonly known as (street address, city, state, zip) 1625 Shaw
Avenue, Suite 101, Clovis, CA 93612 located in the County of Fresno , State of California and generally described
as (describe briefly the nature of the property) ("Premises").

1.3 Term: -- years and 23 months commencing July 1, 2023 ("Commencement Date") and ending May 31,
2025 ("Expira on Date").

1.4 Early Possession: If the Premises are available Sublessee may have non-exclusive possession of the Premises commencing upon lease
execution ("Early Possession Date").

1.5 Base Rent: $9,648.00 per month ("Base Rent"), payable on the 1st day of each month commencing July 1, 2023 .

If this box is checked, there are provisions in this Sublease for the Base Rent to be adjusted.
1.6 Base Rent and OtherMonies Paid Upon Execu on:

1.7 Agreed Use: The Premises shall be used and occupied only for professional office and related uses and for no other
purposes.

1.8 Real Estate Brokers.

agency rela onships in this Sublease with the following real estate brokers ("Broker(s)") and/or their agents ("Agent(s)"):
Sublessor's Brokerage Firm Savills and Colliers Tingey International, Inc License No. Colliers:

00452468 is the broker of (check one): the Sublessor; or both the Sublessee and Sublessor (dual agent).

Sublessor's Agent Mike Catalano/Bobby Fena, SIOR License No. BF: 00590204 is (check one): the Sublessor's Agent

(salesperson or broker associate); or both the Sublessee's Agent and the Sublessor's Agent (dual agent).
Sublessee's Brokerage Firm Colliers Tingey International, Inc. License No. 00452468 is the broker of (check one):

the Sublessee; or both the Sublessee and Sublessor (dual agent).

Sublessee's Agent Bobby Fena, SIOR License No. 00590204 is (check one): the Sublessee's Agent (salesperson or broker

associate); or both the Sublessee's Agent and the Sublessor's Agent (dual agent).

separatewri en agreement (or if there is no such agreement, the sum of per separate agreement or -- % of the total Base Rent) for
the brokerage services rendered by the Brokers.

1.9 Guarantor. The obliga ons of the Sublessee under this Sublease shall be guaranteed by N/A ("Guarantor").
1.10 A achments. A ached hereto are the following, all of which cons tute a part of this Sublease:

an Addendum consis ng of Paragraphs 14 through 17 ;

a plot plan depic ng the Premises; (Exhibit "A")
aWork Le er;

a copy of the Master Lease and any and all amendments to such lease (collec vely the "Master Lease");

other (specify): Exhibit C - Rules and Regulations .

2. Premises.
2.1 Le ng. Sublessor hereby subleases to Sublessee, and Sublessee hereby subleases from Sublessor, the Premises, for the term, at the rental, and upon all of

the terms, covenants and condi ons set forth in this Sublease. While the approximate square footage of the Premises may have been used in themarke ng of the
Premises for purposes of comparison, the Base Rent stated herein is NOT ed to square footage and is not subject to adjustment should the actual size be determined
to be different. Note: Sublessee is advised to verify the actual size prior to execu ng this Sublease.

2.2 Condi on. Sublessor shall deliver the Premises to Sublessee broom clean and free of debris on the Commencement Date or the Early Possession Date,
whichever first occurs ("Start Date"), and warrants that the exis ng electrical, plumbing, fire sprinkler, ligh ng, hea ng, ven la ng and air condi oning systems
("HVAC"), and any items which the Sublessor is obligated to construct pursuant to the Work Le er a ached hereto, if any, other than those constructed by Sublessee,
shall be in good opera ng condi on on said date. If a non-compliance with such warranty exists as of the Start Date, or if one of such systems or elements should
malfunc on or fail within the appropriate warranty period, Sublessor shall, as Sublessor's sole obliga on with respect to suchma er, except as otherwise provided in
this Sublease, promptly a er receipt ofwri en no ce from Sublessee se ng forth with specificity the nature and extent of such non-compliance, malfunc on or

SUBLEASE FOR A SINGLE SUBLESSEE
To be used if the en re space (Premises) will be subleased by a single sublessee whether or
not the space (Premises) is a single tenant buildingor is located in a mul -tenant building.

If therewill be one ormore sublessees sharing the space with each other and/or the lessee,
whether or not the space (Premises) is a single tenant building or is located in amul -tenant
building, use the Sublease forMul ple Tenants.

(a) Base Rent: $9,648.00 for the period July 1-31, 2023 .
(b) Security Deposit: $9,953.00 ("Security Deposit").
(c) Associa on Fees: for the period .
(d) Other: $2,691.34 for Triple Net estimates (5078 SF x $0.53 psf per month) .
(e) Total Due Upon Execu on of this Sublease: $22,292.34 .

(a) Representa on: Each Party acknowledges receiving a Disclosure Regarding Real Estate Agency Rela onship, confirms and consents to the following

(b) Payment to Brokers: Upon execu on and delivery of this Sublease by both Par es, Sublessor shall pay to the Brokers the brokerage fee agreed to in a

failure, rec fy same at Sublessor's expense. The warranty periods shall be as follows: (i) 6 months as to the HVAC systems, and (ii) 30 days as to the remaining systems
and other elements. If Sublessee does not give Sublessor the required no cewithin the appropriate warranty period, correc on of any such non-compliance,
malfunc on or failure shall be the obliga on of Sublessee at Sublessee's sole cost and expense.

2.3 Compliance. Sublessor warrants that any improvements, altera ons or u lity installa onsmade or installed by or on behalf of Sublessor to or on the
Premises comply with all applicable covenants or restric ons of record and applicable building codes, regula ons and ordinances ("Applicable Requirements") in
effect on the date that they were made or installed. Sublessor makes no warranty as to the use to which Sublessee will put the Premises or to modifica onswhich
may be required by the Americans with Disabili es Act or any similar laws as a result of Sublessee's use. NOTE: Sublessee is responsible for determining whether or
not the zoning and other Applicable Requirements are appropriate for Sublessee's intended use, and acknowledges that past uses of the Premises may no longer
be allowed. If the Premises do not comply with said warranty, Sublessor shall, except as otherwise provided, promptly a er receipt ofwri en no ce from Sublessee
se ng forth with specificity the nature and extent of such non-compliance, rec fy the same.

2.4 Acknowledgements. Sublessee acknowledges that: (a) it has been given an opportunity to inspect and measure the Premises, (b) it has been advised by
Sublessor and/or Brokers to sa sfy itself with respect to the size and condi on of the Premises (including but not limited to the electrical, HVAC and fire sprinkler
systems, security, environmental aspects, and compliance with Applicable Requirements and the Americans with Disabili es Act), and their suitability for Sublessee's

Attachment 1 46

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



intended use, (c) Sublessee hasmade such inves ga on as it deems necessary with reference to such ma ers and assumes all responsibility therefor as the same
relate to its occupancy of the Premises, (d) it is not relying on any representa on as to the size of the Premises made by Brokers or Sublessor, (e) the square footage of
the Premises was not material to Sublessee's decision to sublease the Premises and pay the Rent stated herein, and (f) neither Sublessor, Sublessor's agents, nor
Brokers have made any oral orwri en representa ons or warran eswith respect to said ma ers other than as set forth in this Sublease. In addi on, Sublessor
acknowledges that: (i) Brokers have made no representa ons, promises orwarran es concerning Sublessee's ability to honor the Sublease or suitability to occupy the
Premises, and (ii) it is Sublessor's sole responsibility to inves gate the financial capability and/or suitability of all proposed tenants.

2.5 Americans with Disabili es Act. In the event that as a result of Sublessee's use, or intended use, of the Premises the Americans with Disabili es Act or any
similar law requiresmodifica ons or the construc on or installa on of improvements in or to the Premises, Building, Project and/or Common Areas, the Par es agree

that such modifica ons, construc on or improvements shall be made at: Sublessor's expense Sublessee's expense.

3. Possession.
3.1 Early Possession. Any provision herein gran ng Sublessee Early Possession of the Premises is subject to and condi oned upon the Premises being available

for such possession prior to the Commencement Date. Any grant of Early Possession only conveys a non-exclusive right to occupy the Premises. If Sublessee totally or
par ally occupies the Premises prior to the Commencement Date, the obliga on to pay Base Rent shall be abated for the period of such Early Possession. All other
terms of this Sublease (including but not limited to the obliga ons to pay Sublessee's Share of CommonArea Opera ng Expenses, Real Property Taxes and insurance
premiums and to maintain the Premises) shall, however, be in effect during such period. Any such Early Possession shall not affect the Expira on Date.

3.2 Delay in Commencement. Sublessor agrees to use its best commercially reasonable efforts to deliver possession of the Premises by the Commencement
Date. If, despite said efforts, Sublessor is unable to deliver possession as agreed, the rights and obliga ons of Sublessor and Sublessee shall be as set forth in
Paragraph 3.3 of the Master Lease (as modified by Paragraph 6.3 of this Sublease).

3.3 Sublessee Compliance. Sublessor shall not be required to tender possession of the Premises to Sublessee un l Sublessee complies with its obliga on to
provide evidence of insurance. Pending delivery of such evidence, Sublessee shall be required to perform all of its obliga ons under this Sublease from and a er the
Start Date, including the payment of Rent, notwithstanding Sublessor's elec on to withhold possession pending receipt of such evidence of insurance. Further, if
Sublessee is required to perform any other condi ons prior to or concurrent with the Start Date, the Start Date shall occur but Sublessor may elect to withhold
possession un l such condi ons are sa sfied.

4. Rent and Other Charges.
4.1 Rent Defined. All monetary obliga ons of Sublessee to Sublessor under the terms of this Sublease (except for the Security Deposit) are deemed to be rent

("Rent"). Rent shall be payable in lawful money of the United States to Sublessor at the address stated herein or to such other persons or at such other places as
Sublessor may designate in wri ng.

4.2 U li es. Sublessee shall pay for all water, gas, heat, light, power, telephone, trash disposal and other u li es and services supplied to the Premises,
together with any taxes thereon.

5. Security Deposit. The rights and obliga ons of Sublessor and Sublessee as to said Security Deposit shall be as set forth in Paragraph 5 of theMaster Lease (as
modified by Paragraph 6.3 of this Sublease).

6. Master Lease.
6.1 Sublessor is the lessee of the Premises by virtue of the "Master Lease", wherein Jamison Family Community Property Trust

established by the Jamison Family Trust dated March 17, 2013, William O. Jamison and
Cinda L. Jamison, husband and wife, as community property and Elizabeth Anne Cardoza, a
married woman as her sole and separate property. is the lessor, hereina er the "Master Lessor".

6.2 This Sublease is and shall be at all mes subject and subordinate to theMaster Lease.
6.3 The terms, condi ons and respec ve obliga ons of Sublessor and Sublessee to each other under this Sublease shall be the terms and condi ons of the

Master Lease except for those provisions of theMaster Lease which are directly contradicted by this Sublease in which event the terms of this Sublease document
shall control over the Master Lease. Therefore, for the purposes of this Sublease, wherever in theMaster Lease the word "Lessor" is used it shall be deemed to mean
the Sublessor herein and wherever in the Master Lease the word "Lessee" is used it shall be deemed to mean the Sublessee herein.

6.4 During the term of this Sublease and for all periods subsequent for obliga ons which have arisen prior to the termina on of this Sublease, Sublessee does
hereby expressly assume and agree to perform and comply with, for the benefit of Sublessor and Master Lessor, each and every obliga on of Sublessor under the
Master Lease except for the following paragraphs which are excluded therefrom: .

6.5 The obliga ons that Sublessee has assumed under paragraph 6.4 hereof are hereina er referred to as the "Sublessee's Assumed Obliga ons". The
obliga ons that sublessee has not assumed under paragraph 6.4 hereof are hereina er referred to as the "Sublessor's RemainingObliga ons".

6.6 Sublessee shall hold Sublessor free and harmless from all liability, judgments, costs, damages, claims or demands, including reasonable a orneys fees,
arising out of Sublessee's failure to comply with or perform Sublessee's Assumed Obliga ons.

6.7 Sublessor agrees to maintain the Master Lease during the en re term of this Sublease, subject, however, to any earlier termina on of the Master Lease
without the fault of the Sublessor, and to comply with or perform Sublessor's Remaining Obliga ons and to hold Sublessee free and harmless from all liability,
judgments, costs, damages, claims or demands arising out of Sublessor's failure to comply with or perform Sublessor's RemainingObliga ons.

6.8 Sublessor represents to Sublessee that theMaster Lease is in full force and effect and that no default exists on the part of any Party to the Master Lease.

7. Assignment of Sublease and Default.
7.1 Sublessor hereby assigns and transfers to Master Lessor the Sublessor's interest in this Sublease, subject however to the provisions of Paragraph 8.2 hereof.
7.2 Master Lessor, by execu ng this document, agrees that un l a Default shall occur in the performance of Sublessor's Obliga ons under theMaster Lease,

that Sublessor may receive, collect and enjoy the Rent accruing under this Sublease. However, if Sublessor shall Default in the performance of its obliga ons to
Master Lessor thenMaster Lessor may, at its op on, receive and collect, directly from Sublessee, all Rent owing and to be owed under this Sublease. In the event,
however, that the amount collected byMaster Lessor exceeds Sublessor's obliga ons any such excess shall be refunded to Sublessor. Master Lessor shall not, by
reason of this assignment of the Sublease nor by reason of the collec on of the Rent from the Sublessee, be deemed liable to Sublessee for any failure of the
Sublessor to perform and comply with Sublessor's Remaining Obliga ons.

7.3 Sublessor hereby irrevocably authorizes and directs Sublessee upon receipt of anywri en no ce from the Master Lessor sta ng that a Default exists in the
performance of Sublessor's obliga ons under theMaster Lease, to pay to Master Lessor the Rent due and to become due under the Sublease. Sublessor agrees that
Sublessee shall have the right to rely upon any such statement and request from Master Lessor, and that Sublessee shall pay such Rent to Master Lessor without any
obliga on or right to inquire as to whether such Default exists and notwithstanding any no ce from or claim from Sublessor to the contrary and Sublessor shall have
no right or claim against Sublessee for any such Rent so paid by Sublessee.

7.4 No changes or modifica ons shall be made to this Sublease without the consent of Master Lessor.

8. Consent of Master Lessor.
8.1 In the event that the Master Lease requires that Sublessor obtain the consent ofMaster Lessor to any suble ng by Sublessor then, this Sublease shall not

be effec ve unless, within 10 days of the date hereof, Master Lessor signs this Sublease thereby giving its consent to this Suble ng.
8.2 In the event that the obliga ons of the Sublessor under theMaster Lease have been guaranteed by third par es, then neither this Sublease, nor the Master

Lessor's consent, shall be effec ve unless, within 10 days of the date hereof, said guarantors sign this Sublease thereby giving their consent to this Sublease.
8.3 In the event that Master Lessor does give such consent then:

(a) Such consent shall not release Sublessor of its obliga ons or alter the primary liability of Sublessor to pay the Rent and perform and comply with all of
the obliga ons of Sublessor to be performed under the Master Lease.

(b) The acceptance of Rent byMaster Lessor from Sublessee or anyone else liable under theMaster Lease shall not be deemed a waiver by Master Lessor
of any provisions of theMaster Lease.

(c) The consent to this Sublease shall not cons tute a consent to any subsequent suble ng or assignment.
(d) In the event of any Default of Sublessor under theMaster Lease, Master Lessor may proceed directly against Sublessor, any guarantors or any one

else liable under the Master Lease or this Sublease without first exhaus ngMaster Lessor's remedies against any other person or en ty liable thereon to Master
Lessor.

(e) Master Lessormay consent to subsequent suble ngs and assignments of the Master Lease or this Sublease or any amendments ormodifica ons
thereto without no fying Sublessor or any one else liable under the Master Lease and without obtaining their consent and such ac on shall not relieve such persons
from liability.

(f) In the event that Sublessor shall Default in its obliga ons under theMaster Lease, thenMaster Lessor, at its op on and without being obligated to do
so,may require Sublessee to a orn to Master Lessor in which eventMaster Lessor shall undertake the obliga ons of Sublessor under this Sublease from the me of

47

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



the exercise of said op on to termina on of this Sublease but Master Lessor shall not be liable for any prepaid Rent nor any Security Deposit paid by Sublessee, nor
shall Master Lessor be liable for any other Defaults of the Sublessor under the Sublease.

(g) Unless directly contradicted by other provisions of this Sublease, the consent of Master Lessor to this Sublease shall not cons tute an agreement to
allow Sublessee to exercise any op onswhich may have been granted to Sublessor in theMaster Lease (see Paragraph 39.2 of theMaster Lease).

8.4 The signatures of theMaster Lessor and any Guarantors of Sublessor at the end of this document shall cons tute their consent to the terms of this
Sublease.

8.5 Master Lessor acknowledges that, to the best of Master Lessor's knowledge, no Default presently exists under theMaster Lease of obliga ons to be
performed by Sublessor and that theMaster Lease is in full force and effect.

8.6 In the event that Sublessor Defaults under its obliga ons to be performed under theMaster Lease by Sublessor, Master Lessor agrees to deliver to
Sublessee a copy of any such no ce of default. Sublessee shall have the right to cure any Default of Sublessor described in any no ce of default if Sublessee does so
within the same number of days set forth in the no ce of default given to Sublessor. If such Default is cured by Sublessee then Sublessee shall have the right of
reimbursement and offset from and against Sublessor.

9. Addi onal Brokers Commissions.
9.1 Sublessor agrees that if Sublessee exercises any op on or right of first refusal as granted by Sublessor herein, or any op on or right substan ally similar

thereto, either to extend the term of this Sublease, to renew this Sublease, to purchase the Premises, or to lease or purchase adjacent property which Sublessor may
own or in which Sublessor has an interest, then Sublessor shall pay to Broker a fee in accordance with the schedule of Broker in effect at the me of the execu on of
this Sublease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Sublessor's obliga on under this Paragraph is limited to a transac on in which Sublessor is ac ng as a Sublessor, lessor
or seller.

9.2 If a separate brokerage fee agreement is a ached thenMaster Lessor agrees that if Sublessee shall exercise any op on or right of first refusal granted to
Sublessee by Master Lessor in connec onwith this Sublease, or any op on or right substan ally similar thereto, either to extend or renew theMaster Lease, to
purchase the Premises or any part thereof, or to lease or purchase adjacent property which Master Lessor may own or in which Master Lessor has an interest, or if
Broker is the procuring cause of any other lease or sale entered into between Sublessee and Master Lessor pertaining to the Premises, any part thereof, or any
adjacent property which Master Lessor owns or in which it has an interest, then as to any of said transac ons,Master Lessor shall pay to Broker a fee, in cash, in
accordance with the schedule a ached to such brokerage fee agreement.

9.3 Any fee due from Sublessor or Master Lessor hereunder shall be due and payable upon the exercise of any op on to extend or renew, upon the execu on
of any new lease, or, in the event of a purchase, at the close of escrow.

9.4 Any transferee of Sublessor's interest in this Sublease, or of Master Lessor's interest in the Master Lease, by accep ng an assignment thereof, shall be
deemed to have assumed the respec ve obliga ons of Sublessor or Master Lessor under this Paragraph 9. Broker shall be deemed to be a third-party beneficiary of
this paragraph 9.

10. Representa ons and Indemni es of Broker Rela onships. The Par es each represent and warrant to the other that it has had no dealings with any person,
firm, broker, agent or finder (other than the Brokers and Agents, if any) in connec onwith this Sublease, and that no one other than said named Brokers and Agents is
en tled to any commission or finder's fee in connec on herewith. Sublessee and Sublessor do each hereby agree to indemnify, protect, defend and hold the other
harmless from and against liability for compensa on or charges which may be claimed by any such unnamed broker, finder or other similar party by reason of any
dealings or ac ons of the indemnifying Party, including any costs, expenses, a orneys' fees reasonably incurred with respect thereto.

11. A orney's fees. If any Party or Broker brings an ac on or proceeding involving the Premises whether founded in tort, contract or equity, or to declare rights
hereunder, the Prevailing Party (as herea er defined) in any such proceeding, ac on, or appeal thereon, shall be en tled to reasonable a orneys' fees. Such fees may
be awarded in the same suit or recovered in a separate suit, whether or not such ac on or proceeding is pursued to decision or judgment. The term, "Prevailing
Party" shall include, without limita on, a Party or Broker who substan ally obtains or defeats the relief sought, as the case may be, whether by compromise,
se lement, judgment, or the abandonment by the other Party or Broker of its claim or defense. The a orneys' fees award shall not be computed in accordance with
any court fee schedule, but shall be such as to fully reimburse all a orneys' fees reasonably incurred. In addi on, Sublessor shall be en tled to a orneys' fees, costs
and expenses incurred in the prepara on and service of no ces of Default and consulta ons in connec on therewith, whether or not a legal ac on is subsequently
commenced in connec onwith such Default or resul ng Breach ($200 is a reasonable minimum per occurrence for such services and consulta on).

12. No Prior or Other Agreements; Broker Disclaimer. This Sublease contains all agreements between the Par eswith respect to any ma er men oned herein, and
no other prior or contemporaneous agreement or understanding shall be effec ve. Sublessor and Sublessee each represents and warrants to the Brokers that it has
made, and is relying solely upon, its own inves ga on as to the nature, quality, character and financial responsibility of the other Party to this Sublease and as to the
use, nature, quality and character of the Premises. Brokers have no responsibility with respect thereto or with respect to any default or breach hereof by either Party.
The liability (including court costs and a orneys' fees), of any Broker with respect to nego a on, execu on, delivery or performance by either Sublessor or Sublessee
under this Sublease or any amendment or modifica on hereto shall be limited to an amount up to the fee received by such Broker pursuant to this Sublease;
provided, however, that the foregoing limita on on each Broker's liability shall not be applicable to any gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Broker.
Signatures to this Sublease accomplished bymeans of electronic signature or similar technology shall be legal and binding.

13. Accessibility; Americanswith Disabili esAct.
(a) The Premises:

have not undergone an inspec on by a Cer fied Access Specialist (CASp). Note: A Cer fied Access Specialist (CASp) can inspect the subject premises and
determine whether the subject premises comply with all of the applicable construc on-related accessibility standards under state law. Although state law does not
require a CASp inspec on of the subject premises, the commercial property owner or lessor may not prohibit the lessee or tenant from obtaining a CASp inspec on of
the subject premises for the occupancy or poten al occupancy of the lessee or tenant, if requested by the lessee or tenant. The par es shall mutually agree on the
arrangements for the me and manner of the CASp inspec on, the payment of the fee for the CASp inspec on, and the cost of making any repairs necessary to
correct viola ons of construc on-related accessibility standards within the premises.

have undergone an inspec on by a Cer fied Access Specialist (CASp) and it was determined that the Premises met all applicable construc on-related accessibility
standards pursuant to California Civil Code §55.51 et seq. Lessee acknowledges that it received a copy of the inspec on report at least 48 hours prior to execu ng
this Lease and agrees to keep such report confiden al.

have undergone an inspec on by a Cer fied Access Specialist (CASp) and it was determined that the Premises did not meet all applicable construc on-related
accessibility standards pursuant to California Civil Code §55.51 et seq. Lessee acknowledges that it received a copy of the inspec on report at least 48 hours prior to
execu ng this Lease and agrees to keep such report confiden al except as necessary to complete repairs and correc ons of viola ons of construc on related
accessibility standards.

In the event that the Premises have been issued an inspec on report by a CASp the Lessor shall provide a copy of the disability access inspec on cer ficate to Lessee
within 7 days of the execu on of this Lease.

(b) Since compliance with the Americans withDisabili es Act (ADA) and other state and local accessibility statutes are dependent upon Lessee's specific
use of the Premises, Lessor makes no warranty or representa on as to whether or not the Premises comply with ADA or any similar legisla on. In the event that
Lessee's use of the Premises requiresmodifica ons or addi ons to the Premises in order to be in compliance with ADA or other accessibility statutes, Lessee agrees to
make any such necessary modifica ons and/or addi ons at Lessee's expense.

ATTENTION: NO REPRESENTATION OR RECOMMENDATION ISMADE BY AIR CRE OR BY ANY REAL ESTATE BROKER AS TO THE LEGAL SUFFICIENCY, LEGAL EFFECT, OR
TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THIS SUBLEASE OR THE TRANSACTION TO WHICH IT RELATES. THE PARTIES ARE URGED TO:
1. SEEK ADVICE OF COUNSEL AS TO THE LEGAL AND TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THIS SUBLEASE.
2. RETAIN APPROPRIATE CONSULTANTS TO REVIEW AND INVESTIGATE THE CONDITION OF THE PREMISES. SAID INVESTIGATION SHOULD INCLUDE BUT NOT BE
LIMITED TO: THE POSSIBLE PRESENCE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES, THE ZONING OF THE PROPERTY, THE STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY, THE CONDITION OF THE ROOF
ANDOPERATING SYSTEMS, AND THE SUITABILITY OF THE PREMISES FOR SUBLESSEE'S INTENDED USE.

WARNING: IF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN A STATE OTHER THAN CALIFORNIA, CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE SUBLEASE MAY NEED TOBE REVISED TO
COMPLYWITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE IN WHICH THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED.

As an independently owned and operated member of Colliers, Colliers Tingey International, Inc. is

48

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



solely responsible for any liability from this agreement.
Executed At:
On:

By Sublessor:
Pro Ag Management, Inc., an Illinois

Corporation

By:
Name Printed: Alexander Ludlow
Title: Vice President & Secretary
Phone: 713-996-1219
Fax: 800-852-4497
Email: dpound@proag.com (Debbie Pound)

By:
Name Printed:
Title:
Phone:
Fax:
Email:

Address: 13403 Northeast Freeway, Houston, TX
77040
Federal ID No.:

Executed At: Clovis, CA
On:

By Sublessee:
City of Clovis, a California Municipal

Corporation

By:
Name Printed: John Holt
Title: City Manager
Phone:
Fax:
Email:

By:
Name Printed:
Title:
Phone:
Fax:
Email:

Address: 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612
Federal ID No.:

BROKER
Savills and Colliers Tingey International,

Inc

A n: Mike Catalano/Bobby Fena, SIOR
Title: Vice Chairman/SVP & Principal

Address: 7485 N. Palm Avenue, Suite 110,
Fresno, CA 93711
Phone: 559-221-1271
Fax: 559-222-8744
Email: bobby.fena@colliers.com
Federal ID No.:
Broker DRE License #: Colliers: 00452468
Agent DRE License #: BF: 00590204

BROKER
Colliers Tingey International, Inc.

A n: Bobby Fena, SIOR
Title: SVP & Principal

Address: 7485 N. Palm Avenue, Suite 110,
Fresno, CA 93711
Phone: 559-221-1271
Fax: 559-222-8744
Email: bobby.fena@colliers.com
Federal ID No.:
Broker DRE License #: 00452468
Agent DRE License #: 00590204

Consent to the above Sublease is hereby given.

Executed At:
Executed On:

ByMaster Lessor:
Jamison Family Community Property Trust

established by the Jamison Family Trust
dated March 17, 2013, William O. Jamison
and Cinda L. Jamison, husband and wife, as
community property and Elizabeth Anne
Cardoza, a married woman as her sole and
separate property.

By:
Name Printed: William O. Jamison
Title: Co-Trustee
Phone: 559-240-5586
Fax:
Email:

By:
Name Printed: Cinda L. Jamison
Title: Co-Trustee
Phone:
Fax:
Email:

By ______________________________

Name Printed: Elizabeth Anne Cardoza

Title: Owner

Phone: 559-999-9510

Executed At:
Executed On:

By Guarantor:

By:
Name Printed:
Title:
Address:

By:
Name Printed:
Title:
Address:

49

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



Address:
Federal ID No.:

AIR CRE * h ps://www.aircre.com * 213-687-8777 * contracts@aircre.com
NOTICE: No part of these works may be reproduced in any formwithout permission in wri ng.

50

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



DISCLOSURE REGARDING REAL ESTATE AGENCY RELATIONSHIP
(As required by the Civil Code)

When you enter into a discussion with a real estate agent regarding a real estate transac on, you should from the outset understand what type of agency rela onship
or representa on youwish to have with the agent in the transac on.

SELLER'S AGENT
A Seller's agent under a lis ng agreement with the Seller acts as the agent for the Seller only. A Seller's agent or a subagent of that agent has the following affirma ve
obliga ons:
To the Seller: A fiduciary duty of utmost care, integrity, honesty and loyalty in dealings with the Seller.
To the Buyer and the Seller:

(a) Diligent exercise of reasonable skill and care in performance of the agent's du es.
(b) A duty of honest and fair dealing and good faith.

(c) A duty to disclose all facts known to the agentmaterially affec ng the value or desirability of the property that are not known to, or within the diligent a en on
and observa on of, the par es.

An agent is not obligated to reveal to either party any confiden al informa on obtained from the other party that does not involve the affirma ve du es set
forth above.

BUYER'S AGENT
A Buyer's agent can, with a Buyer's consent, agree to act as agent for the Buyer only. In these situa ons, the agent is not the Seller's agent, even if by agreement the
agentmay receive compensa on for services rendered, either in full or in part from the Seller. An agent ac ng only for a Buyer has the following affirma ve
obliga ons:
To the Buyer: A fiduciary duty of utmost care, integrity, honesty and loyalty in dealings with the Buyer.
To the Buyer and the Seller:

(a) Diligent exercise of reasonable skill and care in performance of the agent's du es.
(b) A duty of honest and fair dealing and good faith.
(c) A duty to disclose all facts known to the agentmaterially affec ng the value or desirability of the property that are not known to, or within the diligent

a en on and observa on of, the par es.
An agent is not obligated to reveal to either party any confiden al informa on obtained from the other party that does not involve the affirma ve du es set forth
above.

AGENT REPRESENTING BOTH SELLER AND BUYER
A real estate agent, either ac ng directly or through one or more salesperson and broker associates, can legally be the agent of both the Seller and the Buyer in a
transac on, but only with the knowledge and consent of both the Seller and the Buyer.
In a dual agency situa on, the agent has the following affirma ve obliga ons to both the Seller and the Buyer:

(a) A fiduciary duty of utmost care, integrity, honesty and loyalty in the dealings with either the Seller or the Buyer.
(b) Other du es to the Seller and the Buyer as stated above in their respec ve sec ons.

In represen ng both Seller and Buyer, a dual agent may not, without the express permission of the respec ve party, disclose to the other party confiden al
informa on, including, but not limited to, facts rela ng to either the Buyer's or Seller's financial posi on, mo va ons, bargaining posi on, or other personal
informa on that may impact price, including the Seller's willingness to accept a price less than the lis ng price or the Buyer's willingness to pay a price greater than
the price offered.

SELLER AND BUYER RESPONSIBILITIES
Either the purchase agreement or a separate document will contain a confirma on of which agent is represen ng you and whether that agent is represen ng you
exclusively in the transac on or ac ng as a dual agent. Please pay a en on to that confirma on to make sure it accurately reflects your understanding of your agent's
role. The above du es of the agent in a real estate transac on do not relieve a Seller or Buyer from the responsibility to protect his or her own interests. You should
carefully read all agreements to assure that they adequately express your understanding of the transac on. A real estate agent is a person qualified to advise about
real estate. If legal or tax advice is desired, consult a competent professional. If you are a Buyer, you have the duty to exercise reasonable care to protect yourself,
including as to those facts about the property which are known to you or within your diligent a en on and observa on. Both Sellers and Buyers should strongly
consider obtaining tax advice from a competent professional because the federal and state tax consequences of a transac on can be complex and subject to change.
Throughout your real property transac on you may receive more than one disclosure form, depending upon the number of agents assis ng in the transac on. The
law requires each agent with whom you have more than a casual rela onship to present you with this disclosure form. You should read its contents each me it is
presented to you, considering the rela onship between you and the real estate agent in your specific transac on. This disclosure form includes the provisions of
Sec ons 2079.13 to 2079.24, inclusive, of the Civil Code set forth on page 2. Read it carefully. I/WE ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS DISCLOSURE AND
THE PORTIONS OF THE CIVIL CODE PRINTED ON THE BACK (OR A SEPARATE PAGE).

Buyer Seller
SubLessor

Lessee
Date:

Buyer Seller Lessor Sub
Lessee Date:

Agent: Colliers Tingey International, Inc. DRE Lic. #: 00452468
Real Estate Broker (Firm)

By: DRE Lic. #: 00590204 Date:

(Salesperson or Broker-Associate)Bobby Fena,
SIOR

Broker: Savills

By _________________
Mike Catalano

Date: __________
THIS FORM HAS BEEN PREPARED BY AIR CRE. NO REPRESENTATION ISMADE AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS FORM FOR ANY SPECIFIC
TRANSACTION. PLEASE SEEK LEGAL COUNSEL AS TO THE APPROPRIATENESS OF THIS FORM.

51

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



DISCLOSURE REGARDINGREAL ESTATE AGENCY RELATIONSHIP
CIVIL CODESECTIONS 2079.13 THROUGH 2079.24 (2079.16 APPEARS ONTHE FRONT)

2079.13. As used in Sec ons 2079.7 and 2079.14 to 2079.24, inclusive, the following terms have the following meanings:
(a) “Agent” means a person ac ng under provisions of Title 9 (commencing with Sec on 2295) in a real property transac on, and includes a person who is licensed as
a real estate broker under Chapter 3 (commencing with Sec on 10130) of Part 1 of Division 4 of the Business and Professions Code, and under whose license a lis ng
is executed or an offer to purchase is obtained. The agent in the real property transac on bears responsibility for that agent's salespersons or broker associates who
perform as agents of the agent. When a salesperson or broker associate owes a duty to any principal, or to any buyer or seller who is not a principal, in a real property
transac on, that duty is equivalent to the duty owed to that party by the broker for whom the salesperson or broker associate func ons. (b) “Buyer” means a
transferee in a real property transac on, and includes a person who executes an offer to purchase real property from a seller through an agent, or who seeks the
services of an agent in more than a casual, transitory, or preliminary manner, with the object of entering into a real property transac on. “Buyer” includes vendee or
lessee of real property. (c) “Commercial real property” means all real property in the state, except (1) single-family residen al real property, (2) dwelling units made
subject to Chapter 2 (commencing with Sec on 1940) of Title 5, (3) a mobile home, as defined in Sec on 798.3, (4) vacant land, or (5) a recrea onal vehicle, as
defined in Sec on 799.29. (d) “Dual agent” means an agent ac ng, either directly or through a salesperson or broker associate, as agent for both the seller and the
buyer in a real property transac on. (e) “Lis ng agreement” means a wri en contract between a seller of real property and an agent, by which the agent has been
authorized to sell the real property or to find or obtain a buyer, including rendering other services for which a real estate license is required to the seller pursuant to
the terms of the agreement. (f) “Seller's agent” means a person who has obtained a lis ng of real property to act as an agent for compensa on. (g) “Lis ng price” is
the amount expressed in dollars specified in the lis ng for which the seller is willing to sell the real property through the seller's agent. (h) “Offering price” is the
amount expressed in dollars specified in an offer to purchase for which the buyer is willing to buy the real property. (i) “Offer to purchase” means a wri en contract
executed by a buyer ac ng through a buyer's agent that becomes the contract for the sale of the real property upon acceptance by the seller. (j) “Real property”
means any estate specified by subdivision (1) or (2) of Sec on 761 in property, and includes (1) single-family residen al property, (2) mul -unit residen al property
with more than four dwelling units, (3) commercial real property, (4) vacant land, (5) a ground lease coupled with improvements, or (6) a manufactured home as
defined in Sec on 18007 of the Health and Safety Code, or a mobile home as defined in Sec on 18008 of the Health and Safety Code, when offered for sale or sold
through an agent pursuant to the authority contained in Sec on 10131.6 of the Business and Professions Code. (k) “Real property transac on” means a transac on for
the sale of real property in which an agent is retained by a buyer, seller, or both a buyer and seller to act in that transac on, and includes a lis ng or an offer to
purchase. (l) “Sell,” “sale,” or “sold” refers to a transac on for the transfer of real property from the seller to the buyer and includes exchanges of real property
between the seller and buyer, transac ons for the crea on of a real property sales contract within the meaning of Sec on 2985, and transac ons for the crea on of a
leasehold exceeding one year's dura on. (m) “Seller” means the transferor in a real property transac on and includes an owner who lists real property with an agent,
whether or not a transfer results, or who receives an offer to purchase real property of which he or she is the owner from an agent on behalf of another. “Seller”
includes both a vendor and a lessor of real property. (n) “Buyer's agent” means an agent who represents a buyer in a real property transac on.

2079.14. A seller's agent and buyer's agent shall provide the seller and buyer in a real property transac on with a copy of the disclosure form specified in Sec on
2079.16, and shall obtain a signed acknowledgment of receipt from that seller and buyer, except as provided in Sec on 2079.15, as follows: (a) The seller's agent, if
any, shall provide the disclosure form to the seller prior to entering into the lis ng agreement. (b) The buyer's agent shall provide the disclosure form to the buyer as
soon as prac cable prior to execu on of the buyer's offer to purchase. If the offer to purchase is not prepared by the buyer's agent, the buyer's agent shall present the
disclosure form to the buyer not later than the next business day a er receiving the offer to purchase from the buyer.

2079.15. In any circumstance in which the seller or buyer refuses to sign an acknowledgment of receipt pursuant to Sec on 2079.14, the agent shall set forth, sign,
and date awri en declara on of the facts of the refusal.

2079.16 Reproduced on Page 1 of this AD form.

2079.17(a) As soon as prac cable, the buyer's agent shall disclose to the buyer and seller whether the agent is ac ng in the real property transac on as the buyer's
agent, or as a dual agent represen ng both the buyer and the seller. This rela onship shall be confirmed in the contract to purchase and sell real property or in a
separate wri ng executed or acknowledged by the seller, the buyer, and the buyer's agent prior to or coincident with execu on of that contract by the buyer and the
seller, respec vely. (b) As soon as prac cable, the seller's agent shall disclose to the seller whether the seller's agent is ac ng in the real property transac on as the
seller's agent, or as a dual agent represen ng both the buyer and seller. This rela onship shall be confirmed in the contract to purchase and sell real property or in a
separatewri ng executed or acknowledged by the seller and the seller's agent prior to or coincident with the execu on of that contract by the seller.
(C) CONFIRMATION: The following agency rela onships are confirmed for this transac on.

Seller's Brokerage Firm DO NOT COMPLETE, SAMPLE ONLY License Number
Is the broker of (check one):  the seller; or  both the buyer and seller. (dual agent)
Seller's Agent DO NOT COMPLETE, SAMPLE ONLY License Number
Is (check one):  the Seller's Agent. (salesperson or broker associate); or both the Buyer's Agent and the Seller's Agent. (dual agent)
Buyer's Brokerage Firm DO NOT COMPLETE, SAMPLE ONLY License Number
Is the broker of (check one):  the buyer; or  both the buyer and seller. (dual agent)
Buyer's Agent DO NOT COMPLETE, SAMPLE ONLY License Number
Is (check one):  the Buyer's Agent. (salesperson or broker associate); or both the Buyer's Agent and the Seller's Agent. (dual agent)

(d) The disclosures and confirma on required by this sec on shall be in addi on to the disclosure required by Sec on 2079.14. An agent's duty to provide disclosure
and confirma on of representa on in this sec on may be performed by a real estate salesperson or broker associate affiliated with that broker.

2079.18 (Repealed pursuant to AB-1289, 2017-18 California Legisla ve session)

2079.19 The payment of compensa on or the obliga on to pay compensa on to an agent by the seller or buyer is not necessarily determina ve of a par cular agency
rela onship between an agent and the seller or buyer. A lis ng agent and a selling agent may agree to share any compensa on or commission paid, or any right to any
compensa on or commission for which an obliga on arises as the result of a real estate transac on, and the terms of any such agreement shall not necessarily be
determina ve of a par cular rela onship.

2079.20Nothing in this ar cle prevents an agent from selec ng, as a condi on of the agent's employment, a specific form of agency rela onship not specifically
prohibited by this ar cle if the requirements of Sec on 2079.14 and Sec on 2079.17 are complied with.

2079.21 (a) A dual agent may not, without the express permission of the seller, disclose to the buyer any confiden al informa on obtained from the seller. (b) A dual
agentmay not, without the express permission of the buyer, disclose to the seller any confiden al informa on obtained from the buyer. (c) “Confiden al informa on”
means facts rela ng to the client's financial posi on, mo va ons, bargaining posi on, or other personal informa on that may impact price, such as the seller is willing
to accept a price less than the lis ng price or the buyer is willing to pay a price greater than the price offered. (d) This sec on does not alter in any way the duty or
responsibility of a dual agent to any principal with respect to confiden al informa on other than price.

2079.22Nothing in this ar cle precludes a seller's agent from also being a buyer's agent. If a seller or buyer in a transac on chooses to not be represented by an
agent, that does not, of itself, make that agent a dual agent.

2079.23 (a) A contract between the principal and agent may be modified or altered to change the agency rela onship at any me before the performance of the act
which is the object of the agency with the wri en consent of the par es to the agency rela onship. (b) A lender or an auc on company retained by a lender to
control aspects of a transac on of real property subject to this part, including valida ng the sales price, shall not require, as a condi on of receiving the lender's
approval of the transac on, the homeowner or lis ng agent to defend or indemnify the lender or auc on company from any liability alleged to result from the ac ons
of the lender or auc on company. Any clause, provision, covenant, or agreement purpor ng to impose an obliga on to defend or indemnify a lender or an auc on
company in viola on of this subdivision is against public policy, void, and unenforceable.

2079.24Nothing in this ar cle shall be construed to either diminish the duty of disclosure owed buyers and sellers by agents and their associate licensees, subagents,
and employees or to relieve agents and their associate licensees, subagents, and employees from liability for their conduct in connec onwith acts governed by this
ar cle or for any breach of a fiduciary duty or a duty of disclosure.

AIR CRE * h ps://www.aircre.com * 213-687-8777 * contracts@aircre.com
NOTICE: No part of these works may be reproduced in any formwithout permission in wri ng.

52

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



53

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



54

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



55

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



56

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



57

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



58

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



59

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



60

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



61

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



62

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



63

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



64

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



65

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



66

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



67

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



68

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



69

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



70

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



71

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



72

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



73

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



74

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



75

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



  

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SITE PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

76

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



  

EXHIBIT “B” 

FLOOR PLAN 

1625 Shaw Avenue, Suite101 

Rentable sf – 5,078 sf  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lessor’s Initials        Sublessee’s Initials 

________/________        ________/________ 

 

Broker's Initials        Broker's Initials 

________/________        ________/________ 

77

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



  

EXHIBIT "C" 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
1. No sign, placard, picture, advertisement, name or notice shall be inscribed, displayed or printed or affixed on 

or to any part of the outside of the building without the written consent of Lessor first had and obtained and 

Lessor shall have the right to remove any such sign, placard, picture, advertisement, name or notice without 

notice to and at the expense of Sublessee. 

 

 All approved signs or lettering on doors shall be printed, painted, affixed or inscribed at the expense of 

Sublessee by a person approved of by Lessor. 

 

Sublessee shall not place anything or allow anything to be placed near the glass or any window, door, partition 

or wall which may appear unsightly from outside the Premises; provided, however, that Lessor may furnish 

and install a Building standard window covering at all exterior windows. Sublessee shall not without prior 

written consent of Lessor cause or otherwise sunscreen any window. 

 

2. The sidewalks, halls, passages, exits, entrances, elevators and stairways shall not be obstructed by any of the 

Sublessees or used by them for any purpose other than for ingress and egress from their respective Premises. 

 

3. Sublessee shall not alter any lock or install any new or additional locks or any bolts on any doors or windows 

of the Premises without first obtaining Lessor’s consent. 

 

4. The toilet rooms, urinals, wash bowls and other apparatus shall not be used for any purpose other than that for 

which they were constructed and no foreign substance of any kind whatsoever shall be thrown therein and the 

expense of any breakage, stoppage or damage resulting from the violation of this rule shall be borne by the 

Sublessee who, or whose employees or invitees shall have caused it. 

 

5. Sublessee shall not overload the floor of the Premises or in any way deface the Premises or any part thereof. 

 

6. Sublessee shall not use, keep or permit to be used or kept any foul or noxious gas or substance in the Premises, 

or permit or suffer the Premises to be occupied or used In a manner offensive or objectionable to the Lessor or 

other occupants of the Building by reason of noise, odors and/or vibrations, or interfere in any way with other 

Sublessees or those having business therein, nor shall any animals or birds be brought in or kept in or about the 

Premises or the Building. 

 

7. No major commercial cooking shall be done or permitted by any Sublessee on the Premises, nor shall the 

Premises be used for the storage of merchandise, for washing clothes, for lodging, or for any improper, 

objectionable or immoral purposes.  Microwave cooking is allowed. 

 

8. Sublessee shall not use or keep in the Premises or the Building any kerosene, gasoline or inflammable or 

combustible fluid or material, or use any method of heating or air conditioning other than that supplied by 

Lessor. 

 

 9. Lessor will direct electricians as to where and how telephone, computer or fiber optic wiring is to be 

introduced. No boring or cutting for wires will be allowed without the consent of the Lessor.  

 

10. Lessor reserves the right to exclude or expel from the Building any person who, in the judgment of Lessor, is 

intoxicated or under the influence of liquor or drugs, or who shall, in any manner, do any act in violation of 

any of the rules and regulations of the Building. 

 

11. No vending machine or machines of any description shall be installed, maintained or operated upon the 

Premises without the written consent of the Lessor. 

 

12. Sublessee shall not disturb, solicit, or canvass any occupant of the building and shall cooperate to prevent 

same. 

 

13. Without the written consent of Lessor, Sublessee shall not use the name of the Building in connection with or 

in promoting or advertising the business of Sublessee except as Sublessee's address. 

 

14. Lessor shall have the right to control and operate the public portions of the Building, and the public facilities, 

and heating and air conditioning, as well as facilities furnished for the common use of the Sublessees, in such 

manner, as it deems best for the benefit of the Sublessees generally. 

 

15. All entrance doors in the Premises shall be left locked when the Premises are not in use, and all doors opening 

to public corridors shall be kept closed except for normal ingress and egress from the Premises. 

78

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



  

ADDENDUMS TO LEASE 

 
14. Rent Schedule: 

Month 1-12:  $9,648.00/mo., NNN  

Month 13-23:  $9,953.00/mo., NNN    

 

       15. Option to Extend: 

Providing that Sublessee is not in default of its sublease with Sublessor, Master Lessor, as part of its 

consent to the proposed Sublease Agreement, agrees to provide Sublessee with options to enter into a 

direct lease with Master Lessor and remain in the Building for three consecutive one (1) year periods 

(or longer terms if desired between the parties). If  Sublessee elects to exercise the options, Sublessee 

will agree to provide Master Lessor with at  least six (6) months written notice prior to the current 

expiration Sublessor’s lease term, or the expiration date of the subsequent one year extensions. If 

Sublessee exercises its option to extend as described above, then Master Lessor agrees to draft a new 

lease agreement, effective June 1, 2025, between Master Lessor and the City of Clovis as a direct 

Sublessee. The rental rate for each extension option shall be renegotiated  between the parties and 

mutually agreed upon, based upon the current fair market rental rates for professional office space in 

the Clovis submarket area at that time. 

 

       16. Existing Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment (F.F.&E.): 

Per the lease between Sublessor and Lessor, Sublessor has a right to utilize all of the FF&E that is 

owned by Lessor, presently located in the Premises. Sublessor also owns a portion of the FF&E in the 

Premises (defined herein as the “FF&E”). Sublessor shall allow Sublessee to utilize the FF&E at  no 

additional cost to Sublessee. Sublessee, at Sublessee’s expense, agrees to maintain and or repair any 

damage caused by Sublessee to said FF&E, throughout the Sublease Term. 

 

       17. Interior Improvements: 

In conjunction with the base rent schedule described above, Sublessor, at Sublessor’s expense, agrees 

to provide Sublessee with the following: 

 

1. Ensure that all Building Operating Systems such as HVAC, lighting, electrical, ceiling, fire 

sprinklers & plumbing, and shall be in proper working order upon Sublessee’s occupancy 

within the Premises. 

2. The space shall be professionally cleaned, including all existing floor coverings, prior to 

Sublessee’s occupancy within the Premises. 

3. Install three (3) full height doors, matching the other private office doors within the suite. 

These shall be installed in the three private offices marked as “Existing Furniture”, in red on 

the attached Exhibit “B” Floor Plan. 

 

AGREED & ACCEPTED: 

 

“SUBSUBLESSEE”     “SUBLESSOR” 

City of Clovis, a California Municipal  Pro Ag Management, Inc., an Illinois 

Corporation      Corporation 

   

By:           By: ______________________________ 

 John Holt, City Manager    Alexander Ludlow 

        Vice President & Secretary 

 

Executed     _____  Executed: ___________________________  

 

 

“MASTER LESSOR” 

Jamison Family Community Property Trust Corporation 

 

By:            

 William O. Jamison, Co-Trustee    

         

By: _____________________________ 

 Cinda L. Jamison, Co-Trustee 

 

By: _____________________________ 

 Elizabeth Anne Cardoza 

Executed     _____    

79

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



  

COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY DISCLOSURES  

(COMMERCIAL LEASE) 

COLLIERS TINGEY INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
 

Property Address:  1625 Shaw Avenue, Clovis, CA 

SubSublessee:  City of Clovis, a California Municipal Corporation 

Broker:   Colliers International 

 

The purpose of this document is to explain the limited scope of Colliers Tingey International, 

Inc.’s (“Colliers Tingey”) and Savills Studley (“SS”) duties and responsibilities to Sublessee, as well as 

provide certain disclosures related to this commercial lease transaction: 

1. Scope of Duties.  Sublessee hereby acknowledges and agrees that 

Colliers Tingey/SS: (i) does not decide what rent Sublessee should pay or the rent Lessor should accept as rent 

for the Property; (ii) does not guarantee the condition of the Property; (iii) does not guarantee the performance, 

adequacy or completeness of inspections, services, products or repairs provided or made by the Lessor or any 

other third parties; (iv) does not have an obligation to conduct an inspection of the Property; (v) shall not be 

responsible for identifying defects on the Property; (vi) shall not be responsible for verifying square footage, 

representations of others or information contained in investigation reports, advertisements, flyers or other 

promotional material; (vii) shall not be responsible for providing legal, tax or financial advice regarding any 

aspect of a transaction entered into by Sublessee and the Lessor; and (viii) shall not be responsible for 

providing other advice or information that exceeds the knowledge, education and experience required to 

perform real estate licensed activity.  Sublessee agrees to seek legal, tax, insurance, title, financial and other 

desired assistance from appropriate professionals.   

2. Sublessee  to Obtain Inspections.  Sublessee is responsible to have 

the Property thoroughly inspected and is responsible to ask its experts what investigations and evaluations may 

be appropriate, as well as the risks of not performing any such investigations or evaluations. 

3. Earthquake Safety.  Earthquakes occur throughout California.  

Colliers Tingey/SS owes no duty to inspect for earthquake weaknesses, or geological or seismic hazards.  

Tenant acknowledges receipt of a copy of “The Commercial Property Owner’s Guide to Earthquake Safety.”  

Colliers Tingey/SS is not required to provide Sublessee with any information concerning earthquake safety or 

other related issues.  Sublessee should have its experts confirm whether the Property is in any earthquake zone 

and otherwise investigate and evaluate these matters. 

4. Flood Zones.  The Property may or may not be located in a flood 

zone.  Whether or not the Property is located in a flood zone, properties can be subject to flooding and 

moisture problems, especially properties on a slope or in low-lying areas or in a dam inundation zone.  

Sublessee should have its experts confirm whether the Property is in a flood zone and otherwise investigate and 

evaluate these matters.   

5. Hazardous Materials/Underground Storage Tanks.  The Property 

may have hazardous or undesirable metals (including lead-based paint), minerals (including asbestos), 

chemicals, hydrocarbons, petroleum-related compounds, or biological or radioactive/emissive items (including 

electrical and magnetic fields) in soils, water, building components, above or below-ground tanks/containers or 

elsewhere in areas that may or may not be accessible or noticeable.  Such items may leak or otherwise be 

released.  Asbestos has been used in items such as fireproofing, heating/cooling systems, insulation, spray-on 

and tile acoustical materials, floor tiles and coverings, roofing, drywall and plaster.  Sublessee should have its 

experts investigate and evaluate these matters. 

6. Fires.  The Property may be located within a high fire risk hazard 

zone or wildland zone that the state does not have responsibility to provide fire protection services to and may 

contain substantial fire risks.  Sublessee should have its experts confirm the Property’s fire risks and otherwise 

investigate and evaluate these matters.   

7. Mold.  Colliers Tingey/SS is not qualified to advise Sublessee on the 

existence of any mold on or near the Property or the health and safety risks related to mold exposure. Sublessee 

is encouraged to obtain the services of a qualified and experienced professional to conduct inspections and 

tests regarding any and all mold issues which may affect the Property.   Sublessee hereby acknowledges and 

agrees that Colliers Tingey/SS is not responsible for any required remediation and/or any resulting damages 

related to mold.   

8. Zoning/Licenses/Permits.  Sublessee is solely responsible to ascertain 

whether the Property is suitable for its intended use and to obtain any necessary permits or licenses related to 

the Property.  Colliers Tingey/SS recommends that Sublessee obtain written confirmation regarding the status 

of the Property from any and all appropriate zoning and licensing agencies.  Sublessee should have its experts 

review any and all zoning, licensing and permit issues.   

80

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



  

9. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  The Americans With 

Disabilities Act and other federal, state and local requirements may require changes to the Property.  Sublessee 

should have its experts investigate and evaluate these matters. 

10. Mandatory Accessibility Disclosure for Commercial Leases.  

Pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1938, each lease or rental agreement for commercial property 

executed on or after July 1, 2013 must state whether the property being leased or rented has undergone 

inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (CASp), and, if so, whether the property has or has not been 

determined to meet all applicable construction-related accessibility standards.  Sublessee should have its 

experts investigate and evaluate these matters. 

11. Taxes.  Sales, leases and other real estate transactions can have federal, 

state and local tax consequences.   Sublessee should have its experts investigate and evaluate these matters. 

12. Energy Use Disclosure for Commercial Leases.  Pursuant to the 

California Nonresidential Building Energy Use Disclosure Program (AB1103), owners of nonresidential 

buildings must obtain and disclose, prior to any lease or lease renewal of the entire building, the energy use 

data for the building for the prior twelve (12) months, together with information regarding the building’s 

operating characteristics and ENERGY STAR Performance Score. Disclosure is required to be made to the 

prospective or existing Sublessee no later than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the execution of a lease or lease 

renewal. This disclosure is required for entire buildings with a total gross floor area of Ten Thousand (10,000) 

square feet or more until December 31, 2015.  After that date, AB 1103 has been replaced and there is no 

statewide energy use disclosure requirement in 2016. This requirement does not apply to leases of less than the 

entire building. Sublessee should have its experts investigate and evaluate these matters. 

13. Verify Third Party Information.  Any and all information regarding 

the Property supplied by Colliers Tingey/SS has been received from third party sources and has not been 

independently verified or analyzed by Colliers Tingey/SS.  It is strongly recommended that Sublessee and its 

experts verify and analyze all information regarding the Property, including any linear or area measurements 

and the availability of all utilities.  All work should be inspected and evaluated by Sublessee and Sublessee’s 

experts.  Colliers Tingey/SS and its brokers are not experts (nor can they determine if any expert is qualified) 

to provide advice on legal, tax, design, ADA, engineering, construction, soils, title, survey, fire/life safety, 

insurance, hazardous materials, or other matters.  These areas require special education and, generally, special 

licenses not possessed by Colliers Tingey/SS.  Sublessee is responsible to consult with its experts regarding 

these matters.  Further, any opinions or other comments which may be provided by Colliers Tingey/SS 

regarding the Property shall not be relied on by Sublessee.  Sublessee is responsible for gathering and 

evaluating the information regarding the Property and making an appropriate investment decision.  Sublessee 

understands that there is risk associated with any investment decision. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO: 

City of Fresno 

 

Sublessee:_____________________________________  Date:________________ 

  John Holt, City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

81

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Administration – Approval – Waive Formal Bidding Requirements and 
Authorize a Service Contract with The Lew Edwards Group to Conduct 
Polling and Feasibility Analysis of Revenue Options for $49,400.   
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. The Lew Edwards Group Proposal 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to waive the City’s formal bidding requirements and authorize a service 
contract with The Lew Edwards Group to conduct polling and feasibility analysis of revenue 
options for $49,400.   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
On April 3, 2023, City Council directed staff to include funds in the 2023-24 Budget for a 
consultant to conduct polling and a feasibility analysis for a potential measure that would 
increase revenues for the City.  There are a limited number of qualified consultants with the 
needed expertise and experience in Clovis and the region.  Staff reviewed proposals from two 
pollsters and only found one consultant that would fully analyze feasibility based on the polling 
work.  Due to the limited pool of consultants, a bid-based process was not feasible. Based on 
this, staff is recommending City Council to waive the City’s formal bidding requirements and 
authorize a contract with The Lew Edwards Group to conduct polling and feasibility analysis of 
revenue options for $49,400 as per Section IV.C. of the City’s Purchasing Manual. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On February 13, 2023, the Clovis Police Department provided City Council an update on the 
department. It was the consensus of the Council to place an item on the agenda to discuss 
funding options to be considered for a future election.  In November 2021, the Clovis Police 
Department provided City Council a state of the department update noting the shortage of 

82

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



staffing in the Police Department. Over the next six months, the Council appointed a 25 member 
Citizens’ Advisory Committee that met and provided Council feedback and recommendations.  
 
A joint meeting was held between the Clovis City Council and the Citizens Advisory Committee 
on April 6, 2022.  At that meeting, Chair Chris Casado and Vice Chair Greg Newman presented 
the findings of the Committee to Council. In summary: a majority of the Committee did not feel 
that the current Clovis Police Department staffing and funding is adequate for Clovis to remain 
the safest city in the Valley; a majority of the Committee agree that additional sworn police 
officers are needed over the next five years; and a majority of the Committee agreed that if an 
increase in services and resources is pursued, it should be funded by some form of tax increase 
ballot measure. In 2022, City Council placed Measure B on the November ballot to increase the 
Transient Occupancy Tax from 10% to 12%.  Measure B was approved by the voters with over 
two-thirds support generating an additional $500,000 - $800,000 per year going forward.  
 
On April 3, 2023, Council directed staff to include $200,000 in funds in the 2023-24 Budget for 
a consultant to conduct polling and a feasibility analysis for a potential measure that would 
increase revenues for the City. Staff has conducted outreach with other agencies to determine 
potential firms to conduct the task.  Two polling firms were identified and a consultant that 
specializes in the analysis of the polling that came as highly recommended. Staff interviewed 
the firms and proposals were submitted.  Based on the interviews and the proposals submitted, 
the proposal from The Lew Edwards Group for $49,400 is recommended to be selected.  The 
firm has deep and successful experience in the region and across the State of California on a 
variety of measures.  Due to the limited number of firms, a waiver is required as per Section 
IV.C. of the City’s Purchasing Manual. The balance of the funds remaining will be available for 
any additional analysis or services needed to achieve Council direction.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funds were included in the proposed 2023-2024 City Council budget.  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Lew Edwards Group has submitted a proposal that will meet and exceed the Council’s 
direction on April 3, 2023.  Due to the limited consultants in the market, an approval of waiving 
the purchasing guidelines is required.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The City Manager will execute the contract and work will begin July 1, 2023, with a goal of 
returning to Council in September of 2023 with the analysis. 

 
Prepared by: Andrew Haussler, Assistant City Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH 

 

83

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



Proposal to Conduct Polling and 

Analysis on a Potential 2024 Local 

Funding Measure 
City of Clovis 

Contact: Catherine Lew, President (Lead Consultant) 

The Lew Edwards Group, 5454 Broadway, Oakland CA 94618 

510-594-0224 x 261

ATTACHMENT 1
84

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

May 30, 2023  921-6711 FINAL 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

85

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 1 

May 30, 2023 

Assistant City Manager  Andy Haussler 
City of Clovis 
1033 Fifth Street 
Clovis, CA  93612 

Dear Andy: 

Thank you for reaching out to The Lew Edwards Group (LEG) to potentially assist you on the City’s 2023-2024 
Polling Analysis needs.  As we discussed, the City of Clovis was one of the first agencies to reach out to LEG when 
we opened.  Working with the City, LEG’s success in enacting  Measure A resulted in one of the first enactments 
of its type in the Central Valley, transforming the City’s public safety services and setting the stage for countless 
others in the Valley to present similar measures to their communities with LEG’s support  – thank you!  
  
This is a joint proposal from LEG and FM3 Research (FM3), LEG’s long-standing opinion research partner.  A third 

collaboration with the LEG/FM3 Team provides the City of Clovis with: 

✓ The inclusion of a nationally recognized, award-winning Lead Consultant with demonstrated success in 

the City of Clovis –LEG is a proven California leader in revenue ballot measures, having enacted over $41 

Billion with a 95% success rate; 

 

✓ A Lead Consultant with significant institutional knowledge and perspectives on the City, its local dynamics, 

demographic shifts, and factors affecting viability in 2024 with experience enacting measures for the 

County of Fresno and the cities of Kingsburg, Reedley, Selma, and Sanger among others;  

 

✓ The same team of Lead Consultant and Opinion Research firms who enacted the City’s Measure A; and  

 

✓ A team that reflects the diversity of your City and the Valley with a hands-on, consensus-building 

management style and focused, enthusiastic, and committed dedication to the City’s needs. 

 

Our team welcomes and is enthusiastic about serving the City once again. 

 

Warmly, 

 

catherine@lewedwardsgroup.com 
510-594-0224 x 261w /510-332-7421m 

86

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.

mailto:catherine@lewedwardsgroup.com


 

 Page 2 

KEY CONSIDERATIONS 

The City’s retention of a Lead Consultant at the initiation of efforts ensures a solid team in place that includes 

significant institutional knowledge of the City of Clovis, the greater Central and San Joaquin valleys, and most 

importantly, the statewide, regional, and local dynamics potentially facing the City as it contemplates its local 

funding and potential ballot measure options going into 2024.  

External Dynamics Potentially Affecting the City’s Planning 
 
It is yet unclear how severe pocketbook issues and voter fears over the economy will be in 2024. If more banks 
collapse or teeter, or more importantly—the cost of living continues to rise, affecting basic groceries and gas, the 
environment will shift downward. 
 
As it is a Presidential Year, additional statewide and regional items on the ballot should be anticipated by the 
City. Any State or regional measures that also ask for money may affect the City’s planning, something to watch 
for in the coming months. 
 
And of course, the Business Roundtable-sponsored Taxpayer Protection Act is currently on the 2024 docket. As 
the City is aware, it has qualified. If there is a request the Roundtable is seeking in exchange for withdrawing their 
measure, as in two years past, that has yet to be determined.  Further,  it is anticipated that proponents are 
targeting regions like the Valley to advance their message—if they persist in doing so as expected, it may very well 
create a polarizing environment in your region in 2024.  
 
These wildcard factors need to be planned for from the start of efforts, which is why LEG will not accept clients 
who have initiated and completed their surveys prior to our onboarding.  It bears noting that LEG’s strongest 
enactment rates have been in crisis years such as the Great Recession, 9/11, the Enron Collapse affecting global 
markets, and COVID.   Sample LEG cycle sheets are included in the Appendix to this Proposal. 

Demographic Shifts in the City of Clovis 

LEG has significant institutional records and files from its past collaborations with the City, an invaluable resource 

for any project moving forward.  For example, the following demographic voter shifts over the past 13 years in 

the City are instructive: 

▪ Total Registered voters have grown by 30,000 – a significant increase.  

▪ The Democratic share of the vote has remained the same. 

▪ The Republican share of the vote has declined by 10 points, and the No Party Preference (NPP) has 

increased by 10, making the views of NPP voters towards any City proposal highly relevant. 

▪ Unlike other cities LEG represents, the City’s age 65+ share has increased by 7 points, a dynamic to be 

considered as this demographic group tends to be less supportive of revenue measures.  Should the City 

choose to proceed with a March measure, this demographic  will constitute 36% of vote share – a 

significant percentage. 

▪ The Latino share of the vote has increased by 10 points, a helpful shift as this is a demographic that tends 

to be more supportive of these types of projects. 

87

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 3 

LEG’s inherent, hands-on understanding of these shifts and historical knowledge of influencer and stakeholder 

positioning on these measures in your region and City will provide strong, nuanced project leadership and framing 

from the initiation of efforts. 

REFRESHER ON THE TEAM 
While LEG and FM3 have previously represented the City, the following are refreshers on our firms for those 
who have not worked with our organizations previously.  LEG/FM3 –both considered California leaders in 
revenue generation—have extensive experience in the broad array of revenue mechanisms available to cities, 
including: 
 

✓ General Purpose and Special Purpose Sales Taxes 
✓ Parcel Taxes 

✓ Utility User Taxes 

✓ Community Facilities Districts 

✓ Prop. 218 Measures for Sewer, Water, Landscape and/or Lighting Measures 

✓ Cannabis Measures 

✓ Transient Occupancy Measures 

✓ Business License Tax Measures 

✓ Joint agency revenue measures, including those requiring enabling legislation or LAFCO involvement 

✓ Special District creation 

✓ Threatened repeals to enacted 218 or voter-approved revenue measures 

Should the City be interested in a sales tax mechanism as one potential option, it bears noting that LEG is the 

California sales tax leader, with 156 enactments.  A sheet of those specific enactments is included in the Appendix 

to this proposal. 

About The Lew Edwards Group  

LEG is a  California corporation co-founded in 1997 by partners Catherine Lew and Lloyd Edwards. LEG is a 

nationally recognized, award-winning company in providing culturally competent communications, revenue 

generation, and strategic services to California public agencies and local governments, having served hundreds of 

them over the past two and a half decades. In 2016 and 2020, the firm had its biggest years ever, enacting 68 

successful measures and campaign projects in each of those two years with 72 taken to the ballot each cycle. In 

the less active 2022 Gubernatorial year, LEG had 66 enactments and wins. On the revenue generation side of its 

practice,  LEG has enacted over $41 Billion with a 95% enactment rate. 

Public agencies constitute more than two-thirds of LEG’s practice and LEG’s core team of seven professionals have 

served LEG’s client needs for years with expertise that includes oversight and analysis of polling, media, social 

media, and Internet communication; coalition building; revenue ballot measure needs; and more. 

Experts from LEG are frequently sought after trainers and speakers for the League of California Cities, California 

Municipal Treasurers Association, California Society of Municipal Finance Officers, Local Government 

88

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 4 

Commission, Institute for Local Governments, Municipal Management Association of Northern California, and 

others. LEG’s direct mail products have been recognized on multiple occasions in the prestigious national Pollie 

Awards, including awards for culturally competent, bilingual communications.  

Besides the City of Clovis, LEG has extensive experience in Fresno County and the greater Central and San Joaquin 

valleys, including successful enactments for, among others: 

✓ City of Arvin  

✓ City of Atwater 

✓ City of Bakersfield   

✓ Central Union High School District 

✓ City of Ceres 

✓ Ceres Unified School District 

✓ City of Chowchilla 

✓ City of Dinuba    

✓ City of Exeter      

✓ County of Fresno  

o Two measures for Fresno Chaffee Zoo 

o One measure for Fresno County Library 

✓ City of Galt 

✓ City of Hollister    

✓ County of Kern 

✓ Kern Community College District 

✓ City of Kingsburg 

✓ City of Lathrop       

✓ Lodi Unified School District 

✓ City of Los Banos   

✓ City of Manteca    

✓ Manteca Unified School District 

✓ City of Merced 

✓ Merced City School District 

✓ City of Porterville    

✓ City of Reedley    

✓ City of Ridgecrest   

✓ Salinas Union High School District 

✓ Spreckels School District 

✓ City of Sanger    

✓ City of Selma     

✓ City of Stockton    

✓ City of Taft 

✓ County of Tulare    

✓ City of Turlock    

89

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 5 

✓ City of Visalia   

✓ City of Wasco    

✓ City of Wheatland     

✓ County of Yuba    

 

About FM3 Research 
FM3 is a recognized leader in conducting survey research that helps California cities, counties, special districts, 
and other jurisdictions objectively evaluate the viability of passing local ballot measures to secure additional 
revenue. As evidence of the accuracy of its research, more than 95% of local revenue measures that have been 
placed before voters by FM3’s clients, under FM3’s advisement, have been approved. Furthermore, election 
results are generally within the margin of error of what FM3 surveys suggest will be the level of support on Election 
Day. 

FM3 has worked successfully in 160+ California cities and other jurisdictions to develop strategies to pass revenue 

measures. FM3’s municipal clients represent a diverse cross-section of large and small cities and other 

jurisdictions, including suburban, urban, and rural communities, in every region of the state of California. In 2022 

alone, FM3 helped more than 50 local governments across California win voter approval to fund important 

services for citizens.  

FM3 is also no stranger to your community or the Fresno County region. In 2008, FM3 conducted two surveys for 

the City regarding a potential new sales tax, and in 1999 its research contributed to the passage of a $15 million 

public safety bond. FM3 has also provided research for the Clovis Unified School District’s three most recent 

successful school construction bond measures—the initial Measure A in March 2004, the second Measure A in 

June 2012, and the third Measure A in November 2020. In Fresno County more broadly, FM3’s research has 

contributed to the successful passage of a variety of local funding measures for various jurisdictions. These include 

several countywide sales taxes; sales taxes in the cities of Reedley, Sanger, and Selma; and a transient occupancy 

tax in the City of Kingsburg. 

Furthermore, FM3 has conducted research on bond measures for nearly every major local school and community 

college district in the County, including Fresno USD (four bonds), Sanger USD (four bonds), Kings Canyon USD, 

Firebaugh-Las Deltas USD, Caruthers USD (two bonds), Clovis USD (three bonds, as previously mentioned), 

Golden Plains USD, Coalinga-Huron JUSD, Fowler USD, and State Center CCD (two bonds).  

90

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 6 

PROJECT TEAM LEADS 

Should the City choose to retain our Team, the following would be your project leads. Each firm would assign a 

second specialist to add value to --not be in lieu of –the direct leadership of the Founding Principals of each firm. 

Catherine Lew, LEG Co-Founder and Senior Consultant – Lead Consultant 

Catherine Lew, Co-Founder and Principal Consultant of The Lew Edwards 

Group, hails from Salinas, California. She is a premier consultant in 

California providing revenue enhancement measure preparation, project 

management, public sector marketing services and political strategy to 

cities, counties, special districts, transportation, K-14 education districts, 

and other public agencies, private sector, and nonprofit clients. 

Lew has over 30 years of experience in the communications and electoral 

arena and is a veteran of more than 800 similar projects, specializing in 

difficult to pass revenue measures. In 2018, she was named by the 

Sacramento Bee as a California Influencer, joining selected statewide 

leaders in politics, policy, and government shaping the election dialogue 

through the Bee/McClatchy news mediums. Lew was the Lead Consultant on Measure A and has represented 

multiple clients throughout the greater Central and  San Joaquin valleys, including the counties of Fresno, Merced, 

Sutter, Tulare, and Yuba; the cities of Arvin, Atwater, Bakersfield, Ceres, Chowchilla, Clovis, Dinuba, Kingsburg, 

Lathrop, Los Banos, Manteca, Porterville, Reedley, Sanger, Selma, Stockton, Taft, Tracy, Visalia, Wasco; the Fresno 

County Fire Protection District; San Joaquin-Delta Community College District; Sierra Kings Healthcare District; and 

the Ceres, Lodi and Manteca unified school districts among many others. 

Lew prides herself on her firm’s excellent service to each LEG client, diverse agencies and organizations that range 

dramatically in size and scope of strategic needs. She has earned a reputation as one of the State’s most effective 

specialists on behalf of local government. 

A graduate of the University of California, Berkeley and the University of San Francisco School of Law, Lew is also 

a member of the California State Bar, ensuring excellent team collaboration with client city attorneys from the 

initiation of efforts, to ensure that all strategies sponsored by public entities are within the bounds of legal 

permissibility. If retained as your Consultant, Catherine will function as Lead Consultant. 

91

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 7 

 

John Fairbank, FM3 Co-Partner 

As a founding partner of Fairbank, Maslin, Maullin, Metz & Associates, John 

Fairbank has 35+ years of experience in public opinion research and policy 

analysis, specializing in ballot measures and advising candidates on national, 

state, and local levels. He has consulted for clients in the areas of government, 

politics, education, business, nonprofits, and labor.  

John has worked in 100+ California cities and counties to secure voter approval 

for billions of dollars in capital improvements and hundreds of millions more in 

ongoing operational funds through both dedicated and general-purpose tax 

measures. Furthermore, John has led nearly every project FM3 has conducted in Fresno County, including each 

of the projects the firm has worked on for the City of Clovis, the Clovis Unified School District and the State Center 

Community College District. His research has also been instrumental in securing the passage of nine countywide 

finance measures in Los Angeles County since 1996. 

John has also worked as a consultant for both business and nonprofit sectors. He has worked for many leading 

companies and organizations including the Walt Disney Company, NBC/Universal, Airbnb, and Mercury 

Insurance. In the nonprofit sector, John has advised such organizations as The Nature Conservancy, the Trust for 

Public Land, the League of California Cities, the California Association of Realtors, California’s Coalition for 

Adequate School Housing (C.A.S.H.), the Building Industry Association of California, and the California School 

Boards Association. 

Education: John graduated from UCLA and serves as a Senior Fellow at the UCLA Luskin School of Public Affairs.  

PROPOSED APPROACH AND ESTIMATED COSTS 

Lead Project Services 

With the input of all participants, LEG will develop meeting agendas and facilitate sessions to support the timely 

execution of this first phase of work commencing with July’s project launch, with the goal of presenting results to 

staff in August and to the City Council in September. 

 

Specifically, LEG’s effective project management is based on the firm’s embrace of an integrated,  multi-

disciplinary professional approach that includes the City Attorney and other Executive Staff identified by you and  

City Manager John Holt, and other assigned professionals. The following are the core issues and agenda topics 

typically covered in a LEG-led launch: 

 

▪ Overall project timeline and how our respective disciplines should be coordinated on the City’s behalf 

even at this initial phase, including legal issues pertaining to any ballot measure that appears on a March 

92

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 8 

rather than November Municipal Election ballot; the drafting of the ballot question/s to be tested, the 

current FPPC environment, and the potential implications of the Taxpayer Protection Act 

▪ Review of historical project dynamics, current City demographics and the dynamics of an all-mail ballot 

election in a Presidential Year for a potentially higher profile City funding mechanism than your 2022 TOT 

▪ Current voter views, priorities, and polarization considering a fluid economic environment, including voter 

concerns about cost-of-living issues 

 

The high-level Lead Consulting services LEG provides to its client cities include: 

 

Polling/Analysis Phase 

✓ Serving as the Lead Consultant to identify and navigate dynamic, evolving project needs and supporting 

City staff and other professionals in achieving a well-coordinated effort for the project’s duration 

o Update City on current Best Practices being utilized by LEG for other Municipal Clients 

considering external 2023 and 2024 economic factors, statewide issues, recent FPPC rulings 

affecting cities, and a highly polarized environment 

✓ Conduct full audit of City media and public coverage, review institutional planning files on City, and 

pertinent budget, service and policy background and documents 

✓ Collaborating closely with FM3 on public opinion research needs and typically adding significant value to 

survey drafting 

✓ Independently analyzing results, and providing Strategic Recommendations, Options and Recommended 

Planning activities should a ballot measure be contemplated 

✓ Assisting in presenting/interpreting polling results to staff and City Council in a strategic context 

 

If a city is viable and continuing to plan: 

✓ Updating and refining a Project Timeline, Activities, and Budget 

✓ Recommending permissible public education program to inform the public of the City’s Fiscal 

Sustainability  vision with the independent review of the City Attorney on style and content 

✓ Training/re-training city staff on informational outreach message delivery 

✓ Developing earned/social media/web-based strategy and content for informational collaterals 

✓ Providing Rapid Response services to support the City’s PIO (LEG does not function as a paid 

spokesperson for its clients) 

✓ Adding value to staff reports and updating the City Council 

 

LEG approaches its Lead Consultant role with personal dedication, enthusiasm, and a commitment to excellent 

service, recognizing that our ultimate consumer is not only the City of Clovis, but most importantly, the 

constituents and stakeholders the City represents.  

 

Updating the City’s Ballot Measure Research  

As the City has identified, it must update its  baseline opinion research to gauge residents’ current attitudes 

towards fiscal issues and the City’s management;  identify community priorities and the viability of potential 2024 

93

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 9 

ballot measure/s and election timing; and identify effective information in communicating with stakeholders and 

the public about your fiscal sustainability needs.  

 

Research Specifications 

For this project, FM3 has recommended conducting a 

15- to 20-minute dual-mode (telephone and online) 

baseline survey among a randomized sample of 400-

500 voters within the City of Clovis. Because a 

significant portion of the City’s voters are Latino 

(approximately 22%), FM3 recommends conducting 

telephone interviews in both English and Spanish. 

FM3 recommends utilizing three different contact 

methods (telephone calls, emails, and text messages) 

to provide an array of ways for potential respondents 

to participate in the survey. Providing three forms of 

contact also helps FM3 engage historically 

disadvantaged communities that may not have 

adequate broadband access and/or access to 

computers or smart phones. Additionally, different 

demographic groups often have varying 

communication preferences—some may be more likely 

to answer a phone call than open an email or text 

message, and vice versa. 

Description of Methodology 

In designing a survey questionnaire for the City, LEG 

and FM3 will draw from their respective knowledge of 

local dynamics using LEG’s comprehensive public and 

media audit, and LEG’s review of pertinent 

background.  LEG/FM3 will also  comprehensively 

review the City’s past survey research (including 

tracking past questions when appropriate) and LEG’s 

significant archives of past efforts undertaken for the 

City; your current and future objectives and needs; and 

our own vast library of research on local funding 

measures. FM3 will proceed through several drafts, 

incorporating feedback from LEG and your team, to 

develop a research instrument that will successfully 

obtain all the desired information. 

 

 

 

Methodology 

Dual-mode survey using a 

combination of telephone 

and online interviews 

Respondent 

Contact 

Method 

Telephone calls, email 

invitations, and text 

invitations 

Population & 

Sample 

400 or 500 likely 

November 2024 voters 

within the City of Clovis 

(please note if the City 

wishes to preserve the 

option of a March ballot, 

LEG recommends the 

larger sample of 500 so a 

March subset can be fully 

examined) 

Margin of 

Sampling 

Error* 

±4.9% for a sample of 400 

±4.4% for a sample of 500 

*At the 95% confidence 

level (i.e., in 95 out of 100 

cases) 

Questionnaire 15-20 minutes 

Languages 

Telephone interviews will 

be conducted in English 

and Spanish; online 

interviews will be 

conducted in English only. 

  

94

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 10 

FM3 will then construct a sample by pulling a random list of voters from the voter file. Based upon the final sample 

specifications, FM3 will set a target number of interviews to be completed online. FM3 will then send out email 

invitations to everyone with a valid email address inviting them to take the survey. Within several days of the 

initial invitation distribution, FM3 will examine the demographic and geographic characteristics of the online 

completes and then begin conducting telephone interviews to balance out the sample and target 

underrepresented subgroups. Additionally, FM3 will send out a number of text invitations to help reach the overall 

target number of online completes and complement the other contact methods. 

Once the survey is complete, FM3 will generate a detailed report of the survey results in a PowerPoint 

presentation, including demographic breakouts and summaries of key findings. These results are typically 

presented in draft format to the staff team and then further refined based upon feedback from City staff. A version 

of this presentation will also be developed in a format suitable for LEG and FM3 to present to the City Council, 

from the standpoint of strategic context as well as data findings.  

 

 
 

 
 

95

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 11 

Recommended Timeline 
Based on the City’s projected window of wanting to launch in July for a September City Council report back (which 
LEG concurs is wise to fully preserve all election timing options), the following is LEG’s recommended timeline for 
initial project execution.   
 
-Week of July 3rd:             Conduct background preparation, public/media audit, review of archival information and City      
                                    budget/policy information 
-Week of July 10th:   Conduct Project Launch and initiate survey drafting 
-Week of July 17th:   Review first draft of Survey with staff, initiate review of conceptual ballot question/s by City  
                                     Attorney’s Office 
-Week of July 24th:   Finalize Survey Questionnaire, including ballot question/s; provide Protocol Memo to City;    
                                     begin fielding Survey 
-July 30th-Aug 13th:   Continue Fielding Survey 
-Week of Aug 13th:   Analyze results, prepare staff briefing materials and recommendations 
-By August 31st:      Debrief staff, reach consensus on next steps and approach 
-September 2023:     With City staff input, finalize Final Report and present results to City Council 

Proposed Professional Fees and Polling Costs 

The Lew Edwards Group’s  standard municipal professional fee rate is $6,500/month.  For a three-month term 

July through September this would be a cost of $19,500 for initial services.  Without exception and consistent with 

previous collaborations with the City of Clovis, LEG does not invoice or track work on an hourly or time and 

materials basis. 

However, as the City may not have contemplated retaining a Lead Strategist to work with your selected polling 

professional at this juncture, LEG is willing to discount its rate by 50%, or a consulting fee of $9,750 -- a rate not 

available to other cities.  If this is of interest to the City, any City Council updates/presentation would be conducted 

by LEG through Zoom or Teams interface. 

Should your project be viable, and the planning continues, LEG would welcome the extension of our initial 

agreement at our standard municipal rate. 

FM3 Polling Cost 
Consistent with their previous submittal, the chart below contains the total estimated costs for FM3’s research.  
These prices are comprehensive and include all costs for questionnaire design, sample acquisition and 
preparation, translation, programming, survey invitations, survey hosting, bilingual telephone interviewing, data 
entry and analysis, and reporting.  Should the City wish to preserve/examine all potential 2024 election timing, 
such as March or November, LEG strongly advises the longer 20-minute survey at a sample of 500 so appropriate 
comparisons can be made of different options without significantly eroding the Margin of Error (MOE). 
 

Survey Length 
Number of Interviews 

400 500 

15 minutes $32,650 $35,750 

96

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 12 

Survey Length 
Number of Interviews 

400 500 

20 minutes $36,500 $39,650 

In closing, LEG would like to thank the City for its invitation and for our previous collaboration and partnerships.  

The work that we did together early on transformed not only the City of Clovis, but many others thereafter.  

(APPENDIX ON FOLLOWING PAGES) 

97

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 13 
 

98

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 14 

 

99

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 15 

 

100

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 16 

 

101

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 17 

 

102

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 18 

 

103

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 19 

 

104

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 20 

 

105

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 21 

 

106

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 22 

 

107

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 23 

 

108

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 Page 24 

 

109

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Finance – Receive and File – Investment Report for the Month of 
February 2023. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Distribution of Investments 
2. Monthly Investment Transactions 
3. Certificates of Deposit 
4. Municipal Securities 
5. Graph of February 28, 2023 Treasury Rates 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Attached is the Investment Report for the month of February 2023.  Shown in Attachment 1 is 
the distribution of investments which lists all the individual securities owned by the City with the 
book and market values. Book value is the actual price paid for the investment.  Market value is 
the amount that the investment is worth if sold in the open market. The market value (which 
fluctuates daily) that is used in the report is as of the last working day of the month.  Attachment 
2 reflects the monthly investment transactions for the month of February 2023.  Attachment 3 
lists the certificates of deposit. Attachment 4 lists the municipal securities.  Attachment 5 is a 
graph of Treasury rates on February 28, 2023. 
 
The investment of the City’s funds is performed in accordance with the adopted Investment 
Policy.  Funds are invested with the following objectives in mind: 
 
1. Assets are invested in adherence with the safeguards and diversity of a prudent investor. 
 
2. The portfolio is invested in a manner consistent with the primary emphasis on preservation 
of the principal, while attaining a high rate of return consistent with this guideline. Trading of 
securities for the sole purpose of realizing trading profits is prohibited. 
 

110

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



3. Sufficient liquidity is maintained to provide a source for anticipated financial obligations as 
they become due.   
 
4. Investments may be made, consistent with the Investment Policy Guidelines, in fixed 
income securities maturing in three years or less and can be extended to five years with the City 
Manager’s approval. 
 
The Finance Department invests the City’s assets with an expectation of achieving a total rate 
of return at a level that exceeds the annualized rate of return on short-term government 
guaranteed or insured obligations (90-day Treasury bills) and to assure that the principal is 
preserved with minimal risk of depreciation or loss.  In periods of rising interest rates, the City of 
Clovis portfolio return may be less than that of the annualized 90-day Treasury bill.  In periods 
of decreasing interest rates, the City of Clovis portfolio return may be greater than the annualized 
90-day Treasury bill.  The current 90-day Treasury bill rate (annualized) is 2.57%.  The rate of 
return for the City of Clovis portfolio is 2.61%.  The goal for the City of Clovis investment return 
is 120% of the 90-day Treasury bill rate.  The current rate of return is 101% of the Treasury bill 
rate. 
 
In accordance with the Investment Policy, the investment period on each investment does not 
exceed three years and can be extended to five years with the City Manager’s approval.  As of 
February 2023, the average investment life of the City’s investment portfolio is 1.68 years. 
 
Current Investment Environment and Philosophy 
During the month of February 2023, the federal funds rate increased to 4.50%-4.75%. On 
February 28, 2023, the Treasury yield curve increased from 3-month to 6-month notes, then 
decreased to 10-year notes. 
 
Certificates of Deposit (CD’s) 
The City purchases both negotiable and non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit (CD’s). Although 
negotiable CD’s can be traded, it is the City’s policy to buy and hold all CD’s. Negotiable CD’s 
are held by U.S. Bank, a third party custodian. Non-negotiable CD’s are held in the City’s safe. 
 
Purchases and Maturities 
• 1 government security totaling $6,000,000 was purchased.  
• 1 government security totaling $8,500,000 matured.  
• 5 certificates of deposit totaling $1,250,000 were purchased. 
• 1 certificate of deposit totaling $250,000 matured. 
• 1 municipal security totaling $2,500,000 was purchased. 
 
Market Environment 
• During February the federal funds rate increased to 4.50%-4.75%. 
• On February 28, the yield curve increased from 3-month to 6-month notes, then decreased 
to 10-year notes. See Attachment 5, Graph of Treasury Rates on February 28, 2023. 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Blanks, Deputy Finance Director 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH 

111

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



STATED
DAYS TO 

MATURITY
NET BOOK MARKET YIELD TO INTEREST INVEST MATURITY FROM

COST VALUE VALUE * MATURITY RATE DATE DATE 2/28/2023

GOV'T SECURITIES

FHLB 5,255,000 5,078,404 5,005,486 0.600% 2.125% 03/26/20 03/10/23 10
FHLB 13,579,800 13,172,490 12,983,354 0.332% 2.125% 04/30/20 03/10/23 10
FFCB 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,754,050 0.250% 0.250% 03/01/21 03/01/24 367
FHLB 4,998,000 4,998,723 4,899,200 3.276% 3.250% 08/17/22 03/08/24 374
FHLB 1,994,000 1,996,279 1,967,040 3.835% 3.625% 09/14/22 03/08/24 374
FFCB 1,999,000 1,999,363 1,898,920 0.317% 0.300% 03/24/21 03/18/24 384
FHLB 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,697,800 0.350% 0.350% 06/07/21 06/07/24 465
FHLB 941,770 953,142 942,160 4.500% 0.700% 11/17/22 06/24/24 482
FHLB 4,969,000 4,978,608 4,664,750 1.274% 1.050% 01/20/22 11/15/24 626
FHLB 1,595,506 1,616,070 1,595,732 4.515% 0.500% 11/16/22 12/30/24 671
FHLB 3,980,000 3,985,825 3,748,080 1.922% 1.750% 02/28/22 02/28/25 731
FHLB 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,815,280 2.750% 2.750% 04/25/22 04/25/25 787
FAMCMTN 3,947,600 3,961,185 3,644,560 1.121% 0.750% 12/16/21 07/28/25 881
FHLB 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,840,500 3.600% 3.600% 08/30/22 08/28/25 912
FAMCMTN 4,948,500 4,960,869 4,523,900 0.869% 0.600% 10/14/21 09/08/25 923
FHLB 4,963,000 4,971,357 4,404,400 0.750% 0.580% 09/08/21 02/11/26 1,079
FHLB 3,922,000 3,939,437 3,537,640 1.229% 0.750% 12/16/21 02/24/26 1,092
FFCB 4,967,500 4,973,644 4,371,800 1.075% 0.940% 10/14/21 09/28/26 1,308
FHLB 3,649,200 3,674,534 3,516,920 3.342% 1.150% 06/29/22 10/28/26 1,338
FHLB 5,988,000 5,990,250 5,299,320 1.291% 1.250% 11/24/21 11/24/26 1,365
FHLB 5,127,757 5,104,920 4,599,100 1.580% 2.125% 01/20/22 12/11/26 1,382
FHLB 4,043,250 4,043,250 3,860,571 3.397% 1.020% 06/29/22 02/24/27 1,457
FHLB 4,550,000 4,605,977 4,397,874 3.173% 1.020% 08/17/22 02/24/27 1,457
FHLB 3,695,200 3,749,471 3,615,593 2.564% 0.900% 03/31/22 02/26/27 1,459
FHLB 6,072,400 6,072,400 5,855,580 3.737% 0.900% 01/19/23 02/26/27 1,459
FHLB 5,247,000 5,247,000 5,059,651 4.329% 0.900% 02/16/23 02/26/27 1,459
FHLB 5,050,770 5,099,092 4,950,393 3.971% 1.000% 12/14/22 02/26/27 1,459
FHLB 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,651,880 2.375% 2.375% 03/08/22 03/08/27 1,469

SECURITIES TOTAL 128,484,253$   128,172,290$       121,101,534$       

LAIF 75,000,000$         75,000,000$         

Municipal Issuance 55,435,000$         50,692,253$         

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 23,626,633$         23,626,633$         

TOTAL CD'S 21,495,000$         20,891,156$         

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 303,728,922$       291,311,575$       

* Market values for securities obtained from US Bank.

City of Clovis
Distribution of Investments

As of February 28, 2023

ATTACHMENT 1
112

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



Activity Maturity
Institution Description Activity Amount Market Value Rate Date Date

FHLB Gov. Sec. Purchase 6,000,000 5,247,000 0.900% 02/16/23 02/26/27

California ST Univ Rev Mun Iss. Purchase 2,500,000 2,500,000 1.142% 02/17/23 11/01/26

Achieve Finl Cr Un CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.650% 02/17/23 02/17/26

California Cr Un Glendale CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.500% 02/23/23 02/23/26

Coastlife Cr Un CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.650% 02/13/23 02/13/26

Pioneer Fed Cr Un Mtn Home CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.600% 02/28/23 03/02/26

Truliant Fed Cr Un CD Purchase 250,000 250,000 4.600% 02/28/23 02/27/26

FAMCMTN Gov. Sec. Maturity 8,500,000 8,512,717 1.350% 02/27/23 02/27/23

Servisfirst Bank CD Maturity 250,000 250,000 1.600% 02/21/23 02/21/23

PORTFOLIO DATA

Current Month (02/23)

Book Market

CD'S 21,495,000$        20,891,156$        

Gov't Securities* 128,172,290 121,101,534

Municipal Securities 55,435,000 50,692,253

LAIF 75,000,000 75,000,000

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 23,626,633 23,626,633

TOTAL 303,728,923$      291,311,576$      

Prior Month (01/23) Three Months Previous (11/22)

Book Market Book Market

CD'S 20,495,000$        19,979,564$        CD'S 19,245,000$        18,599,372$        

Gov't Securities* 131,438,007 125,970,574 Gov't Securities* 133,263,676 126,769,132

Municipal Securities 52,935,000          49,074,621          Municipal Securities 51,805,000 47,365,936

LAIF 75,000,000 75,000,000 LAIF 74,905,243 74,905,243

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 29,536,545 29,536,545 Sweep Account (Union Bank) 20,638,225 20,638,225

TOTAL 309,404,552$      299,561,304$      TOTAL 299,857,144$      288,277,908$      

Six Months Previous (08/22) One Year Previous (02/22)

Book Market Book Market

CD'S 13,995,000$        13,709,007$        CD'S 9,995,000$          9,946,255$          

Gov't Securities* 142,778,996 137,433,765 Gov't Securities* 141,928,058 140,552,056

Municipal Securities 35,755,000 33,346,444 Municipal Securities 9,465,000 9,278,989

LAIF 74,651,233 74,651,233 LAIF 74,453,060 74,453,060

Sweep Account (Union Bank) 33,471,209 33,471,209 Sweep Account (Union Bank) 43,416,255 43,416,255

TOTAL 300,651,438$      292,611,658$      TOTAL 279,257,373$      277,646,615$      

*Adjusted Quarterly for Premium/Discount Amortization

As of February 28, 2023

Monthly Investment Transactions
City of Clovis

ATTACHMENT 2
113

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Negotiable CDs   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 02/28/23 FREQUENCY

Celtic Bank 250,000 249,752.50 1.550% 03/13/20 03/13/23 13 MONTHLY
Axos Bank 250,000 249,487.50 1.550% 03/26/20 03/27/23 27 MONTHLY
Nicolet Natl Bank 250,000 249,392.50 0.900% 03/27/20 03/27/23 27 MONTHLY
Centerstate Bank 250,000 249,290.00 0.900% 03/30/20 03/30/23 30 MONTHLY
Bank Leumi 250,000 249,382.50 1.450% 03/31/20 03/31/23 31 MONTHLY
Discover Bank 250,000 249,327.50 1.350% 04/02/20 04/03/23 34 MONTHLY
Berkshire Bank 250,000 249,220.00 1.300% 04/08/20 04/06/23 37 MONTHLY
American Express 250,000 248,810.00 1.100% 04/21/20 04/21/23 52 MONTHLY
New York Cmnty Bank 250,000 241,115.00 0.350% 12/11/20 12/11/23 286 QUARTERLY
Transportation Alliance Bk 250,000 237,825.00 0.250% 03/12/21 03/12/24 378 QUARTERLY
Preferred Bank 250,000 237,417.50 0.250% 03/25/21 03/25/24 391 QUARTERLY
Bankunited Natl Assn 245,000 232,970.50 0.450% 03/31/21 04/01/24 398 QUARTERLY
Greenstate Credit Union 250,000 235,492.50 0.450% 06/16/21 06/17/24 475 QUARTERLY
Eaglemark Savings Bank 250,000 235,037.50 0.400% 06/30/21 06/28/24 486 QUARTERLY
Texas Exchange Bk 250,000 235,007.50 0.500% 07/09/21 07/09/24 497 QUARTERLY
BMW Bk North Amer 250,000 234,665.00 0.550% 07/30/21 07/30/24 518 QUARTERLY
Toyota Finl Svgs 250,000 233,985.00 0.650% 09/09/21 09/09/24 559 QUARTERLY
State Bk India 250,000 233,765.00 0.650% 09/17/21 09/17/24 567 QUARTERLY
Ubs Bank Usa 250,000 232,332.50 0.750% 11/17/21 11/18/24 629 QUARTERLY
Webbank Salt Lake City 250,000 232,185.00 0.750% 11/29/21 11/29/24 640 QUARTERLY
Medallion Bank Salt Lake City 250,000 232,125.00 0.900% 12/20/21 12/20/24 661 QUARTERLY
Beal Bank 250,000 231,735.00 0.950% 01/19/22 01/15/25 687 QUARTERLY
Mountian Amer Fed 250,000 242,472.50 3.450% 08/31/22 02/28/25 731 QUARTERLY
Barclays Bk 250,000 234,117.50 1.700% 03/09/22 03/10/25 741 QUARTERLY
Goldman Sachs Bk 250,000 233,880.00 1.650% 03/09/22 03/10/25 741 QUARTERLY
Safra National Bk 250,000 235,317.50 2.000% 03/23/22 03/24/25 755 QUARTERLY
Pentagon Federal Cr Un 250,000 235,107.50 2.000% 03/28/22 03/28/25 759 QUARTERLY
Beal Bank 250,000 236,112.50 2.200% 04/06/22 04/02/25 764 QUARTERLY
JP Morgan Chase 250,000 237,545.00 2.500% 04/08/22 04/08/25 770 QUARTERLY
First Natl Bank 250,000 242,880.00 2.200% 04/12/22 04/11/25 773 QUARTERLY
One Community Bank 250,000 238,200.00 2.700% 04/29/22 04/29/25 791 QUARTERLY
Americu Credit Union 250,000 238,665.00 2.800% 05/02/22 05/02/25 794 QUARTERLY
Synchrony Bank Retail 250,000 240,112.50 3.100% 05/20/22 05/20/25 812 QUARTERLY
Connexus Credit Union 250,000 239,435.00 3.000% 05/26/22 05/27/25 819 QUARTERLY
Bmo Harris Bank 250,000 240,075.00 3.150% 06/17/22 06/17/25 840 QUARTERLY
Saco Biddeford 250,000 238,447.50 2.850% 06/17/22 06/17/25 840 QUARTERLY
Baxter Credit Union 250,000 250,000.00 3.400% 06/28/22 06/30/25 853 QUARTERLY
Capital One Bank 250,000 241,115.00 3.350% 06/29/22 06/30/25 853 QUARTERLY
American First Cr Un 250,000 240,392.50 3.250% 07/15/22 07/15/25 868 QUARTERLY
Trustone Financial Cr Un 250,000 240,360.00 3.250% 07/19/22 07/21/25 874 QUARTERLY
American Natl Bank 250,000 239,442.50 3.100% 07/27/22 07/28/25 881 QUARTERLY
TCM Bank 250,000 240,880.00 3.350% 07/28/22 07/28/25 881 QUARTERLY
Generations Bank 250,000 241,122.50 3.400% 08/03/22 08/04/25 888 QUARTERLY
Direct Fed Credit 250,000 240,725.00 3.500% 08/17/22 08/18/25 902 QUARTERLY
Resource One Credit 250,000 240,435.00 3.300% 08/17/22 08/18/25 902 QUARTERLY
Connext Credit 250,000 241,520.00 3.500% 08/31/22 08/29/25 913 QUARTERLY
Skyone Fed Credit 250,000 242,102.50 3.600% 08/30/22 09/02/25 917 QUARTERLY
Credit Union of Texas 250,000 242,107.50 3.600% 09/14/22 09/15/25 930 QUARTERLY
Forbright Bank 250,000 241,432.50 3.500% 09/16/22 09/16/25 931 QUARTERLY
Ally Bank Sandy Utah 250,000 244,742.50 4.050% 09/29/22 09/19/25 934 QUARTERLY
Alabama Credit Union 250,000 242,000.00 3.600% 09/20/22 09/22/25 937 QUARTERLY
Kemba Finl Credit Union 250,000 244,400.00 4.000% 09/21/22 09/22/25 937 QUARTERLY

City of Clovis
Certificates of Deposit

As of February 28, 2023

ATTACHMENT 3
114

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Negotiable CDs   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 02/28/23 FREQUENCY

City of Clovis
Certificates of Deposit

As of February 28, 2023

Farmers Merchants 250,000 242,870.00 3.750% 09/28/22 09/29/25 944 QUARTERLY
Jefferson Finl FCU 250,000 245,287.50 4.150% 09/29/22 09/29/25 944 QUARTERLY
Dort Finl Credit Union 250,000 244,380.00 4.000% 09/30/22 09/30/25 945 QUARTERLY
First National Bank 250,000 235,887.50 3.625% 09/30/22 09/30/25 945 QUARTERLY
Numerica Credit Union 250,000 246,202.50 4.200% 09/30/22 09/30/25 945 QUARTERLY
Vystar Credit Union 250,000 246,497.50 4.350% 09/30/22 09/30/25 945 QUARTERLY
Bell Bank Fargo 250,000 245,265.00 4.150% 10/13/22 10/14/25 959 QUARTERLY
Pacific Alliance 250,000 245,572.50 4.200% 10/14/22 10/14/25 959 QUARTERLY
z1st Financial Bank 250,000 245,265.00 4.150% 10/13/22 10/17/25 962 QUARTERLY
Great Southern Bank 250,000 247,437.50 4.500% 10/20/22 10/20/25 965 QUARTERLY
American Bank 250,000 246,507.50 4.350% 10/21/22 10/21/25 966 QUARTERLY
Queensborough Natl Bank 250,000 245,872.50 4.100% 10/21/22 10/21/25 966 QUARTERLY
Public Alliance Cr Un 250,000 247,422.50 4.500% 10/25/22 10/27/25 972 QUARTERLY
First Citizens Bank 250,000 248,662.50 4.700% 10/28/22 10/28/25 973 QUARTERLY
LCA Bank Corp 250,000 246,812.50 4.400% 10/28/22 10/28/25 973 QUARTERLY
Sharonview Fed Cr Un 250,000 249,930.00 4.850% 10/31/22 10/31/25 976 QUARTERLY
United Heritage Cr Un 250,000 248,995.00 4.700% 11/04/22 11/04/25 980 QUARTERLY
Capital One Natl Assn 250,000 249,960.00 4.900% 11/16/22 11/17/25 993 QUARTERLY
Morgan Stanley Bank 250,000 249,940.00 5.000% 11/18/22 11/18/25 994 QUARTERLY
Spokane Teachers Cr Un 250,000 250,637.50 5.000% 11/23/22 11/23/25 999 QUARTERLY
Morgan Stanley Private 250,000 248,860.00 4.750% 12/09/22 12/09/25 1,015 QUARTERLY
Community Bank Topeka 250,000 246,165.00 4.300% 12/14/22 12/15/25 1,021 QUARTERLY
Austin Telco Fed 250,000 250,400.00 4.950% 12/16/22 12/16/25 1,022 QUARTERLY
Rogue Credit Union 250,000 250,105.00 5.100% 12/23/22 12/23/25 1,029 QUARTERLY
Alliant Credit Union 250,000 251,442.50 5.100% 12/30/22 12/30/25 1,036 QUARTERLY
Liberty First Cr Un 250,000 247,847.50 4.550% 01/17/23 01/19/26 1,056 QUARTERLY
Capital Educators Fed Cr 250,000 247,845.00 4.550% 01/19/23 01/20/26 1,057 QUARTERLY
Manufacturers Traders 250,000 245,850.00 4.250% 01/31/23 01/23/26 1,060 QUARTERLY
City Natl Bank 250,000 246,520.00 4.350% 01/25/23 01/26/26 1,063 QUARTERLY
Coastlife Cr Un 250,000 248,572.50 4.650% 02/13/23 02/13/26 1,081 QUARTERLY
Achieve Finl Cr Un 250,000 248,582.50 4.650% 02/17/23 02/17/26 1,085 QUARTERLY
California Cr Un Glendale 250,000 247,572.50 4.500% 02/23/23 02/23/26 1,091 QUARTERLY
Truliant Fed Cr Un 250,000 248,257.50 4.600% 02/28/23 02/27/26 1,095 QUARTERLY
Pioneer Fed Cr Un Mtn Home 250,000 248,265.00 4.600% 02/28/23 03/02/26 1,098 QUARTERLY

Negotiable CD TOTAL 21,495,000$  20,891,156$  

CD TOTAL 21,495,000$  20,891,156$  

ATTACHMENT 3
115

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



MARKET INTEREST INVEST MATURITY MATURITY FROM INTEREST 
Municipal Securities   COST PRICE RATE DATE DATE 02/28/23 FREQUENCY

Huntington Beach Pension Bond 1,000,000 986,490 0.381% 04/01/21 06/15/23 107 QUARTERLY

Fresno Unified Taxable Go Ref Bond 500,000 490,565 0.462% 09/30/20 08/01/23 154 QUARTERLY

Pomona Cali Uni Sch Dist Go Bond 815,000 799,857 0.534% 10/20/20 08/01/23 154 QUARTERLY

San Jose CA USD Ref Bond 775,000 760,081 0.221% 01/20/21 08/01/23 154 QUARTERLY

Vista CA USD Ref Bond 750,000 735,915 0.221% 01/20/21 08/01/23 154 QUARTERLY

William Hart Cali HS Go Bond 1,000,000 981,140 0.366% 12/23/20 08/01/23 154 QUARTERLY

Jefferson Cali Elem Sch Dist Go Bond 710,000 694,330 0.399% 10/27/20 09/01/23 185 QUARTERLY

Santa Rosa Calif Watr Ref Bond 350,000 342,381 0.578% 12/01/20 09/01/23 185 QUARTERLY

California St Univ Ref Bond 3,455,000 3,351,246 0.475% 04/01/22 11/01/23 246 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Convention Ref Bond 1,450,000 1,390,681 1.527% 08/18/22 04/15/24 412 QUARTERLY

Santa Ana College Ref Bond 440,000 413,750 0.644% 12/17/21 08/01/24 520 QUARTERLY

University CA Rev Bond 1,000,000 959,390 4.350% 09/15/22 05/15/25 807 QUARTERLY

Antelope Valley CA Ref Bond 750,000 695,070 1.767% 05/12/22 08/01/25 885 QUARTERLY

Chabot Las Positas Cmnty Clg Bond 1,490,000 1,361,130 0.880% 04/29/22 08/01/25 885 QUARTERLY

San Dieguito High School Ref Bond 1,000,000 927,810 1.661% 10/13/22 08/01/25 885 QUARTERLY

Santa Ana CCD Ref Bond 250,000 226,125 0.744% 05/12/22 08/01/25 885 QUARTERLY

Orange County Water Dist Ref Bond 900,000 844,506 2.095% 10/13/22 08/15/25 899 QUARTERLY

San Jose CA Txble Ser B 2,355,000 2,214,147 2.450% 10/13/22 09/01/25 916 QUARTERLY

Los Angeles CA USD Ref Bond 1,000,000 889,370 1.455% 11/15/21 07/01/26 1,219 QUARTERLY

Chabot Las Positas Cmnty Clg CA 3,505,000 3,111,353 1.080% 07/27/22 08/01/26 1,250 QUARTERLY

Chaffey CA High School Ref Bond 1,565,000 1,441,506 2.475% 06/30/22 08/01/26 1,250 QUARTERLY

Huntington Beach HS Dist Ref Bond 3,305,000 2,932,527 1.208% 04/29/22 08/01/26 1,250 QUARTERLY

Placentia Yorba USD Ref Bond 1,110,000 977,244 1.070% 05/31/22 08/01/26 1,250 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Cmnty Ref Bond 470,000 434,242 2.299% 04/29/22 08/01/26 1,250 QUARTERLY

San Ramon Valley CA USD Ref Bond 2,125,000 1,889,508 1.147% 11/03/21 08/01/26 1,250 QUARTERLY

Sonoma Cnty Jr College Ref Bond 2,000,000 1,852,360 2.447% 06/30/22 08/01/26 1,250 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Pub Facs Ref Bond 1,625,000 1,455,041 1.812% 08/18/22 10/15/26 1,325 QUARTERLY

CA ST Univ Rev Ref Bond 2,500,000 2,201,850 1.142% 02/17/23 11/01/26 1,342 QUARTERLY

El Dorado CA Irr Dist Ref Bond 1,175,000 1,037,948 1.687% 08/18/22 03/01/27 1,462 QUARTERLY

University Gen Rev Bond 2,385,000 2,079,577 1.316% 10/13/22 05/15/27 1,537 QUARTERLY

Colton CA Jt Uni Sch 1,060,000 930,850 1.603% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Contra Costa Ref Bond 880,000 790,592 2.163% 09/15/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Foothill De Anza CCD 540,000 472,424 1.473% 12/15/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Fremont CA Uni Sch Dist 1,100,000 939,004 1.113% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Fremont CA USD Ref Bond 1,140,000 1,012,901 2.000% 05/31/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Marin CA Cmnty Clg Dist 335,000 318,237 3.330% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Mount San Antonio Cmnty Clg 285,000 244,296 1.139% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Mount San Antonio Ref Bond 405,000 366,136 2.329% 10/13/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Saddleback VY Uni Ref Bond 3,000,000 2,717,640 2.400% 08/10/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

San Diego CA Com CD 590,000 538,062 2.407% 12/15/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

San Ramon Valley Ref Bond 1,435,000 1,253,860 3.415% 09/15/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Santa Monica Cmnty Clg Ref Bond 1,000,000 948,720 3.050% 09/15/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Sierra CA Cmnty Clg Dist 465,000 396,971 1.129% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

William Hart CA Un High 200,000 169,136 1.174% 11/17/22 08/01/27 1,615 QUARTERLY

Rancho Santiago Cmnty Clg 335,000 285,581 1.106% 11/17/22 09/01/27 1,646 QUARTERLY

San Jose CA Txble Ser B 910,000 830,703 2.600% 10/13/22 09/01/27 1,646 QUARTERLY

Mun. Securities TOTAL 55,435,000$  50,692,253$  

Municipal Securities TOTAL 55,435,000$  50,692,253$  

City of Clovis
Municipal Securities

As of February 28, 2023

ATTACHMENT 4
116

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



 

Treasury Rates as of February 28, 2023

3 month Treasury bill 4.88
6 month Treasury bill 5.17
2 Yr Treasury note 4.81
3 Yr Treasury note 4.51
5 Yr Treasury note 4.18
10 Yr Treasury note 3.92

CITY OF CLOVIS
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

FEBRUARY 28, 2023 TREASURY RATES

As indicated in the above graph, treasuries increase from 3-month to 6-month notes, then decrease to 
10-year notes.

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

3 month
Treasury bill

6 month
Treasury bill

2 Yr Treasury
note

3 Yr Treasury
note

5 Yr Treasury
note

10 Yr
Treasury note

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 R

A
T

E
S

TREASURIES

TREASURY RATES ON FEBRUARY 28, 2023

ATTACHMENT 5
117

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Finance – Receive and File – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of February 
2023. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Summary of Cash Balances 
2. Summary of Investment Activity 
3. Investments with Original Maturities Exceeding One Year 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Attached for the Council’s information is the Treasurer’s Report for the month ended February 
28, 2023. 
 
Pursuant to Section 41004 of the Government Code of the State of California, the City Treasurer 
is required to submit a monthly report of all receipts, disbursements, and fund balances.  
Attachment 1 provides a summary of the beginning balance, total receipts, total disbursements, 
ending balance for all funds, and a listing, by fund, of all month end fund balances.  Attachment 
2 summarizes the investment activity for the month and distribution, by type of investment, held 
by the City.  Attachment 3 lists all investments with original maturities exceeding one year as of 
the month ended February 28, 2023. 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Blanks, Deputy Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH 

118

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



Previous Balance 3,793,761.06$               
Deposits 30,348,724.31
Disbursements (29,124,590.79)

Current  Balance 5,017,894.58$               

FUNDS BALANCE
100      General Fund 18,151,571.47$             
201      Local Transportation 15,213,116.41
202      Parking and Business Improvements 183,321.18
203      Off Highway Use 72,414.64
204      Community Facilities District 2020-1 144,523.32
205      Senior Citizen Memorial Trust 56,243.01
207      Landscape Assessment District 6,989,227.05
208      Blackhorse III (95-1) Assessment District 104,498.18
301      Park & Recreation Acquisition 12,236,378.54
305      Refuse Equipment Reserve 2,310,925.04
310      Special Street Deposit Fund 45,519,124.03
313      Successor Agency 627.38
314      Housing Successor Agency 1,094,159.78
402      1976 Fire Bond Redemption 25,475.23
404      1976 Sewer Bond Redemption Fund 418,128.52
501      Community Sanitation Fund 15,648,160.45
502      Sewer Service Fund 37,671,506.28
504      Sewer Capital Projects-Users 463,996.24
506      Sewer Capital Projects-Developer 6,447,605.80
507      Water Service Fund 42,068,340.99
508      Water Capital Projects-Users 7,291,041.47
509      Water Capital Projects-Developer 11,209,537.71
515      Transit Fund 500,699.61
540      Planning & Development Services 15,403,096.80
601      Property & Liability Insurance 949,458.81
602      Fleet Maintenance 22,688,121.24
603      Employee Benefit Fund 11,724,826.47
604      General Government Services 21,340,537.35
605      Facilities Maintenance 4,294,304.37
606      Information Technology 6,626,600.85
701      Curb & Gutter Fund 165,236.48
703      Payroll Tax & Withholding Fund 1,356,193.54
712      Temperance/Barstow Assmt Dist (98-1) 77,966.59
713      Shepherd/Temperance Assmt Dist (2000-1) 5,838.80
715      Supp Law Enforcement Serv 243,403.17
716      Asset Forfeiture 243,452.27
720      Measure A-Public Safety Facility Tax 1,729.23
736      SA Admin Trust Fund 1,421.40
741      SA Debt Service Trust Fund (197,131.09)
747      Housing Successor Trust Fund 1,137.98

SUBTOTALS 308,746,816.59$           

999      Invested Funds (303,728,922.01)

TOTAL 5,017,894.58$               

Statement of Cash Balances

As of February 28, 2023

City of Clovis

ATTACHMENT 1
119

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



Balance of Investments Previous Month End 309,404,551.20$                 

Time Certificates of Deposit Transactions

Investments 1,250,000.00
Withdrawals (250,000.00)

Total CD Changes 1,000,000.00

Other Changes

Government Securities (3,265,717.00)

Local Agency Investment Fund 0.00

Municipal Securities 2,500,000.00

Sweep Account (5,909,912.19)

Total Other Changes (6,675,629.19)

Balance of Investments Current Month End 303,728,922.01$                 

Insured CD's 21,495,000.00

Government Securities 128,172,288.85

US Treasury Notes 0.00

Local Agency Investment Fund 75,000,000.00

Municipal Securities 55,435,000.00

Sweep Account 23,626,633.16

Investment Total 303,728,922.01$                 

As of February 28, 2023

City of Clovis
Summary of Investment Activity

For the month of February 28, 2023

City of Clovis
Distribution of Investments

ATTACHMENT 2
120

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



Investment

Balance At Stated

Institution Face Value Amortized Cost Maturity Rate

FHLB 13,000,000.00 13,172,490 3/10/2023 2.125%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,078,404 3/10/2023 2.125%

FFCB 5,000,000.00 5,000,000 3/1/2024 0.250%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,998,723 3/8/2024 3.625%

FFCB 2,000,000.00 1,996,279 3/8/2024 0.300%

FHLB 2,000,000.00 1,999,363 3/18/2024 0.350%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,000,000 6/7/2024 1.050%

FHLB 1,000,000.00 953,142 6/24/2024 0.700%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,978,608 11/15/2024 1.750%

FHLB 1,735,000.00 1,616,070 12/30/2024 0.500%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,985,825 2/28/2025 2.750%

FAMCMTN 4,000,000.00 4,000,000 4/25/2025 0.750%

FAMCMTN 4,000,000.00 3,961,185 7/28/2025 0.600%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,000,000 8/28/2025 0.580%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,960,869 9/8/2025 0.750%

FFCB 5,000,000.00 4,971,357 2/11/2026 0.940%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,939,437 2/24/2026 1.150%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,973,644 9/28/2026 1.250%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,674,534 10/28/2026 2.125%

FHLB 6,000,000.00 5,990,250 11/24/2026 1.020%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 5,104,920 12/11/2026 0.900%

FHLB 4,500,000.00 4,043,250 2/24/2027 2.375%

FHLB 5,000,000.00 4,605,977 2/24/2027 1.020%

FHLB 5,700,000.00 5,099,092 2/26/2027 1.000%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 3,749,471 2/26/2027 3.250%

FHLB 6,800,000.00 6,072,400 2/27/2027 0.900%

FHLB 6,000,000.00 5,247,000 2/27/2027 0.900%

FHLB 4,000,000.00 4,000,000 3/8/2027 3.600%

Original Maturities Exceeding One Year
As of February 28, 2023

City of Clovis

ATTACHMENT 3
121

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: General Services – Approval - Claim Rejection of the General Liability 
Claim on behalf of Phorum Sheth.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: None. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Reject the General Liability Claim filed on behalf of Phorum Sheth. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
On behalf of Phorum Sheth (claimant), the City received a Claim Form on April 12, 2023, alleging 
the City of Clovis caused a dangerous condition by failing to provide appropriate warnings signs 
or signals, which contributed to injuries allegedly sustained by Phorum Sheth. It is recommended 
that the City reject the claim, send notice of rejection, and refer the matter to the City’s third-
party administrator for liability claims for further investigation and handling. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On April 12, 2023, a General Liability Claim was received on behalf of Phorum Sheth from the 
Wagner Law Group in Fresno, CA. The claim was insufficient, and a notice was sent to the law 
firm requesting additional information to process the claim. A revised claim form was submitted 
to the City on May 19, 2023, which was considered legally sufficient and timely. 
 
The claim alleges that the City of Clovis failed to provide appropriate warnings signs or signals, 
which created a dangerous condition on the roadway at the roundabout near Temperance 
Avenue and Alluvial Avenue within the City of Clovis.   
 
The claimant seeks damages for injuries, and other damages. The claim has been filed as a 
“civil unlimited case” in excess of $600,000.00.  

122

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



FISCAL IMPACT 
Rejection of the claim does not result in any fiscal impact. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the claim be rejected. The claim is disputed by the City. By rejecting this 
claim and sending notice of rejection to the claimant in accordance with applicable law 
(Government Code section 910, et seq.), the time in which a lawsuit for various claims may be 
filed against the City will begin to run, and the claimant may pursue a lawsuit against the City if 
desired. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
A claim rejection notice letter will be sent to the claimant in accordance with Government Code 
section 913. 
 
Prepared by: Charles W. Johnson, Management Analyst 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH 

 

123

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services – Approval – Final Acceptance for 
Final Map for Tract 6367, located at southeast area of Armstrong Avenue 
and Nees Avenue (Gleneagles Homes, a California Corp DBA Gary 
McDonald Homes, a California corporation). 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to: 
 
1. Accept the public improvements for Tract 6367, and authorize recording the Notice of 
Completion; and 
 
2. Authorize the release of the Performance Surety immediately and then release of the Labor 
and Materials Surety ninety (90) days after the recordation of the Notice of Completion, (provided 
no lien have been filed) and release of Public Improvements Maintenance Surety upon the 
expiration of the one-year warranty period and provided any defective work has been repaired 
to the City’s satisfaction. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The owner, Gleneagles Homes, a California Corp DBA Gary McDonald Homes, a California 
corporation, has requested final acceptance of the public improvements constructed or installed 
in conjunction with this tract. The public improvements include all those shown on the subdivision 
improvement plans approved by the City Engineer. The construction or installation of the public 
improvements is complete. The owner has requested final acceptance. Staff is recommending 
approval of their request. 
 

124

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost for periodic routine maintenance, as well as repairs needed as the improvements 
deteriorate with age and usage, will be incorporated in the annual maintenance budget of the 
Public Utilities Department as these costs are identified. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Subdivision Map Act requires that once construction of the required improvements has been 
completed in compliance with all codes, plans and specifications, and all other required 
documents have been completed and submitted, final acceptance is required, and the 
appropriate sureties are released. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Record the Notice of Completion and release the Performance, Labor and Materials, and 
Maintenance Sureties as appropriate. 
 
Prepared by: Jeff Brown, Engineer II 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

 

125

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



Attachment 1

126

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services – Approval – Bid Award for CIP 19-
11 Bullard Avenue Rehabilitation; and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the contract on behalf of the City with Dave Christian 
Construction Company in the amount of $761,162.25. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1.  For the City Council to award a contract for CIP 19-11, Bullard Avenue Rehabilitation – to 

Dave Christian Construction Company, in the amount of $761,162.25; and 
2.  For the City Council to authorize the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the 

City. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff is recommending that City Council authorize the City Manager to award and execute the 
contract to Dave Christian Construction Company, who was the lowest responsible bidder from 
a bid opening that took place on May 9, 2023. 
 
The project includes street rehabilitation along existing Bullard Avenue from Armstrong to 
Temperance Avenues. The work includes grinding/cold planning, full depth removal of AC 
pavement and replacing in areas of severe structural failure, paving, adjusting utility boxes and 
manhole lids to grade, constructing ADA curb ramp improvements, installing detector loops and 
striping to match the existing. 
 
 
 
 

127

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



BACKGROUND 
The following is a summary of the bids received on May 9, 2023: 
 
BIDDERS BASE BID 
 
Dave Christian Construction Co. $761,162.25 
Central Valley Asphalt $796,950.50 
Emmett Valley, Inc. $827,555.00 
Emmett’s Excavation, Inc. $865,133.00 
Jim Crawford Construction $867,882.50 
Avison Construction $907,910.00 
MAC General Engineering $1,178,894.20 
 
ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE $801,570.00 
 
All bids were examined, and the bidder’s submittals were found to be in order.  Dave Christian 
Construction Co. is the lowest responsible bidder.  Staff has validated the lowest bidder 
contractor’s license status, bid bond and completeness of grant funding paperwork. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
This project was budgeted in the 2022-2023 Community Investment Program. The project is 
supported by Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG) through the City Community 
Investment Program. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Dave Christian Construction Company is the lowest responsible bidder.  There are sufficient 
funds available for the anticipated cost of this project. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
1.  The contract will be prepared and executed, subject to the Contractor providing 

performance security that is satisfactory to the City. 
2.  Construction shall begin approximately two (2) weeks after contract execution and be 

completed in thirty-five (35) working days thereafter. 
 
Prepared by: Nate Stava, Project Civil Engineer  

 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH 

 

128

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



129

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Police Department 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Police - Approval – Res. 23-___, Authorizing the Police Chief and the 
Police Department to Execute an MOU and Grant Cooperative 
Agreement between MARJAREE MASON CENTER, INC., a California 
nonprofit corporation (MMC), and Approval - Res. 23-___, Amending the 
Police Department Budget to reflect the award of $25,000. 

  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 23-___, Authorization to Execute  
2. Res. 23-___, Budget Amendment  
3. Memorandum of Understanding 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution authorizing the Police Chief to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding and Grant Cooperative Agreement with Marjaree Mason 
Center, Inc., a California nonprofit corporation (MMC), and approve a resolution amending the 
Police Department budget to reflect the grant award of $25,000.00. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Through the Domestic Violence Response Team Program cooperative grant, the Clovis Police 
Department (CPD) and MMC intend to work in partnership to provide additional assistance for 
victims of domestic violence. The program will allow for a collaboration of coordinated responses 
to domestic violence incidents by combining investigation and immediate response and victim 
advocacy and education. This program builds the capacity of our community partnership and the 
need for greater collaboration and coordination between domestic violence service providers 
and law enforcement.  
 
 

130

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



BACKGROUND 
The Clovis Police Department responds to more than 500 domestic violence incidents annually.    
Victims and their families need advocacy and support in most of these incidents. The Marjaree 
Mason Center has provided these supportive services to victims of domestic violence in our 
community since 1979.  The MMC is seeking a partnership through a cooperative grant 
agreement with the department to increase the capacity to respond, investigate and enhance 
prosecution, provide training and education to first responders, and increase vital resources to 
victims of domestic violence. The purpose of the Program is to collaborate and coordinate 
responses that support our community.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Approval and execution of the MOU will provide grant funding of $25,000.  These funds will be 
used to support program staff and eligible costs incurred by the department.  A resolution 
amending the police department budget is required.  A Summary of Expenditures is attached to 
the Resolution.  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
A resolution from the City Council authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into an agreement with 
the Marjaree Mason Center Inc. is required.   Approval is needed to amend the FY 2022-2023 
Police Department Budget to reflect the award of $25,000.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will submit the approved resolution and execute the agreement. After the Council’s 
approval, the 2022-2023 Police Department Annual Budget will be amended as described. 
 
Prepared by: Sandi Macy, Management Analyst 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

 

131

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

RESOLUTION 23-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF OF POLICE TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING AND ADMINISTER THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MARJAREE 
MASON CENTER, INC., AND THE CLOVIS POLICE DEPARTMENT. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Marjaree Mason Center Inc. is seeking a partnership through a 

Memorandum of Understanding and Cooperative Grant to increase the capacity to respond to 

and investigate incidents of domestic violence; and 

 

WHEREAS, the program is focused on supporting communities and implementing 

protocols and practices for a collaborative and coordinated response to incidents of domestic 

violence; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Marjaree Mason Center and the City of Clovis Police Department believe 

the implementation of this program will further the above goals and agree to coordinate and 

provide the services of the agreement 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Clovis hereby authorizes the 

Chief of Police to execute the Memorandum of Understanding and enter into this agreement 

with the Marjaree Mason Center, a California nonprofit corporation. 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on June 5, 2023, by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:    

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED: June 5, 2023 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 

132

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



 ATTACHMENT 2 

RESOLUTION 23-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR FOR 2022-2023 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis approved the 2021-2022 Budget on 

May 16, 2022, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Police Department has entered into a cooperative agreement with the 

Marjaree Mason Center Inc. and has been awarded funds in the amount of $25,000 for 

program expenses; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council determines that these expenditures are necessary 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the of Clovis that the 2022-2023 Budget be 

amended as provided in Attachment A, “Summary of Expenditures, By Department,” 

“Summary of Expenditures by Fund.” 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that grant funds received hereunder shall not be used to 

supplant expenditures controlled by this body. 

 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

    

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on June 5, 2023, by the following vote to wit:  

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  June 5, 2023  

  
 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor      City Clerk 
 
 

 

133

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



ATTACHMENT A 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT 
 
 
DEPARTMENT 
 
 POLICE   $25,000 
 TOTAL DEPARTMENT $25,000 
 
 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND 
 
 GENERAL FUND  $25,000 
 TOTAL FUND  $25,000 
 
 
All expenditures will be out of the grant budget 56300.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

134

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), effective as of January 1, 2023, 

is entered into by and between MARJAREE MASON CENTER, INC., a California 

nonprofit corporation (MMC), and the CITY OF CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA, a municipal 

corporation (City). 

 

RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, MMC has submitted to the California Governor's Office of 

Emergency Services (CalOES), Domestic Violence Response Team Program 

(Program) an application for $125,000 in grant funds for services which are 

incorporated herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Program is focused on supporting communities and 

implementing protocols and practices for a collaborative and coordinated response 

to incidents of domestic violence, and MMC’s application proposes to increase the 

agency’s capacity to provide coordinated response services for the targeted 

populations; and 

WHEREAS, upon award of grant funds and entry into a grant agreement with 

CalOES (Grant) consistent with the Program, the MMC intends to work in partnership 

with Clovis Police Department (CPD) for the purpose of providing additional 

assistance for victims of domestic violence and their children within the City of Clovis, 

including addressing violence against victims, using a combination of investigation, 

immediate response, immediate victim advocacy, and training for law enforcement 

officers; and 

WHEREAS, the MMC and CPD believe implementation of the Program as 

described herein will further the above goals and agree to coordinate and provide the 

services referenced herein. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which recitals are 

contractual in nature, the mutual covenants herein contained, and such other and 

further consideration as is hereby acknowledged, and subject to the terms and 

conditions and provisions of the Program and this MOU, the parties mutually agree 

as follows: 

 

1. PARTICIPATING AGENCIES AND DESIGNATED CONTACT PERSONS
 

Marjaree Mason Center, Inc. 

Leticia Campos, Deputy 

Director 

1600 M Street 

Fresno, CA 93721  

 

Clovis Police Department  

Police Services Manager  

George Rodriguez 

1033 Fifth Street  

Clovis, CA 93612 

 

 ATTACHMENT 3 
 

135

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



2. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Marjaree Mason Center, Inc. 

As the lead agency coordinating the activities of the Domestic 

Violence Response Team Program, MMC shall:  

i. Recruit, hire, train, and supervise one part-time Advocate, as set 

forth in further detail in section C below, who will be assigned to 

CPD and concentrating on domestic violence investigations as 

authorized and directed by CPD. 

a. Assigned Advocate’s schedule will be Tuesday-Saturday, 

11:00 am - 7:30 pm, and Advocate will divide their 

scheduled time between Fresno Police Department and 

Clovis Police Department. 

b. Advocate will respond alongside officers, as authorized 

and directed by CPD, and shall coordinate response with 

the Watch Commander , detectives, officers and the CPD 

Family Services Advocate for case follow-up. 

c. In the event that the Advocate assigned to CPD through 

this Program is not available, officers will have access to 

additional advocates assigned to CPD and the support of 

MMC’s Crisis Response Team - Navigators.  MMC 

Navigators can provide follow-up services to victims that 

are brought directly to MMC by officers, and/or may 

respond in-person to an officer’s request for support via 

the 24/7 hotline. 

d. $25,000 will be paid to City, as provided in Section 3 below, 

for reimbursement of expenses incurred by City and CPD to 

provide coordinated response services for victims of 

domestic violence.  Expenses can include, but are not limited 

to personnel expenses, program supplies and 

telecommunication. 

ii. Provide training to Specialized Unit Program advocates on 

advocacy procedures. 

iii. MMC staff will attend monthly meetings with CPD staff to assess 

Program progress and identify areas for improvement. 

B. Clovis Police Department 

The CPD, subject to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
shall: 

i. Identify victims and families to be served by this grant. 

ii. Detectives shall conduct investigations into domestic violence 
cases to enhance the probability of successful prosecution. 

136

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



iii. Provide training on police procedures, office space, office 
furniture, office supplies and telephones to the MMC Advocate 
described below. 

iv. Assigned CPD staff will attend monthly meetings with MMC staff 
to assess Program progress and identify areas for improvement. 

v. Cooperate with MMC in preparation for the Program evaluation 
and all reporting requirements.  

C. Requirements of Advocate 

i. MMC shall recruit, hire, train and supervise one part-time 
Advocate who shall serve as outreach aide to provide assistance 
to victims as identified by CPD, including restraining order 
assistance and follow-up services, as necessary. 

ii. MMC shall provide referred clients with access to all appropriate 
MMC services including safe shelter, support groups, counseling, 
legal advocacy, twenty-four hour crisis support, survival skills, 
legal options classes, information and referrals. 

iii. The Advocate must meet the applicable requirements of a 
domestic violence counselor as defined by the Evidence Code 
§1037-1037.7. Advocate must have training/experience in 
assisting victims with the paperwork necessary to obtain a 
restraining order. 

iv. The Advocate funded hereunder must meet Program Entry-Level 
Advocates Standards and have completed an additional forty 
hours of specific domestic violence and/or sexual assault training. 

v. The Advocate must comply with all regulations pertaining to 
Federal Drug/Alcohol testing. 

vi. MMC victim Advocate must pass a CPD background investigation 
in order to have dedicated office space at CPD Headquarters. 

3. REIMBURSEMENT FOR PROGRAM ACTIVITIES 

For the aforementioned services, the MMC shall reimburse the City solely 

from allocated and available Program Grant funds for eligible costs incurred 

by CPD, in an amount not to exceed $25,000 and in accordance with the 

Program budget submitted by MMC for the 2023 Program performance 

period of funding for the Grant.  Any future grant funding must be agreed 

upon between MMC, the City, and CalOES through the annual 

reapplication process. 

Any future applications and awarding of funds for 2023 Program funding 

cycle shall be by written amendment to this MOU and signed by both 

parties. 

Reimbursement, not exceeding a total of $25,000.00 during the term of this 

MOU, shall be paid by MMC to City on a monthly basis as provided in 

137

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



Section 8 below upon City’s submittal of any reports and substantiation 

materials reasonably requested by MMC to substantiate the 

reimbursement. 

4. EFFECTIVENESS AND DURATION 

The effectiveness of this MOU is contingent upon MMC receiving the Grant 

award. In signing this MOU, City shall be committed to the Grant Program for 

the portion of the funding cycle (commencing January 1, 2023 and ending 

December 31, 2023) remaining after this MOU is effective, and shall include an 

option to annually renew the Program for an additional four (4) consecutive 

years, contingent upon availability of funds and as mutually agreed by MMC 

and City. Any annual renewal of this MOU agreed upon by MMC and City will 

be for the then-current Program year and annual Grant period, and will be 

subject to CalOES approval, through a Grant application for continued funding. 

The City acknowledges and agrees that continued funding is dependent upon 

satisfactory performance and the availability of funds. 

5. TARGET POPULATION 

Services provided under this Program shall be directed to victims involved 

in domestic violence incidents, and their families, who are residents of the 

City of Clovis. 

6. RESOURCES TO BE CONTRIBUTED BY EACH PARTY 

Marjaree Mason Center, Inc. 

 One part-time Advocate;  

 MMC to provide shelter and other assistance to victims;  

 Supervision and training by Project Director; and 

 Access for victims, as identified by CPD, to MMC services within existing 

policies and procedures. 

  Clovis Police Department 

 Officer/Investigator to respond to domestic violence calls;  

 Office space, telephone, office supplies, and vehicles for detectives to 
perform the services under this MOU;  

 Office space, transportation for response to calls for service, computer, 

and telephone service at CPD headquarters for the Advocates; and 

 Access to domestic violence cases and reports, as authorized by CPD. 

7. RECORDKEEPING AND PERFORMANCE DATA 

MMC shall keep proper records of the following data: 

Number of Victims - Proper documentation of the number of victims served, 

calls for service, including number of cases reported, counseled, provided 

shelter and other assistance and any other information required by the 

Grant. 

138

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



8. FINANCIAL REPORTING, AUDITING AND DOCUMENT RETENTION 

City or CPD shall submit a monthly invoice to MMC for the eligible expenses 

incurred during the provision of services. Invoices shall include the 

following: 

(i) A breakdown of expenditures by cost  category; 

(ii) Copies of all purchase orders and requisitions; and 

(iii) Proof of payment for eligible expenditures. 

City agrees to provide a substantiation and support for services, fees, costs 

and expenses upon the reasonable request of the MMC for a period of not 

less than three (3) years after the end of the Program year. Records of 

City’s expenses pertaining to its services shall be kept on a generally 

recognized accounting basis and shall be available to MMC or its 

authorized representatives upon request during regular business hours for 

the duration of the MOU and for a period of three (3) years after the end of 

the MOU term. In addition, all books, documents, papers, and records of 

City pertaining to its services under this MOU shall be available for the 

purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions for 

the same period of time. 

9. TERMINATION 

The term of the MOU is for one year, commencing January 1, 2023, and 

ending December 31, 2023, with any renewal terms contingent mutual 

written agreement of MMC and City and on the reapplication process and 

approval by CalOES. For purposes of this MOU, each respective Program 

year and Grant period will be for 12 months as follows: 

 

Program Funding Cycle 

2023 

Program Year and Grant Period 

January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this MOU shall  terminate upon MMC’s 

written notice to City of any of the following events: (i) Program termination, 

(ii) any non-appropriation or non-allocation of Program funding required in 

pursuit hereof, (iii) City's improper use of Program funds, (iv) City's failure 

to comply with any term of this MOU, and (v) City's failure to comply with 

applicable Federal Drug/Alcohol regulations. Nothing in this MOU shall 

commit the taxing authority or general fund of MMC or the City. 

City may terminate this MOU upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to 

MMC in the event of either of the following: (i) non-appropriation by City's 

governing body of sufficient funds to perform its obligations under this MOU; 

or (ii) substantial failure of MMC to comply with any term of this MOU. 

Notwithstanding the above, prior to terminating this MOU for substantial 

139

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



failure of MMC to comply with any term of this MOU, City shall provide MMC 

with written notice of the failure to comply and allow for a fifteen (15) day 

cure period for MMC to substantially comply. 

In no event shall any payment by MMC constitute a waiver by MMC of any 

breach of this MOU or any default which may then exist on the part of City. 

Neither shall such payment impair or prejudice any remedy available to 

MMC with respect to the breach or default.  

10. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNING LAW AND GRANT 

The parties shall at all times comply with all applicable laws of the United 

States, the State of California, and with all applicable regulations 

promulgated by federal, state, regional, or local administrative and 

regulatory agencies, now in force and as they may be enacted, issued, or 

amended during the term of this MOU. MMC acknowledges receipt of a 

copy of the Grant and agrees to comply with all applicable provisions 

thereof and cooperate with City in meeting the requirements thereunder. 

The parties shall at all times comply with all applicable laws of the United 

States, the State of California, and with all applicable regulations 

promulgated by federal, state, regional, or local administrative and 

regulatory agencies, now in force and as they may be enacted, issued, or 

amended during the term of this MOU. City acknowledges receipt of a copy 

of the Grant and agrees to comply with all applicable provisions thereof and 

cooperate with MMC in meeting the requirements thereunder. 

As applicable, costs and expenditures must be allowable in accordance with 

applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations, the terms of the 

Program and the CalOES Subrecipient Handbook. 

11. CAPACITY OF MMC and CPD 

Nothing in this MOU, and nothing in the course of dealings between the City 

and MMC shall be deemed to create any fiduciary relationship, trust, 

partnership, joint venture, agency or employment relationship. 

12. INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY 

A. INSURANCE 

MINIMUM SCOPE OF INSURANCE 

Both MMC and City shall maintain the following insurance 
coverages, either through insurance policies or self-insurance, 
throughout the term of this MOU. 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. The most current version of Insurance Services Office (ISO) 

Commercial General Liability Coverage Form CG 00 01, 

providing liability coverage arising out of your business 

140

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



operations. The Commercial General Liability policy shall be 

written on an occurrence form and shall provide coverage for 

"bodily injury," "property damage" and "personal and 

advertising injury" with coverage for premises and operations 

(including the use of owned and non-owned equipment), 

products and completed operations, and contractual liability 

(including, without limitation, indemnity obligations under the 

Agreement) with limits of liability not less than those set forth 

under "Minimum Limits of Insurance." 

2. The most current version of ISO *Commercial Auto Coverage 

Form CA 00 01, providing liability coverage arising out of the 

ownership, maintenance or use of automobiles in the course of 

your business operations. The Automobile Policy shall be 

written on an occurrence form and shall provide coverage for 

all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles or other licensed 

vehicles (Code 1- Any Auto). If personal automobile coverage 

is used, MMC, its officers, officials, employees, agents and 

volunteers are to be listed as additional insureds. 

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of 

California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

4. Social Services Liability or Professional Liability (Abuse & 

Molestation) that insures against liability arising out of the 

bodily injury, personal injury, and third-party property damage 

occurring because of the wrongful or negligent acts attributable 

to the institution. This coverage should protect against a wide 

range of potential claims, including but not limited to assault, 

verbal and/or physical abuse, sexual molestation and other 

sexual misconducts. 

MINIMUM LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

City and MMC shall maintain limits of liability of not less than those 

set forth below. However, insurance limits available to MMC, its 

officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as additional 

insureds, shall be the greater of the minimum limits specified herein 

or the full limit of any insurance proceeds available to the named 

insured: 

1.   COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY: 

(i) $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and 
property damage; 

(ii) $1,000,000 per occurrence for personal injury; and 

(iii) $2,000,000 general aggregate applying separately to 

the work performed under this MOU. 

141

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



2. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: 

(i) $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 

damage. 

3. WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE:  

As required by the State of California with statutory limits. 

VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

Each party shall furnish to the other party all certificate(s) of 

insurance for the coverage(s) required by this MOU.   All certificates 

are to be received and approved by the each party’s Risk Manager 

or his/her designee prior to each party’s execution of the 

Agreement and before work commences. Upon request of either 

party, the other party shall immediately furnish the requesting party 

with a complete copy of any insurance policy required under this 

MOU, including all endorsements, with said copy certified by the 

underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy. This 

requirement shall survive expiration or termination of this MOU. 

B.  INDEMNIFICATION  

To the furthest extent allowed by law City and MMC shall mutually 

indemnify and hold harmless each other and their respective 

officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers from any and 

all loss, liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs and damages 

(whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to 

personal injury, death at any time and property damage) incurred by 

the party seeking indemnity and any other person, and from any 

and all claims, demands and actions in law or equity (including 

attorney's fees and litigation expenses and any costs or fees to 

enforce this agreement), arising or alleged to arise directly or 

indirectly from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of 

indemnifying party or any of the indemnifying party’s officers, 

officials, employees, agents or volunteers in the performance of this 

MOU. 

The obligations of the parties under the preceding sentence shall 

not apply to any loss, liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs or 

damages caused by the active or sole negligence, or the willful 

misconduct of the party seeking indemnity or any of its officers, 

officials, employees, agents or volunteers. 

If MMC should subcontract all or any portion of the services to be 

performed under this MOU, MMC shall require each subcontractor 

to indemnify, hold harmless and defend City, and each of its officers, 

officials, employees, agents and volunteers in accordance with the 

142

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



terms of the preceding paragraph. 

This section shall survive termination or expiration of this MOU. 

13. NOTICES 

Any notice required or intended to be given to either party under the terms 

of this MOU shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be duly given if 

delivered personally or deposited into the United States mail, return receipt 

requested, with postage prepaid, addressed to the party to which notice is 

to be given at the party's address set forth in Section 1 of this MOU or at 

such other address as the parties may from time to time designate by 

written notice. 

14.  BINDING 

Once this MOU is signed by the parties, it shall be binding upon, and shall 

inure to the benefit of, the parties, and each party's respective heirs, 

successors, assigns, transferees, agents, servants, employees, and 

representatives. 

15. ASSIGNMENT 

There shall be no assignment by either party of its rights or obligations 

under this MOU without the prior written approval of the other party. Any 

attempted assignment by a party, its successors or assigns, shall be null 

and void unless approved in writing by the other party. 

16. WAIVER 

The waiver by either party of a breach by the other of any provision of this 

MOU shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any 

subsequent breach of either the same or a different provision of this MOU. 

No provisions of this MOU may be waived unless in writing and approved 

by and signed by all parties to this MOU. Waiver of any one provision herein 

shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any provision herein. 

17.    GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 

This MOU shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance 

with, the laws of the State of California. Venue for purposes of the filing of 

any action regarding the enforcement or interpretation of this MOU and any 

rights and duties hereunder shall be Fresno County, California. 

18. HEADINGS 

The section headings in this MOU are for convenience and reference only 

and shall not be construed or held in any way to explain, modify or add to 

the interpretation or meaning of the provisions of this MOU. 

143

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



19. SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this MOU are severable. The invalidity, or unenforceability 

of any one provision in the MOU shall not affect the other provisions. 

20. INTERPRETATION 

The parties acknowledge that this MOU in its final form is the result of the 

combined efforts of the parties and that, should any provision of this MOU 

be found to be ambiguous in any way, such ambiguity shall not be resolved 

by construing this MOU in favor or against any party, but rather by construing 

the terms in accordance with their generally accepted meaning. 

21.  ENTIRE MOU 

It is mutually understood and agreed that the forgoing constitutes the entire 

MOU between the parties. Any modifications or amendments to this MOU 

must be in writing signed by an authorized agent of each party. 

 

 
[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

144

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



THIS MOU/AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO RATIFICATION BY COUNCIL 

ACTION UPON AWARD OF GRANT FUNDS. 

 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this MOU at Clovis, California as 

of the effective date first above written. 

 
 
 
MARJAREE MASON CENTER, INC.,                         CITY OF CLOVIS CALIFORNIA,  
a California non-profit organization          a municipal corporation 
 
 
BY: __________________________                          BY: __________________________  
       Nicole Linder, Executive Director        Curt Fleming, Chief of Police 
             City of Clovis Police Department
         
                                                                                          
 
 
      
 
 
 

 

 

145

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Public Utilities Department 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Public Utilities – Approval – Award Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreements 
for Hauling of Construction and Demolition Debris, and Update the City’s 
Approved Hauler List. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Approved Hauler List 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to award non-exclusive construction and demolition (C&D) hauling franchise 
agreements for two (2) years to the following haulers: 
1. Allied Waste Services (Republic Services) 
2. Industrial Waste & Salvage 
3. Kroeker, Inc. 
4. Mid Valley Disposal 
5. True Clean Construction Cleanup, Inc. 
6. Nick’s Trucking, Inc. 
7. North Cal Hauling Company 
8. Waste Management 
9. Legacy Construction Debris Service 
10. Valley Dumpster Service, LLC. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
On May 6, 2013, the City Council adopted Ordinance 13-12, pertaining to the recycling and 
diversion of construction and demolition (C&D) debris. One of the requirements of this ordinance 
is that all entities hauling C&D debris in the City of Clovis must apply for and be awarded a non-
exclusive C&D hauling franchise agreement. This year, the City received ten applications, nine 
of which are renewing their current agreements that are set to expire on June 30, 2023 and one 
of which is a new hauler. Staff has reviewed the applications for completeness and is 

146

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



recommending that all applicants be awarded two-year, non-exclusive C&D hauling franchise 
agreements and be added to the City’s updated list of approved haulers, which goes into effect 
on July 1, 2023. 
 
BACKGROUND 
AB 939 – the California Waste Management Act of 1989 (Public Resources Code §§ 40000 et 
seq.) – along with the California Green Building Standards Code (CCR, Title 24, Part 11) – also 
known as CALGreen – require the City of Clovis to prepare, adopt, and implement source 
reduction and recycling plans to reach landfill diversion goals. The City has achieved the State’s 
diversion goals, but AB 939 also requires the City to annually report to the State the quantities 
of waste that are disposed of in landfills and the quantities of waste that are diverted through 
recycling programs. CALGreen further instructs local jurisdictions to require contractors to 
develop and maintain a waste management plan and to divert a minimum of 65 percent of waste 
material. 
 
Debris from construction, demolition, and renovation of buildings is the largest waste stream 
from Clovis that is not hauled by the City itself or the City’s direct contractors. Prior to the 
adoption of Ordinance 13-12, the hauling of this waste was unregulated and the City had no 
means to track and report the quantities of this waste that were recycled or disposed of in 
landfills. The ordinance established non-exclusive C&D hauling franchises for haulers wishing 
to haul C&D debris generated within the City. The ordinance also prohibits non-franchised 
haulers from transporting C&D debris generated in Clovis. Lastly, the ordinance requires the 
franchised haulers to report to the City the quantities of this material that they recycle and 
dispose of in landfills and to pay the AB 939 surcharges associated with any C&D debris they 
dispose of in landfills.     
 
The ordinance established a fee of $1,000 for each two-year, non-exclusive franchise. The fee 
is based on the estimated costs for the staff time that will be spent to process each application 
and to review the quarterly reporting from each hauler. The ordinance was prepared with input 
from the Building Industry Association (BIA) and from local waste haulers. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no significant fiscal impact to the City associated with the award of these agreements. 
The application fee for the two-year, non-exclusive franchise agreement to haul C&D debris is 
based on the estimated costs for staff time to process the applications and to review and process 
the quarterly reports from each hauler. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Haulers must be franchised in order to haul C&D debris in the City of Clovis. All applicants 
recommended for approval have met the requirements for the non-exclusive franchise as 
outlined in the application form. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Originals of the franchise agreements will be forwarded to the City Manager for signature. Staff 
will notify the haulers that they have been awarded the non-exclusive franchise agreements. 

147

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



Staff will provide the Building Official with the list of the approved C&D haulers. Staff will monitor 
the franchised haulers’ reports for compliance with Ordinance 13-12. 
 
Prepared by: Kristen Freberg, Management Analyst 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH  

 

148

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



EFFECTIVE 07-01-23 

APPROVED CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION DEBRIS (C&D) HAULERS 

 Approval valid through 7-01-2024 

Clovis Recycling, Inc. Hinojosa Cleanup Service (HCS) 
1059 Hoblitt Avenue 777 Minnewawa Avenue, Suite 2 
Clovis, CA 93612 Clovis, CA 93612 
(559) 325-2128 (559) 647-2602
www.cnwenterprises.com www.hcsrolloff.com

F-N-F Roll-Off Service Kochergen Farms Composting, Inc. 
P.O. Box 11807 dba Green Valley Recycling 
Fresno, CA 93775 P.O. Box 11006 
(559) 318-0644 Fresno, CA 93771 
www.fnfrolloffservices.com (559) 498-0900

www.kochergenfarmscomposting.com

HD Matthews Demolition & Excavation Accurate Cleaning Systems 
P.O. Box 12483 802 Industrial Drive, Suite 200 
Fresno, CA 93778  Hollister, CA 95023 
(559) 275-3366 (831) 636-9767

Approval valid through 7-01-2025 

Allied Waste Services of Fresno Nick’s Trucking, Inc. 
5501 N. Golden State Boulevard 183 W. Indianapolis Ave. 
Fresno, CA 93722  Fresno, CA 93705 
(559) 275-1551 (559) 281-2267
www.republicservices.com

Industrial Waste & Salvage North Cal Hauling Company 
3457 S. Cedar Avenue 5716 Folsom Boulevard, PMB 285 
Fresno, CA 93725  Sacramento, CA 95819 
(559) 233-1159 (916) 381-9033
www.cagliaenvironmental.com www.northcalhauling.com

Kroeker, Inc.  Waste Management 
4627 S. Chestnut Avenue 4333 E. Jefferson Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93725  Fresno, CA 93725 
(559) 237-3764 (559) 834-4070
www.kroekerinc.com www.wm.com

Mid Valley Disposal Legacy Construction Debris Service 
2721 S. Elm Avenue, Fresno, CA 93706  1968 N. Gateway Boulevard, Ste. 103 
15300 W. Jensen Avenue, Kerman, CA 93630 Fresno, CA 93727 
(559) 237-9425 (559) 251-1605
www.midvalleydisposal.com

True Clean Construction Cleanup, Inc. Valley Dumpster Service LLC 
2505 E. Oakdale Avenue  1187 N. Willow, Ste.103 #314 
Tulare, CA 93274  Clovis, CA 93611 
(559) 936-7557 (559) 999-5797

info@valleydumpsterservice.com

ATTACHMENT 1

149

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.

http://www.cnwenterprises.com/
http://www.hcsrolloff.com/
http://www.fnfrolloffservices.com/
http://www.kochergenfarmscomposting.com/
http://www.republicservices.com/
http://www.cagliaenvironmental.com/
http://www.kroekerinc.com/
http://www.midvalleydisposal.com/


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Police Department 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Consider Introduction – Ord. 23-__ An ordinance of the City Council of 
the City of Clovis adding Chapter 4.14 to Title 4 of the Clovis Municipal 
Code prohibiting spectators at vehicle sideshows in the City of Clovis.  
 
Staff: Iri Guerra, Police Lieutenant 

Recommendation: Approve 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Ordinance 23-__ 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends council approve the introduction of Ordinance 23-__ to amend the City of 
Clovis Municipal Code to prohibit spectators attending vehicle sideshows, and to prohibit the 
promotion of vehicle sideshows, with such activities being deemed a nuisance.   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Department, in conjunction with the City Attorney’s Office, prepared the proposed additions 
to the Clovis Municipal Code for prohibiting spectators of vehicle sideshows, and persons 
promoting vehicle sideshows (Chapter 4.14).  The purpose of the ordinance is to deter 
individuals from attending vehicle sideshows within the City, and to provide the Department with 
the ability to arrest and/or fine those who choose to spectate or promote illegal sideshows. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The California Vehicle Code defines a vehicle sideshow as an event in which two or more 
persons block or impede traffic on a highway or in an off-street parking facility, for the purpose 
of performing motor vehicle stunts (such as donuts and burnouts), speed contests, exhibitions 
of speed, or reckless driving for spectators. (Veh. Code § 23109, subd. (i)(2)(A).)  These 
sideshows disrupt traffic, create safety issues, and often result in property damage and the 

150

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



accumulation of trash and rubbish.  The danger from sideshows exists not only for the persons 
driving the vehicles in a reckless manner, but also to the spectators, innocent pedestrians, and 
innocent motorists in the area.  Several recent incidents within the City have necessitated the 
need to address this issue. 
 
On November 28, 2021, approximately 500 people occupied the intersection of Willow Ave. and 
Shepherd Ave. for a sideshow.  Officers arrived and were met with people throwing fireworks 
and bottles at them.  This group of people continued their sideshow at six other intersections 
throughout Fresno and Clovis. 
 
On April 13, 2023, there were reports of reckless driving and street racing occurring in the Harlan 
Ranch area of town.  The lack of regard to the narrow and residential nature of the area has the 
residents fearing for their safety. 
 
On May 4, 2023, a citizen reported that street racing and reckless driving are happening in the 
area near Gettysburg Ave. and Leonard Ave. on the weekends.  The resident has obvious safety 
concerns and is complaining about the noise caused by the vehicles. 
 
The Vehicle Code provides officers with the authority to arrest the drivers of the vehicles involved 
in illegal sideshows, and those individuals who specifically aid and abet the activity. (Veh. Code 
§ 23109, subd. (c).)  But this section does not apply to any of the spectators that are knowingly 
promoting and attending sideshows to encourage the furtherance of this illegal activity.  
Accordingly, many cities throughout the state have passed ordinances to address issue of 
spectators at vehicle sideshows.  
 
The addition of Chapter 4.14 to the City’s Municipal Code specifically addresses persons who 
spectate and promote vehicle sideshows.  The purpose of the Ordinance is to deter individuals 
from attending and promoting these illegal vehicle sideshows within the City.  The Ordinance 
provides an enforcement mechanism for the Department by making it unlawful for a person to 
“knowingly” spectate or help in making preparations for a sideshow.  To avoid citing innocent 
bystanders, the Ordinance also provides relevant criteria to support an officer finding that 
someone is knowingly spectating or promoting a sideshow.  Violation of the Ordinance would be 
considered a misdemeanor subject to a maximum six-month jail sentence, a fine not to exceed 
$1,000, or both.  Furthermore, the Ordinance provides the Department with the authority to tow 
and impound the vehicles of any person found to be in violation of the Ordinance, in accordance 
with the Vehicle Code.  
 
By making spectators and promoters liable for their support of these illegal activities, the 
Department hopes this Ordinance will discourage vehicle sideshows from happening within the 
City.  Vehicle sideshows are specifically defined as illegal motor vehicle events for spectators.  
Therefore, if the Department can reduce the number of spectators and promoters of sideshows 
with the threat of that person’s arrest, the issuance of a fine, and the impounding of spectator 
vehicles, we hope to significantly reduce the occurrence of sideshows within the City. 
 
 
 

151

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



FISCAL IMPACT 
The Department would anticipate a minimal increase in City revenue relating to any fines 
assessed pursuant to the adoption of the Ordinance.   
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
To create an enforcement mechanism to deter illegal vehicle sideshows within the City by 
making it a violation of the Municipal Code to knowingly spectate or promote illegal vehicle 
sideshows in the City.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
This Ordinance shall go into effect thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption.   
 
Prepared by: Iri Guerra, Police Lieutenant 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

152

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



1 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

ORDINANCE 23-__ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS ADDING 
CHAPTER 4.14 OF TITLE 4 OF THE CLOVIS MUNICIPAL CODE PROHIBITING 

SPECTATORS AT VEHICLE SIDESHOWS IN THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
 
The City Council of the City of Clovis does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 4.14 of Title 4 of the Clovis Municipal Code is hereby added to read 

as follows:  

Chapter 4.14 

Prohibition Against Spectators at Vehicle Sideshows 
Sections: 

 4.14.01 Findings. 

4.14.02 Purpose. 

 4.14.03 Definitions. 

 4.14.04 Declaration of Sideshows as a Nuisance. 

4.14.05 Attending Sideshows is Prohibited. 

4.14.06 Promoting Sideshows is Prohibited. 

4.14.07 Relevant Circumstances to Prove a Violation. 

4.14.08 Violations. 

4.14.09 Severability. 

  

4.14.01 Findings. 

In adopting this chapter, the Council makes the following findings: 

(a) Pursuant to California Vehicle Code sections 23103 and 23109, motor vehicle 

speed contests and exhibitions of speed such as street races and reckless 

driving exhibitions conducted on public streets and highways are illegal.  

Although there are laws against aiding and abetting speed contests or exhibitions 

of speed, the law is silent as to the other spectators who knowingly attend and 

encourage the furtherance of such illegal activity.  

(b) Per Foley v. Superior Court, local ordinances that criminalize attending an illegal 

speed contest or exhibition of speed are not preempted by state law. (Foley v. 

Superior Court (2004) 117 Cal.App.4th 206.) 

153

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



2 
 

(c) Illegal speed contests and exhibitions of speed often generate spectators who 

gather to help setup, aid, and witness the illegal exhibition.  

(d) Illegal speed contests and exhibitions of speed are dangerous to both the drivers 

participating in the illegal exhibition and the public in general, including 

spectators, businesses, residents, pedestrians and drivers not participating in the 

exhibition. 

(e) As police officers respond to sideshows, spectators often interfere with the 

officers’ ability to arrest participants engaged in illegal speed contests or 

exhibitions of speed as spectators will block the officers’ vehicles by standing in 

the street or blocking the street with their vehicles so the participants who 

engaged in the illegal speed contests and exhibitions of speed can escape 

arrest.  

(f) When sideshows are dispersed following a police response, danger to spectators 

and the general public occurs due to the vehicles fleeing the scene at high rates 

of speed.   

(g) Vehicles speeding and spinning their tires on City streets cause complaints from 

citizens due to the excessive noise generated by the illegal activity.   

(h) Illegal speed contests and exhibitions of speed cause damage to City streets.  

(i) Sideshows often result in trash and debris left on City streets by spectators.   

(j) Sideshows cause impediments to normal traffic as spectators block City streets 

to facilitate the illegal speed contests and exhibitions of speed.   

(k) The presence of spectators at these events encourages the illegal speed 

contests and exhibitions of speed.  

(l) The Clovis Police Department has responded to numerous sideshows within the 

City, expending limited police resources to combat these issues, and the number 

of the sideshows has increased in recent years in Clovis and throughout Fresno 

County.   

(m)The City of Clovis has a compelling interest in curbing the dangers from speed 

contests, exhibitions of speed, reckless driving, and sideshows. This ordinance is 

a valid exercise of the City’s police power to discourage or prevent further illegal 

activity, and the regulations of this chapter are narrowly tailored to serve that 

compelling interest.   

4.14.02 Purpose. 

This chapter is enacted to prohibit spectators at sideshows on public streets and 

highways, public property, and off-street parking facilities, and to prohibit the gathering 

of spectators at these events.  The purpose of this chapter is to prohibit this unsafe 

activity.  These regulations target very clear and limited activities and provide proper 

154

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



3 
 

notice to the public of the activities that are considered a nuisance and prohibited under 

this ordinance.  In prohibiting spectators at sideshows and the promotion of sideshows, 

the City intends to take a significant step toward protecting the public health and safety 

by making its streets and highways safer to pedestrians, motorists, and the general 

public.  

4.14.03 Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, the following definitions shall apply:  

(a) “Sideshow” means a gathering, procession, or assemblage of at least two (2) or 

more persons that block or impede traffic on a street, highway, or Off-street 

Parking Facility for the purpose of exhibiting either a Speed Contest, Exhibition of 

Speed, reckless driving, or illegal and/or dangerous motor vehicle stunts and/or 

maneuvers in the presence of at least one (1) Spectator.  

(b) “Exhibition of Speed” or “Speed Contest” means any illegal speed contest or 

illegal exhibition of speed referred to in California Vehicle Code section 23109, 

and any reckless driving as referred to in California Vehicle Code section 23103, 

as either code section may be amended.  These definitions include but are not 

limited to a motor vehicle engaging in activities commonly referred to as 

burnouts, donuts, and figure eights wherein a motor vehicle is accelerated in 

such a manner to cause the tires to lose traction, cause the motor vehicle to spin, 

and generate excessive noise and smoke from the tires.  

(c) “Spectator” means any person who is knowingly present at a Sideshow, or at a 

location where Preparations for a sideshow are being made, for the purpose of 

viewing, observing, watching, or witnessing the event as it progresses. A 

“Spectator” includes any person present at the location of the event without 

regard to the means by which the person arrived. 

(d) “Knowingly” refers to an individual being aware of the facts, circumstances, or 

situations which bring the prohibited act(s) within the terms of this chapter. It 

does not require any knowledge of the unlawfulness of such acts. 

(e) “Present” means the individual is on a public street or highway, public property, 

an Off-street Parking Facility, or private property without the consent of the 

owner, operator, or agent thereof, and the individual is within one hundred and 

fifty (150) feet of the location of the Sideshow, or within one hundred and fifty 

(150) feet of the location where Preparations are being for a sideshow.  

(f) “Preparations” for a Sideshow include, but is not limited to any of the following: 

(1) At least three (3) motor vehicles and at least three (3) persons have 

arrived at a predetermined location on a public street, highway, any public 

property, or Off-street Parking Facility to engage in a Sideshow; 

155

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



4 
 

(2) At least two (2) individuals have gathered on, or adjacent to, one or both 

sides of a public street or highway; 

(3) One or more persons have impeded the free public use of a public street, 

highway, any public property, or Off-street Parking Facility by actions, 

words, or physical barriers for the purpose of conducting a Sideshow; 

(4) Two (2) or more motor vehicles have lined up, on a public street, highway, 

any public property, or Off-street Parking Facility with engines running, for 

a Speed Contest or Exhibition of Speed; 

(5) One or more drivers are revving their engine or spinning their tires in 

preparation for a Speed Contest or Exhibition of Speed; 

(6) An individual is stationed near one or more motor vehicles to initiate a 

Speed Contest or Exhibition of Speed. 

(g) “Promote” shall mean the act of any person putting forward, publicizing, 

advertising, encouraging, or instigating others to participate or attend a 

Sideshow.  This includes but not be limited to social media posts, text messages, 

flyers, signs, and any written or verbal communications to publicize a Sideshow. 

(h) “Off-street Parking Facility” shall have the same meaning as California Vehicle 

Code section 12500, subdivision (c), as may be amended. 

(i) “Scene” means the location of a Sideshow or the location of the Preparations for 

the Sideshow. 

4.14.04 Declaration of Sideshows as a Nuisance. 

Sideshows, Preparations and Promotion for a Sideshow, and the attendance of 

Sideshows, in the City of Clovis, are each hereby declared to be a nuisance.    

4.14.05 Attending Sideshows is Prohibited.   

It shall be unlawful for any person to: (1) be a Spectator at a Sideshow conducted on a 

public street or highway, or Off-street Parking Facility, within the City; or (2) be a 

Spectator where Preparations are being made for a Sideshow conducted on a public 

street or highway, or Off-street Parking Facility, within the City. 

Nothing in this Section prohibits law enforcement officers, medical professionals, 

firefighters or any person not a spectator from being present at a Sideshow in the 

course of their official duties. 

 

4.14.06  Promoting Sideshows is Prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to knowingly promote: (1) the gathering of persons as 

Spectators at a Sideshow conducted on a public street or highway, or Off-street Parking 

156

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



5 
 

Facility, or (2) the gathering of persons as Spectators where Preparations are being 

made for a Sideshow conducted on a public street or highway, or Off-street Parking 

Facility.  

 

4.14.07 Relevant Circumstances to Prove a Violation. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, to prove a violation of any provisions 

of this chapter, admissible evidence may include, but is not limited to, any of the 

following: 

(1) The time of day; 

(2) The nature and description of the Scene; 

(3) The number of individuals at the Scene; 

(4) The location of the individual charged in relation to any individual, group, 

or motor vehicles present at the Scene; 

(5) The number and description of the motor vehicles present at the Scene; 

(6)  The individual charged with a violation of this chapter knowingly drove or 

was transported to the Scene; 

(7)  The individual charged has previously participated in a Speed Contest, 

Exhibition of Speed, or Sideshow; 

(8)  The individual charged has previously aided and abetted, or helped in 

the Preparations of a Sideshow; 

(9)  The individual charged was previously present at a location as a 

Spectator where a Sideshow was in progress; 

(10)  The individual charged was recording the Sideshow as the event was in 

progress; 

(11)  The individual charged posted information relating to the time and/or 

location of a Sideshow on a social media account that they own, are 

associated with, have access to;  

(12)  The individual charged has previously posted information relating to the 

time and/or location of a Sideshow on a social media account that they 

own, are associated with, or have access to; and 

(13) Prior acts relating to Sideshows are relevant, whether they occurred 

within or outside the City.  

 

157

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



6 
 

4.14.08 Violations. 

(a) Any person who violates any provision of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor, 

punishable by imprisonment in the county jail not to exceed six (6) months, or a 

fine not to exceed $1,000.00, or both. The City Attorney maintains the discretion 

to charge any violation of this chapter as an infraction.  

(b) Any Spectator arrested for a violation of any provision of this chapter is subject to 

having their vehicle towed and impounded from the Scene in accordance with 

California Vehicle Code sections 22651, subdivision (h) and 22655.5, subdivision 

(a).  The legal owner of the towed vehicle may be required to pay the City’s 

towing and storage fees pursuant to California Vehicle Code section 22850.5. 

4.14.09 Severability. 

If any article, section, sentence, clause or phrase of this chapter is for any reason held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this chapter. The 

Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this chapter and adopted each 

article, section, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one 

or more articles, sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared 

invalid or unconstitutional. 

Section 2. This Ordinance shall go into full force and effect after thirty (30) days from 

its final passage and adoption. 

APPROVED:   June 5, 2023 
 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 
The foregoing Ordinance was introduced and read at a regular meeting of the City Council 
held on June 5, 2023, and was adopted at a regular meeting of said Council held on 
___________, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 

158

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Res. 23-___, A resolution revising the Master 
Development Fee Schedule and Providing a Description of Fees to be 
Requested for County Adoption. (Continued from the May 8, 2023, 
meeting.) 
 
Staff: Sean Smith, Supervising Civil Engineer 

Recommendation: Approve  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 23-__, Revising Master Development Fee Schedule 
2. Master Development Fee Schedule 23-24 
3. Fee Comparisons 23-24 
4. Nexus Sheets for Development Impact Fees 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve Res. 23-___, revising the Master Development Fee Schedule 
and providing a description of fees to be requested for County Adoption. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff proposes an update to the Development Impact Fees (DIF) in accordance with applicable 
provisions of the municipal code, which authorizes an annual adjustment to reflect actual 
construction and acquisition costs based on market conditions. The municipal code also 
authorizes an annual adjustment based on the Construction Cost Index (CCI) for California 
Cities, but staff is proposing to use the market-based actual cost method based on Council’s 
direction at last year’s fee update hearing and the substantial local volatility of construction costs. 
For reference, the average CCI between the Los Angeles and San Francisco areas for calendar 
year 2022 is +4.6%.  
 

159

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



The most significant increases within the DIF program are within the water categories. Staff 
introduced these increases to Council on May 8, 2023, for consideration. Council directed staff, 
“to continue the item to a date uncertain at which time staff will come back with all of the fees 
with the exception of water which will be deferred until we have that higher level discussion.”  
Staff is now returning to request consideration and approval of all the other fees with no increase 
to the water category fees. The overall increase in Development Impact Fees to a development 
project is dependent upon the land use and the location of the project within the City. The overall 
increases have been lessened from the initial proposal on May 8, 2023. The increases previously 
ranged from 12% to 23%, but now range from 2% to 10%. 
 
No increase is proposed for the Water Supply Fee as it was re-established and approved by 
Council in March 2020 based on the current fixed costs to acquire 7,000 acre-feet of water per 
year.  
 
Administrative fee rates are based on a percentage of certain DIF and have been evaluated and 
found to be adequate and do not need to be updated with this DIF update. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The comprehensive fee evaluation based on the market conditions requires staff to analyze 
current construction costs, and to re-evaluate, quantify, and estimate the remaining planned City 
infrastructure needed for the estimated growth, update the DIF fund balances, and review market 
trends. 
 
Last year Council limited the increases to the Sewer, Water and Street categories in 
consideration of the uncertainty in the projected market and inflation. There was a belief that the 
substantial inflation in construction cost represented a spike and that costs would normalize and 
possibly come back down over the following year. However, this year’s comprehensive review 
and fee evaluation shows a continued increase in inflation, labor, and material costs since the 
last update. There is some opinion in the development and construction industry of some cost 
reductions going forward. However, those same opinions proved incorrect over the past year. 
Staff believes, even if inflation slows, costs are not likely to decline appreciably and will certainly 
not return to pre-inflation (2021) levels over the next year. Limiting the necessary DIF increases 
based on assumptions of construction costs decreasing over the next year, as was done last 
year, is likely to result in widening the gap between the funds needed to build the infrastructure 
associated with the estimated growth and the funds collected to build the necessary 
infrastructure. 
 
Staff considered several options for the water category fees but is proposing no increase at this 
time as requested by Council. At Council’s direction, staff will work with stakeholders to further 
review the water category fees and return later with another proposal for Council’s consideration. 
Some of the options that staff has considered are: 
 

a) a +4.6% increase based on CCI from December 2021 to December 2022 and as 
suggested by the BIA, 

b) a +5.5% increase based on CCI from the last DIF adjustment approved in July 2022 
to May 2023,  

160

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



c) a +10% increase as suggested by a Councilmember during the May 8th discussion, 
or 

d) a +61% increase based on the comprehensive analysis performed by staff and 
consultants. 

 
The municipal code provides for an annual update of the DIF program either through a 
comprehensive market-based review and evaluation of the fee rates or through an adjustment 
based on the average CCI between the Los Angeles and San Francisco areas for the twelve 
(12) month period ending the prior December. 
 
Regular annual review, evaluation, and adjustments to DIFs are needed to keep pace with 
construction cost fluctuations and ensure that infrastructure associated with growth is fully 
funded. The CCI provides an appropriate alternative measurement of construction cost 
fluctuations and serves as a good basis for adjusting the fees between major cost reevaluations. 
In turn, these adjustments ensure timely reimbursements to developers who install infrastructure 
that is beyond their fair share. 
 
Overall Results 
The rate revisions, excluding water, will result in an increase in overall Development Impact Fees 
to a development project that ranges from 2% to 10% depending on land use and location. 
 
Stakeholder Outreach 
A series of emails was provided to a group of over 130 stakeholders describing the proposed 
increases and all were offered the opportunity to meet in person with staff to discuss the 
proposed increases to the fees. Four meetings were held, and they occurred weekly, with one 
the last week of March and the others occurring the first three weeks of April, prior to the initial 
Council meeting on May 8. The stakeholders included the Building Industry Association (BIA), 
Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District (FMFCD), the Clovis Unified School District, and 
several local residential and non-residential developers. Several separate meetings were also 
held with smaller stakeholder groups upon request. The stakeholder meetings lead to the 
refining of several fees, including Sewer, Water and Fire. After the May 8th Council meeting, 
staff met with the BIA on May 17 and held a separate stakeholder meeting on May 18. 
 
As of the time of this staff report, no correspondence has been received from the stakeholders. 
 
Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code, Sections 66000 – 66024) 
Section 66001 of the Government Code requires that the City shall do all of the following at the 
time that it establishes, increases or imposes a fee as a condition of approval of a development 
project: 
 

1. Identify the purpose of the fee. 
2. Identify the use to which the fee is to be put (identify the public facilities to be 

constructed). 
3. Determine how there is a reasonable relationship (nexus) between the fees and 

the type of development project on which the fee is imposed. 

161

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



4. Determine how there is a reasonable relationship (nexus) between the need for 
the public facility and the type of development project on which the fee is imposed. 

 
Items 1 and 2 are clearly identified in various provisions of the municipal code for each fee. Items 
3 and 4 are met through multiple actions taken by the City Council such as: 
 

1. The General Plan 
2. Specific Plans 
3. Master Plans for Sewer, Water, Recycled Water, etc. 
4. The method by which fee rates are established which evaluates the cost of 

improvements identified in the various adopted plans and distributes that cost 
among the developable properties within the respective service areas in rough 
proportion to their impact on, or need for, the public facilities. 

 
AB602 (Government Code, Section 66016.5(a)(5) 
 
AB602 established new requirements beginning in 2022 for agencies implementing 
Development Impact Fee programs to base residential impact fees on the square footage of the 
proposed residential units or make specific findings to explain why other metrics are appropriate. 
To comply with AB602, staff evaluated and compared the current metrics used for imposing DIFs 
with the proposed square foot metric, and staff has determined the effectiveness and 
appropriateness of the current metrics for imposing DIFs by the City is established with decades 
of data and results. Staff worked with the City Attorney’s Office to provide Council with the 
necessary findings to justify continued use of the current City metrics of imposing DIFs (Fees 
based on acreage or dwelling units) rather than an untested, unproven, and speculative metric 
based on residential square footage. These findings are included in Appendix A of the Nexus 
Sheets, Attachment 4 and are included as part of the Resolution for approving the updated fee 
schedule. 
 
Staff concluded that the current method in which Development Impact Fees are imposed either 
on a per unit basis or a per acreage basis has proven to be a fair means for housing 
developments. To charge based on a square footage basis would be unsupported by empirical 
data and less compliant with the Mitigation Fee Act.  
 
County Developments 
The Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Clovis and the County of Fresno (MOU) 
includes a provision for county developments within the Clovis Sphere of Influence, as follows: 
 

“CITY development fees shall be charged for any discretionary development applications 
to be approved by the COUNTY within the CITY’s sphere of influence. To establish or 
amend CITY development fees, CITY shall conduct a public hearing and notify property 
owners in accordance with State Law. At the conclusion of that hearing, CITY shall adopt 
a resolution describing the type, amount, and purpose of CITY fees to be requested for 
COUNTY adoption.” 

 

162

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



“CITY shall transmit the adopted resolution to the COUNTY for its adoption of the fees. 
CITY shall include a draft ordinance for COUNTY’s adoption with appropriate supporting 
documentation or findings by the CITY demonstrating that the fees comply with Section 
66000 of the Government Code and other applicable State Law requirements…” 

 
The resolution under consideration includes a statement of finding that the fees comply with the 
Government Code and describes the type, amount and purpose of the fees by reference to the 
Master Development Fee Schedule and the Municipal Code. This resolution and a draft 
ordinance will be transmitted to the County of Fresno for adoption upon approval by council. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The increases to the fee rates will provide funding commensurate with current land acquisition 
and construction costs for the public facilities needed to serve new development. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The findings for AB602 to justify continued use of the City’s current method of imposing DIFs 
can be made as staff’s analysis indicates that the City’s metrics are the most appropriate for the 
basis of imposing residential impact fees rather than the square footage of proposed residential 
units. 
 
The Municipal Code requires annual review and adjustment of the fees based on actual land 
acquisition and construction costs or the percentage increase or decrease in the Engineering 
News Record Index for the California Cities for the twelve (12) month period ending the prior 
December. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 

1. Staff will notify the development community and implement the new fee rates 60 
days after approval of the resolution. 

 
2. Staff will proceed with getting the fees adopted by the Fresno County Board of 

Supervisors. 
 
3. Staff will return to Council with a recommendation for fee revisions to the water 

category following additional stakeholder meetings. 
 
Prepared by: Sean Smith, Supervising Civil Engineer 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

163

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



RESOLUTION 23-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS REVISING THE 
MASTER DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE AND PROVIDING A DESCRIPTION OF FEES 

TO BE REQUESTED FOR COUNTY ADOPTION 
 

WHEREAS, the State of California has enacted Section 66000 et seq. of the Government 

Code (“Mitigation Fee Act”) which allows the City to collect development impact fees; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has duly adopted various development impact fees in accordance 

with applicable provisions of the Mitigation Fee Act, and such fees are described in applicable 

provisions of the Clovis Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 3.10 of the Clovis Municipal Code, adopted in accordance with the 

Mitigation Fee Act, requires the City’s Development Impact Fees to be annually reviewed and 

adjusted by one of the following methods: (1) automatically adjusted each fiscal, effective July 

1, by the percentage equal (increase or decrease) to the Engineering News-Record Index for 

the California Cities for the twelve (12) month period ending the prior December, or (2) adjusted 

to reflect actual construction/acquisition costs; and 

 

WHEREAS, Clovis Municipal Code section 3.10.02 provides that any annual increase to 

Development Impact Fees by one of the authorized methods is not deemed an increase to the 

fees subject to the Mitigation Fee Act, and any adjusted fees shall be subject to City Council 

review and approval by resolution and shall be included in the City’s Master Development Fee 

Schedule; and 

 

WHEREAS, the State of California recently enacted Section 66016.5(a)(5) of the 

Government Code, which is one of the changes resulting from AB 602, which requires a new 

nexus study for development impact fees after July 1, 2022, to calculate the fees imposed on 

a housing development project proportionately to the square footage of proposed units, but 

also authorizes the fees to be calculated and imposed without complying with the square 

footage metric if certain findings are made; and 

 

WHEREAS, City staff has performed the annual review of development impact fees, 

conducted the required nexus analysis, and prepared the nexus report for the City’s fiscal year 

2023-2024 Development Impact Fees, including the necessary findings required by 

Government Code section 66016.5(a)(5)(B) for using an alternative basis for calculating fees 

rather than the inappropriate square footage metric of calculating fees, which nexus report and 

findings are incorporated herein by this reference, and  recommends the City Council approve 

the nexus report and findings, and approve an adjustment to the fee rates based on current 

actual construction costs as authorized by Clovis Municipal Code section 3.10.02(b); and 

Attachment 1 

164

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



 

WHEREAS, the applicable first amendment to the memorandum of understanding 

between the County of Fresno and the City of Clovis (MOU) requires that the City adopt a 

resolution describing the type, amount, and purpose of City development impact fees to be 

requested for County adoption; and 

 

WHEREAS, the MOU further requires the City make findings demonstrating that the fees 

comply with applicable provisions of the Mitigation Fee Act and State law; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing on the proposed 

adjustment to the City’s Development Impact Fees at the regular City Council meeting on May 

8, 2023, and considered the staff report, including all attachments to the staff report, the 

presentation from staff during the meeting, and all oral and written comments and materials 

provided at the meeting, and continued the items to a date uncertain; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a second duly noticed public hearing on the 

proposed adjustment to the City’s Development Impact Fees at the regular City Council 

meeting on June 5, 2023, and considered the staff report, including all attachments to the staff 

report, the presentation from staff during the meeting, and all oral and written comments and 

materials provided at the meeting. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS HERBY FINDS 

AND RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS,  

 

1. The referenced and incorporated Nexus Report for Development Impact Fees Fiscal 

Year 2023-2024, including the Findings in Support of the Continuation of City Policies to 

Calculate and Impose Residential Development Impact Fees on a Per Unit or Per Acre 

Basis, is hereby approved. 

 

2. The referenced and incorporated Findings in Support of the Continuation of City Policies 

to Calculate and Impose Residential Development Impact Fees on a Per Unit or Per Acre 

Basis includes an adequate discussion and justification as required by Government Code 

section 66016.5(a)(5)(B), including but not limited to: (i) an explanation as to why square 

footage is not an appropriate metric to calculate fees imposed on a housing development 

project, (ii) an explanation that an alternative basis of calculating the fee bears a 

reasonable relationship between the fee charged and the burden posed by the 

development, and (ii) that other policies in the fee structure support smaller developments, 

or otherwise ensure that smaller developments are not charged disproportionate fees. 

 

165

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



3. City staff’s annual review of and proposed adjustment to the City’s Development Impact 

Fees is in accordance with Chapter 3.10 of the Clovis Municipal Code and applicable 

provisions of the Mitigation Fee Act, and the Master Development Fee Schedule for 

charges therein provided and attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, is hereby approved, and any 

adjusted fee rates shall be effective beginning sixty (60) days following approval of this 

Resolution. 

 

4. This Resolution is effective immediately and shall continue in force unless amended or 

repealed by the City Council. 

 

5. The types, amounts, and purposes of the fees to be adopted by the County of Fresno 

are described on the Master Development Fee Schedule (Exhibit “A” attached hereto) and 

in the Clovis Municipal Code, and the City Council of the City of Clovis does hereby find 

that the fees are in compliance with applicable state laws including without limitation the 

Mitigation Fee Act including Government Code Sections 66000, et seq. 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on June 5, 2023, by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED: June 5, 2023 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 

166

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



CITY OF CLOVIS

MASTER DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Effective August 7, 2023

Residential                         (Units per Acre) Water oversize

Residential                   2.0 or less $8,580 per unit All Areas except RT Ph 1,2 $1,682 per gross acre

Residential                   2.1 to 2.5 $8,580 per unit RT Park Phase 1, 2 $182 per gross acre

Residential                   2.6 to 3.0 $8,580 per unit

Residential                   3.1 to 3.5 $8,580 per unit Water front footage

Residential                   3.6 to 4.0 $8,580 per unit All Areas except RT Ph 1,2 $27.40 per linear foot

Residential                   4.1 to 4.5 $8,580 per unit RT Park Phase 1, 2 $0

Residential                   4.6 to 5.0 $7,283 per unit

Residential                   5.1 to 5.5 $5,987 per unit Non-Potable Water System $2,454 per gross acre

Residential                   5.6 to 6.0 $5,851 per unit

Residential                   6.1 to 6.5 $5,716 per unit

Residential                   6.6 to 7.0 $5,581 per unit Water meter:

Residential                   7.1 to 7.5 $5,445 per unit          3/4" $348 each

Residential                   7.6 to 8.0 $5,311 per unit          1" $435 each

Residential                   8.1 to 8.5 $5,174 per unit          1 1/2" (residential only) $737 each

Residential                   8.6 to 9.0 $5,038 per unit          2"  (residential only) $940 each

Residential                   9.1 to 9.5 $4,902 per unit          1 1/2" (landscape) $946 each

Residential                 9.6 to 10.0 $4,768 per unit          2" (landscape) $1,080 each

Residential                10.1 to 10.5 $4,632 per unit          3" (landscape) $1,520 each

Residential                10.6 to 11.0 $4,490 per unit          4" (landscape) $2,523 each

Residential                11.1 to 11.5 $4,437 per unit          6" (landscape) $4,559 each

Residential                11.6 to 12.0 $4,383 per unit          1 1/2" (MFR & Non-res) $1,277 each

Residential                12.1 to 12.5 $4,330 per unit          2" (MFR & Non-res) $1,449 each

Residential                12.6 to 13.0 $4,275 per unit          3" (MFR & Non-res) $1,991 each

Residential                13.1 to 13.5 $4,221 per unit          4" (MFR & Non-res) $3,120 each

Residential                13.6 to 14.0 $4,168 per unit          6" (MFR & Non-res) $5,438 each

Residential                14.1 to 14.5 $4,114 per unit

Residential                14.6 to 15.0 $4,058 per unit Transceiver Fee $170 each

Residential                15.1 to 15.5 $4,005 6474

Residential                15.6 to 16.0 $3,951 per unit Water service w/meter:

Residential                16.1 to 16.5 $3,899 per unit          3/4" $6,485 each

Residential                16.6 to 17.0 $3,843 per unit          1" $6,572 each

Residential                17.1 to 17.5 $3,789 per unit          1 1/2" $7,522 each

Residential                17.6 to 18.0 $3,735 per unit          2" $8,166 each

Residential                18.1 to 18.5 $3,682 per unit

Residential                18.6 to 19.0 $3,628 per unit

Residential                19.1 to 19.5 $3,574 per unit

Residential                19.6 to 20.0 $3,518 per unit

Commercial Retail $4.29 per bldg sf

Professional Office $4.29 per bldg sf

Industrial $1.16 per bldg sf

Schools $8,980 per gross acre

Public Facilities $2.32 per bldg sf

Assisted Living $4.06 per bldg sf

Water Major Facilities Water  

Water Service

H:\DRU\Development Fees Updates\2023-24\0.0 Fee Schedule 23-24.xlsxFee Schedule 2023-2024 Full 1 of 5  

1 of 7

Attachment 2

167

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



CITY OF CLOVIS

MASTER DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Effective August 7, 2023

Sewer Major Facilities Undergrounding administration fee 1.50% of UG fees

Single Family Residential $9,584 per unit

Multi-Family Residential $7,763 per unit Street administration fee 1.50% of street fees

Commercial Retail $5.75 per bldg sf

Professional Office $4.89 per bldg sf Administration fee 1.50% of fees

Industrial $2.68 per bldg sf

Assisted Living $9,584 per EDU Fire Department Fee (Growth Areas)

*Other $9,584 per EDU    Outside Core Area $2,075 per unit

      All Projects in Core Area (Page 7) $0    Core Area $0

Sewer oversize Police Department Fee

All Areas except RT Ph 1,2 $1,114 per gross acre      Growth Areas $1,457 per unit

RT Park Phase 1, 2 $0      Core Area $0

Sewer front footage Special Area Annexation Fee $0 per gross acre

All Areas except RT Ph 1,2 $32.05 per linear foot

RT Park Phase 1, 2 $0

Sewer house branch connection Loma Vista Community Centers

         4" lateral $136.00 per linear foot Master Plan Zone District Program Fee $1,591 per net acre

         6" lateral $138.00 per linear foot

  *Other includes hospitals, churches, hotels, motels, schools Library Facilities Impact Fee***
Single family lot $760 per unit

Parks Multi-family, assisted living/group homes $621 per unit

Park Acquisition and Development:

  All Residential $5,662 per unit

  Retail $0.69 per bldg. sf. Utility Undergrounding fee

  Office $1.50 per bldg. sf.          Underground Area 1 $8,400 per gross acre

  Industrial $0.49 per bldg. sf.                      RT Park Phase 1, 2 $2,797 per gross acre

  All projects in core area (Page 7) $0          Underground Area 2 $0 per gross acre

         Underground Area 3 $8,003 per gross acre

Refuse          Underground Area 4 $7,823 per gross acre

Community sanitation fee 

     Single family lot $509 per unit

     Multi-family, non-residential $412 per unit

Neighborhood Park Deposit

  Street Area 4 (Loma Vista Specific Plan) $5,643 per unit

Sewer  Admin., Public Facilities, Misc.

Utility Undergrounding 

Neighborhood Park Deposit

H:\DRU\Development Fees Updates\2023-24\0.0 Fee Schedule 23-24.xlsxFee Schedule 2023-2024 Full 2 of 5  

2 of 7

168

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



CITY OF CLOVIS

MASTER DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Effective August 7, 2023

Basis of Charge Outside Travel Lane Center Travel Lane Traffic Signals Bridges Total

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) per unit $7,968 $2,062 $860 $78 $10,968

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) per unit $7,968 $2,062 $859 $78 $10,967

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) per unit $7,968 $2,062 $860 $78 $10,968

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) per unit $7,968 $2,062 $859 $78 $10,967

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) per unit $4,781 $1,237 $516 $47 $6,581

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) per unit $4,781 $1,237 $516 $47 $6,581

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) per unit $4,781 $1,237 $516 $47 $6,581

Retail per 1000 bldg sf $12,575 $3,254 $1,356 $122 $17,307

Office, Public Facilities per 1000 bldg sf $5,734 $1,484 $619 $56 $7,893

Industrial, Assisted Living per 1000 bldg sf $1,543 $399 $166 $15 $2,123

Schools per 1000 bldg sf $10,060 $2,603 $1,085 $98 $13,846

Churches per 1000 bldg sf $5,734 $1,484 $619 $56 $7,893

Mini Storage per gross acre $20,164 $5,214 $2,169 $196 $27,743

Basis of Charge Outside Travel Lane Center Travel Lane Traffic Signals Bridges Total

Industrial per 1000 bldg sf $1,256 $222 $121 $0 $1,599

Office per 1000 bldg sf $4,667 $825 $450 $0 $5,942

Basis of Charge Outside Travel Lane Center Travel Lane Traffic Signals Bridges Total

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) per unit $412 $0 $105 $0 $517

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) per unit $412 $0 $106 $0 $518

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) per unit $412 $0 $106 $0 $518

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) per unit $412 $0 $106 $0 $518

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) per unit $248 $0 $63 $0 $311

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) per unit $248 $0 $63 $0 $311

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) per unit $248 $0 $63 $0 $311

Retail per 1000 bldg sf $649 $0 $166 $0 $815

Office, Public Facilities per 1000 bldg sf $296 $0 $76 $0 $372

Industrial, Assisted Living per 1000 bldg sf $79 $0 $21 $0 $100

Schools per 1000 bldg sf $520 $0 $133 $0 $653

Churches per 1000 bldg sf $296 $0 $76 $0 $372

Mini Storage per gross acre $1,040 $0 $270 $0 $1,310

Area 1

Area 1                                      
RT Park Phase 1, 2

Area 2

Street Fees 

H:\DRU\Development Fees Updates\2023-24\0.0 Fee Schedule 23-24.xlsxFee Schedule 2023-2024 Full 3 of 5  

3 of 7

169

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



CITY OF CLOVIS

MASTER DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Effective August 7, 2023

Basis of Charge Outside Travel Lane Center Travel Lane Traffic Signals Bridges Total

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) per unit $76 $0 $37 $0 $113

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) per unit $77 $0 $38 $0 $115

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) per unit $77 $0 $38 $0 $115

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) per unit $77 $0 $38 $0 $115

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) per unit $47 $0 $23 $0 $70

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) per unit $47 $0 $23 $0 $70

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) per unit $47 $0 $23 $0 $70

Retail per 1000 bldg sf $122 $0 $60 $0 $182

Office, Public Facilities per 1000 bldg sf $55 $0 $27 $0 $82

Industrial, Assisted Living per 1000 bldg sf $15 $0 $7 $0 $22

Schools per 1000 bldg sf $99 $0 $48 $0 $147

Churches per 1000 bldg sf $55 $0 $27 $0 $82

Mini Storage per gross acre $200 $0 $100 $0 $300

Basis of Charge Outside Travel Lane Center Travel Lane Traffic Signals Bridges Total

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) per unit $7,034 $2,482 $586 $686 $10,788

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) per unit $7,033 $2,482 $585 $686 $10,786

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) per unit $7,033 $2,483 $585 $687 $10,788

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) per unit $7,033 $2,482 $585 $687 $10,787

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) per unit $4,220 $1,489 $351 $412 $6,472

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) per unit $4,220 $1,489 $351 $412 $6,472

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) per unit $4,220 $1,489 $351 $412 $6,472

Retail per 1000 bldg sf $11,100 $3,918 $924 $1,083 $17,025

Office, Public Facilities per 1000 bldg sf $5,062 $1,787 $421 $494 $7,764

Industrial, Assisted Living per 1000 bldg sf $1,362 $481 $113 $133 $2,089

Schools per 1000 bldg sf $8,880 $3,134 $739 $867 $13,620

Churches per 1000 bldg sf $5,062 $1,787 $421 $494 $7,764

Mini Storage per gross acre $17,799 $6,286 $1,477 $1,738 $27,300

Basis of Charge Outside Travel Lane Center Travel Lane Traffic Signals Bridges Total

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) per unit $3,322 $1,710 $378 $214 $5,624

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) per unit $3,321 $1,710 $378 $213 $5,622

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) per unit $3,321 $1,710 $378 $213 $5,622

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) per unit $3,321 $1,710 $377 $213 $5,621

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) per unit $1,993 $1,026 $227 $128 $3,374

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) per unit $1,993 $1,026 $227 $128 $3,374

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) per unit $1,993 $1,026 $227 $128 $3,374

Retail per 1000 bldg sf $5,242 $2,699 $596 $337 $8,874

Office, Public Facilities per 1000 bldg sf $2,390 $1,231 $272 $154 $4,047

Industrial per 1000 bldg sf $643 $331 $73 $41 $1,088

Schools per 1000 bldg sf $4,194 $2,159 $477 $270 $7,100

Churches per 1000 bldg sf $2,390 $1,231 $272 $154 $4,047

Mini Storage per gross acre $8,403 $4,326 $954 $536 $14,219

Area 3

Street Fees 

Area 4

Area 5

H:\DRU\Development Fees Updates\2023-24\0.0 Fee Schedule 23-24.xlsxFee Schedule 2023-2024 Full 4 of 5  

4 of 7

170

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



CITY OF CLOVIS

MASTER DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Effective August 7, 2023

Sewer oversize mains Water oversize mains:

         10" $9.25 per linear foot          12" main $18.06 per linear foot

         12" $23.05 per linear foot          14" main $32.60 per linear foot

         15" $53.40 per linear foot          16" main $54.80 per linear foot

         18" $90.90 per linear foot          18" main $71.42 per linear foot

         21" $125.30 per linear foot          20" main $89.22 per linear foot

         24" main $129.61 per linear foot

Sewer overdepth mains:

Water oversize valves:

     8' to 12' in depth          12" valve $1,063.00 each

           8" main $9.75 per linear foot          14" valve $1,431.75 each

         10" main $12.35 per linear foot          16" valve $1,932.00 each

         12" main $12.15 per linear foot          18" valve $2,314.95 each

         15" main $16.55 per linear foot          20" valve $3,527.05 each

         18" main $19.00 per linear foot          24” valve $5,359.00 each

         21" main $22.70 per linear foot

     12' to 16' in depth

           8" main $21.10 per linear foot

         10" main $23.60 per linear foot

         12" main $23.70 per linear foot

         15" main $31.00 per linear foot

         18" main $45.15 per linear foot

         21" main $47.30 per linear foot

     Greater than 16' in depth

           8" main $27.80 per linear foot

         10" main $30.70 per linear foot

         12" main $31.00 per linear foot

         15" main $46.05 per linear foot

         18" main $56.20 per linear foot

         21" main $62.15 per linear foot

Sewer Oversize/Overdepth Reimbursement Rates Water Oversize Reimbursement Rates

H:\DRU\Development Fees Updates\2023-24\0.0 Fee Schedule 23-24.xlsxFee Schedule 2023-2024 Full 5 of 5  

5 of 7

171

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Land Use
 Water Supply Fee

*Outside FID

($/gross acre) 

 Water Supply Fee

Inside FID

($/gross acre) 

Rural Residential
(1 DU/2 AC)

16,100 11,320

Very Low Density Residential
(0.6 – 2.0 DU/AC)

16,100 11,320

Low Density Residential
(2.1 – 4.0 DU/AC)

13,880 9,100

Medium Density Residential
(4.1 – 7.0 DU/AC)

12,210 7,440

Medium High Density Residential
(7.1 – 15.0 DU/AC)

18,320 13,540

High Density Residential
(15.1 – 25.0 DU/AC)

26,090 21,310

Very High Density Residential
(25.1 – 43.0 DU/AC)

40,520 35,740

Mixed Use Village 27,750 22,980

Mixed Use/Business Campus 27,750 22,980

Office 14,990 10,210

Industrial 5,550 780

Neighborhood Commercial 16,100 11,320

General Commercial 16,100 11,320

Open Space 8,330 3,550

Public Facilities 7,770 3,000

Parks 16,650 11,880

Schools 15,540 10,770

WATER SUPPLY FEE 

FY 2023-24

Page 6 6 of 7
172

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



WI
LL

OW

PE
AC

H

MI
NN

EW
AW

A
CL

OV
IS

SU
NN

YS
ID

E
FO

WL
ER

AR
MS

TR
ON

G

LO
CA

N
DE

 W
OL

F

LE
ON

AR
D

HI
GH

LA
ND

TH
OM

PS
ON

TE
MP

ER
AN

CE

COPPER
INTERNATIONAL

BEHYMER
PERRIN

SHEPHERD

TEAGUE
NEES

ALLUVIAL

HERNDON
SIERRA

BULLARD

BARSTOW
SHAW

GETTYSBURG
ASHLAN
DAKOTA
SHIELDS

WI
LL

OW

PE
AC

H

MI
NN

EW
AW

A

CL
OV

IS

SU
NN

YS
ID

E

FO
W

LE
R

AR
MS

TR
ON

G

TE
MP

ER
AN

CE

LO
CA

N

DE
W

OL
F

LE
ON

AR
D

HI
GH

LA
ND

TH
OM

PS
ON

MC
CA

LL

COPPER

INTERNATIONAL

BEHYMER

PERRIN

SHEPHERD

TEAGUE

NEES

ALLUVIAL

HERNDON

SIERRA

BULLARD

BARSTOW

SHAW

GETTYSBURG

ASHLAN

DAKOTA

U-1

U-2

U-3

U-4

AREA 1

AREA 3

AREA 4

AREA 2

AREA 5

STREET & UNDERGROUNDING
BOUNDARIES

JAN 18, 2018 NOT TO SCALE
STREET AREASUNDERGROUNDING AREAS

6 of 7  6 of 7  Page 10Page 7 7 of 7

173

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference

Total $7,122,986 $7,516,106 $393,119 $10,123,207 $10,763,536 $640,328 $10,579,780 $11,105,180 $525,400 $18,563,810 $19,582,387 $1,018,576 $20,009,749 $21,098,183 $1,088,433

Per Unit $44,519 $46,976 $2,457 $38,935 $41,398 $2,463 $35,266 $37,017 $1,751 $32,007 $33,763 $1,756 $32,274 $34,029 $1,756

% Change 5.5% 6.3% 5.0% 5.5% 5.4%

Total $5,711,738 $5,819,026 $107,287 $7,829,930 $8,006,045 $176,115 $8,992,589 $9,195,965 $203,376 $15,495,241 $15,891,238 $395,997 $16,729,555 $17,152,472 $422,917

Per Unit $35,698 $36,369 $671 $30,115 $30,792 $677 $29,975 $30,653 $678 $26,716 $27,399 $683 $26,983 $27,665 $682

% Change 1.9% 2.2% 2.3% 2.6% 2.5%

Total $5,293,396 $5,412,539 $119,142 $7,370,683 $7,558,653 $187,970 $8,566,310 $8,781,541 $215,231 $15,000,469 $15,408,321 $407,852 $16,224,998 $16,659,771 $434,772

Per Unit $33,084 $33,828 $745 $28,349 $29,072 $723 $28,554 $29,272 $717 $25,863 $26,566 $703 $26,169 $26,871 $701

% Change 2.3% 2.6% 2.5% 2.7% 2.7%

Total $7,120,859 $7,470,756 $349,897 $10,130,509 $10,699,916 $569,406 $10,579,618 $11,055,871 $476,253 $18,579,563 $19,502,100 $922,537 $20,027,776 $21,013,471 $985,695

Per Unit $44,505 $46,692 $2,187 $38,964 $41,154 $2,190 $35,265 $36,853 $1,588 $32,034 $33,624 $1,591 $32,303 $33,893 $1,590

% Change 4.9% 5.6% 4.5% 5.0% 4.9%

Total $6,380,656 $6,624,489 $243,833 $8,935,495 $9,329,300 $393,805 $9,748,846 $10,105,222 $356,377 $16,985,074 $17,670,999 $685,925 $18,324,185 $19,056,592 $732,407

Per Unit $39,879 $41,403 $1,524 $34,367 $35,882 $1,515 $32,496 $33,684 $1,188 $29,285 $30,467 $1,183 $29,555 $30,736 $1,181

% Change 3.8% 4.4% 3.7% 4.0% 4.0%

Note: Water Supply Fee (Base Rate) will increase the development cost by $191,000.00 for Areas 1 through 5, as well as for all 40 acre residential developments.

FULL FEE UPDATE
Single-Family Fee Calculation Scenarios  

2023-2024 Proposed Fee rates

Area 5

15.5 DU/AC (SFR) - 40 acre development4 DU/AC (SFR) - 40 acre development 6.5 DU/AC (SFR) - 40 acre development 7.5 DU/AC (SFR) - 40 acre development 14.5 DU/AC (SFR) - 40 acre development

Area 1

.

Area 2

Area 3

Area 4

Page 1

Attachment 3
174

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference

Total $9,972,303 $10,478,824 $506,521 $17,389,354 $18,371,431 $982,077 $18,754,296 $19,803,713 $1,049,417 $23,367,399 $24,722,717 $1,355,317

Per Unit $33,241 $34,929 $1,688 $29,982 $31,675 $1,693 $30,249 $31,941 $1,693 $29,209 $30,903 $1,694

% Change 5.1% 5.6% 5.6% 5.8%

Total $8,385,112 $8,569,609 $184,497 $14,320,784 $14,680,282 $359,497 $15,474,101 $15,858,002 $383,901 $19,134,890 $19,631,477 $496,587

Per Unit $27,950 $28,565 $615 $24,691 $25,311 $620 $24,958 $25,577 $619 $23,919 $24,539 $621

% Change 2.2% 2.5% 2.5% 2.6%

Total $7,958,832 $8,155,184 $196,352 $13,826,012 $14,197,365 $371,353 $14,969,545 $15,365,300 $395,756 $18,586,302 $19,094,745 $508,442

Per Unit $26,529 $27,184 $655 $23,838 $24,478 $640 $24,144 $24,783 $638 $23,233 $23,868 $636

% Change 2.5% 2.7% 2.6% 2.7%

Total $9,972,141 $10,429,515 $457,374 $17,405,106 $18,291,144 $886,038 $18,772,322 $19,719,001 $946,679 $23,395,657 $24,618,090 $1,222,434

Per Unit $33,240 $34,765 $1,525 $30,009 $31,536 $1,528 $30,278 $31,805 $1,527 $29,245 $30,773 $1,528

% Change 4.6% 5.1% 5.0% 5.2%

Total $9,141,368 $9,478,866 $337,498 $15,810,618 $16,460,044 $649,426 $17,068,731 $17,762,121 $693,390 $21,201,105 $22,095,206 $894,101

Per Unit $30,471 $31,596 $1,125 $27,260 $28,379 $1,120 $27,530 $28,649 $1,118 $26,501 $27,619 $1,118

% Change 3.7% 4.1% 4.1% 4.2%

Note: Water Supply Fee (Base Rate) will increase the development cost by $191,000.00 for Areas 1 through 5, as well as for all 40 acre residential developments.

2023-2024 Proposed Fee rates

Area 5

FULL FEE UPDATE

Area 4

Area 1

Area 2

Area 3

Multi-Family Fee Calculation Scenarios

7.5 DU/AC (MFR) - 40 acre development 14.5 DU/AC (MFR) - 40 acre development 15.5 DU/AC (MFR) - 40 acre development 20 DU/AC (MFR) - 40 acre development

Page 2

175

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference Existing Fees Proposed Fees Difference

Total $279,417 $307,249 $27,833 $126,795 $134,242 $7,447 $207,826 $222,330 $14,504

% Change 10.0% 5.9% 7.0%

Total $158,124 $161,416 $3,292 $104,472 $107,409 $2,937 $152,525 $155,824 $3,299

% Change 2.1% 2.8% 2.2%

Total $143,705 $147,293 $3,588 $94,615 $97,849 $3,234 $141,138 $144,734 $3,596

% Change 2.5% 3.4% 2.5%

Total $280,273 $304,353 $24,080 $126,616 $133,389 $6,772 $207,998 $220,786 $12,788

% Change 8.6% 5.3% 6.1%

Total $217,462 $232,093 $14,631 $114,801 $119,929 $5,128 $179,161 $187,735 $8,575

% Change 6.7% 4.5% 4.8%

Note: Water Supply Fee (Base Rate) will increase the development cost by $4,780.00 per Acre for Areas 1 through 5. 

Area 5

2023-2024 Proposed Fee rates

Non-Residential Fee Calculation Scenarios  

Area 1

Retail (1 acre site) Industrial (1 acre site) Office (1 acre site)

Area 2

FULL FEE UPDATE

Area 4

Area 3 

(Core)

Page 3
176

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



2023-2024

Nexus Sheets

for

Development Impact Fees

Fiscal Year

177

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.

catreenam
Text Box
Attachment 4



Sewer Fees

Sewer Major Facilities Fee

Sewer Oversize Fee

Sewer Front Footage Fee

Sewer House Branch Construction Fee

Water Fees

Water Major Facilities Fee

Water Oversize Fee

Water Front Footage Fee

Non-Potable Water Fee

Water Supply Fee

Water Meter and Water Service with Meter Fee

Street Fees

Outside Travel Lane Fee

Center Travel Lane Fee

Traffic Signal Fee

Bridge Fee

Utility Undergrounding Fee

Park Acquisition & Development Fee

Community Sanitation Fee

Fire Department Fee

Police Department Fee

Library  Fee

Appendix A

Table of Contents

Findings in Support of the Continuation of City Policies to Impose Residential Development Impact 

Fees on a Per Unit or Per Acreage Basis

Fiscal Year

2023-2024

178

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Single Family Residential $9,325 per Unit* Single Family Residential $9,584 per Unit^ 2.8%

Multi-Family Residential $7,554 per Unit* Multi-Family Residential $7,763 per Unit^ 2.8%

Retail $5.60 per bldg sf ^^ Retail $5.75 per bldg sf ^^ 2.7%

Office $4.75 per bldg sf ^^ Office/PF/School $4.89 per bldg sf ^^ 3.0%

Industrial $2.61 per bldg sf ^^ Industrial $2.68 per bldg sf ^^ 2.7%

Assisted Living $9,325 per EDU Assisted Living $9,584 per EDU 2.8%

*Other $9,325 per EDU *Other $9,584 per EDU 2.8%

^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit ^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit

^^ Non-residential Fees are based on building square footage. ^^ Non-residential Fees are based on building square footage.

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Debt Service on past capacity upgrades at the Fresno Regional Plant.

Construction and financing costs for future plant expansions.

Construction and financing costs for future upgrades and capacity purchases at the Fresno Regional plant.

Construction and financing costs for the future construction of Shepherd Avenue force mains and Dewolf trunk mains.

Construction and financing costs for the future construction of trunk mains to serve growth in Heritage Grove and the Northeast Village.

Nexus

Methodology

1. Calculate the total cost of system components and financing.

2. Calculate the number of units or EDU's that will benefit from and pay for the system according to relative system utilization per the sewer master plan.

3. Rate = total cost divided by units.

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Sewer Major Facilities Fee

2023-2024

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

The Sewer Major Facilities fee pays for the construction and financing of major sewer trunk lines, treatment capacity, and recycled water transmision to 

serve growth.  

Debt service on the construction of the City of Clovis treatment plant including the first 2.7 mgd treatment capacity, Pump Station E, Pump Station B, Ashlan 

Force mains, recycled water pump station and transmission system.

Sewage treatment, conveyance, and disposal systems are necessary to accommodate new development.  Major components of the system are needed in 

advance of development and therefore must be constructed using financing.  The rates are directly related to system utilization by each land use category 

and include development's share of financing and construction.

AB602: Residential usage have been measured on a land usage basis and then correlated to a per home basis.  This same measurement is used to predict 

future capacity and treatment needs.  There is a better correlation between City data and the number of homes than residential square footage.

% change

Page 3 of 33

179

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



All Areas except RT Ph 1, 2 $1,190 per Gr. Ac.* All Areas except RT Ph 1, 2 $1,114 per Gr. Ac.^ -6.4%

RT Park Phase1, 2 $0 per Gr. Ac.* RT Park Phase1, 2 $0 per Gr. Ac.^

* Gross Acre (Gr. Ac.) is defined as the total land area being ^ Gross Acre (Gr. Ac.) is defined as the total land area being 

    developed plus 1/2 of the right-of-way on adjacent streets     developed plus 1/2 of the right-of-way on adjacent streets

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Sewer Oversize Fee

2023-2024

In order to provide for the conveyance of sewage from all development, certain sewer mains are required to be larger than 8" in diameter or 

must be constructed at depths greater than 8'.  The additional cost for these larger and/or deeper sewer mains is to be paid for by all 

development because all development receives benefit

AB602: Acreage is a common denominator between all land uses.  Acreage is used for the basis of this fee in order to evenly distribute the 

share across the City.  Therefore an acreage basis is more appropriate than a residential square footage basis.

1. Calculate the total cost of system components (those lines larger 8" diameter and/or greater than 8' in depth).                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

2. Calculate the total acreage of undeveloped (developable) land.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

3. Rate = total cost divided by total gross acreage.

All sewer mains that are greater than 8" in diameter and all mains (including 8" diameter) constructed at depths greater than 8' are included.  

Mains that are considered trunk mains are not included in the sewer oversize fee, but are included in the sewer major facilities fee.

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

The Sewer Oversize Fee pays for the difference in construction cost between 8" mains at standard depth (which are paid for with front 

footage fees) and any larger mains and/or mains constructed at greater than standard depth.  

% change

Page 4 of 33

180

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



All Areas except RT Ph 1, 2 $22.64 per Linear Ft.* All Areas except RT Ph 1, 2 $32.05 per Linear Ft.^ 41.5%

RT Park Phase1, 2 $0.00 per Linear Ft.* RT Park Phase1, 2 $0 per Gr. Ac.^

* Measurement of linear footage is to include all adjacent ^ Measurement of linear footage is to include all adjacent

   streets, alleys, or easements where existing or proposed    streets, alleys, or easements where existing or proposed

   sewer are (to be) installed.    sewer are (to be) installed.

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Sewer Front Footage Fee

2023-2024

All development benefits from the sewage collection system.  Each property shares in the cost of the basic element of the collection system (8" 

sewer mains at standard depth) by providing for 1/2 the cost of any adjacent mains.

AB602: The repayment of this fee is on a lineal footage basis.  There is no correlation with the size of the home.

1. Calculate the cost of 8" sewer main construction at 8' or less in depth on a linear foot basis.                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

2. Rate = 1/2 the construction cost per linear foot.  

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

Development is responsible for the cost of 1/2 of the along all adjacent streets alleys and easements.  The Sewer Front Footage Fee pays for the 1/2 

construction cost  of 8" mains at standard depth in order to reimburse developers who construct lines along properties that are not part of the 

developer's property.  

The fee covers the cost attributable to 8" sewer main construction that are to be constructed in streets, alleys, or easements where other 

developments will have frontage and/or connect to the main.  The component of cost for sewer mains that are in excess of 8" diameter or 8' in 

depth is not included and is paid for through the oversize sewer fee. Mains that are considered trunk mains are not included in the sewer front 

footage fee, but are included in the sewer major facilities fee.

% change

Page 5 of 33

181

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



4" Lateral $136 per Linear Ft.* 4" Lateral $136.00 per Linear Ft.^ 0.0%

6" Lateral $138 per Linear Ft.* 6" Lateral $138.00 per Linear Ft.^ 0.0%

* Linear footage refers to length of pipe installed. ^ Linear footage refers to length of pipe installed.

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Sewer House Branch Construction

2023-2024

The fee represents direct cost recovery for property owner requested services. 

AB602: The costs are per each item with no dependence upon size of the home.  Therefore the per each basis is more appropriate than 

residential square footage. 

1. Calculate the cost of 4" and 6" sewer lateral construction on a linear foot basis.                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

2. Rate = construction cost per linear foot.                                                                                                                                                                                        

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

This fee provides for cost recovery for City forces to supply and construct sewer house branches.  While, in most cases, construction of 

sewer laterals is done by development, this fee provides for cost recovery when lateral construction is done using City forces at the 

election of the property owner and availability of City resources.  Laterals installed by City forces normally occurs on individual residential 

connections to the sewer system.

The fee covers the cost to construct 4" or 6" sewer laterals from the main to the property line and includes all associated costs 

(excavation, pipeline construction, connection to main, backfill, compaction , resurfacing).

% change

Page 6 of 33

182

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Residential                   2.0 or less $8,580 per Unit Residential                   2.0 or less $8,580 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   2.1 to 2.5 $8,580 per Unit Residential                   2.1 to 2.5 $8,580 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   2.6 to 3.0 $8,580 per Unit Residential                   2.6 to 3.0 $8,580 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   3.1 to 3.5 $8,580 per Unit Residential                   3.1 to 3.5 $8,580 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   3.6 to 4.0 $8,580 per Unit Residential                   3.6 to 4.0 $8,580 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   4.1 to 4.5 $8,580 per Unit Residential                   4.1 to 4.5 $8,580 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   4.6 to 5.0 $7,283 per Unit Residential                   4.6 to 5.0 $7,283 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   5.1 to 5.5 $5,987 per Unit Residential                   5.1 to 5.5 $5,987 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   5.6 to 6.0 $5,851 per Unit Residential                   5.6 to 6.0 $5,851 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   6.1 to 6.5 $5,716 per Unit Residential                   6.1 to 6.5 $5,716 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   6.6 to 7.0 $5,581 per Unit Residential                   6.6 to 7.0 $5,581 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   7.1 to 7.5 $5,445 per Unit Residential                   7.1 to 7.5 $5,445 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   7.6 to 8.0 $5,311 per Unit Residential                   7.6 to 8.0 $5,311 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   8.1 to 8.5 $5,174 per Unit Residential                   8.1 to 8.5 $5,174 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   8.6 to 9.0 $5,038 per Unit Residential                   8.6 to 9.0 $5,038 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                   9.1 to 9.5 $4,902 per Unit Residential                   9.1 to 9.5 $4,902 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                 9.6 to 10.0 $4,768 per Unit Residential                 9.6 to 10.0 $4,768 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                10.1 to 10.5 $4,632 per Unit Residential                10.1 to 10.5 $4,632 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                10.6 to 11.0 $4,490 per Unit Residential                10.6 to 11.0 $4,490 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                11.1 to 11.5 $4,437 per Unit Residential                11.1 to 11.5 $4,437 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                11.6 to 12.0 $4,383 per Unit Residential                11.6 to 12.0 $4,383 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                12.1 to 12.5 $4,330 per Unit Residential                12.1 to 12.5 $4,330 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                12.6 to 13.0 $4,275 per Unit Residential                12.6 to 13.0 $4,275 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                13.1 to 13.5 $4,221 per Unit Residential                13.1 to 13.5 $4,221 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                13.6 to 14.0 $4,168 per Unit Residential                13.6 to 14.0 $4,168 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                14.1 to 14.5 $4,114 per Unit Residential                14.1 to 14.5 $4,114 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                14.6 to 15.0 $4,058 per Unit Residential                14.6 to 15.0 $4,058 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                15.1 to 15.5 $4,005 per Unit Residential                15.1 to 15.5 $4,005 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                15.6 to 16.0 $3,951 per Unit Residential                15.6 to 16.0 $3,951 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                16.1 to 16.5 $3,899 per Unit Residential                16.1 to 16.5 $3,899 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                16.6 to 17.0 $3,843 per Unit Residential                16.6 to 17.0 $3,843 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                17.1 to 17.5 $3,789 per Unit Residential                17.1 to 17.5 $3,789 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                17.6 to 18.0 $3,735 per Unit Residential                17.6 to 18.0 $3,735 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                18.1 to 18.5 $3,682 per Unit Residential                18.1 to 18.5 $3,682 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                18.6 to 19.0 $3,628 per Unit Residential                18.6 to 19.0 $3,628 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                19.1 to 19.5 $3,574 per Unit Residential                19.1 to 19.5 $3,574 per Unit 0.0%

Residential                19.6 to 20.0 $3,518 per Unit Residential                19.6 to 20.0 $3,518 per Unit 0.0%

Commercial Retail $4.29 per bldg sf ^^ Commercial Retail $4.29 per bldg sf ^^ 0.0%

Professional Office $4.29 per bldg sf ^^ Professional Office $4.29 per bldg sf ^^ 0.0%

Industrial $1.16 per bldg sf ^^ Industrial $1.16 per bldg sf ^^ 0.0%

Schools/Parks $8,980 per Gr. Ac.^ Schools/Parks $8,980 per Gr. Ac.^ 0.0%

Public Facilities $2.32 per bldg sf ^^ Public Facilities $2.32 per bldg sf ^^ 0.0%

Assisted Living $4.06 per bldg sf ^^ Assisted Living $4.06 per bldg sf ^^ 0.0%

^ Gross Acre (Gr. Ac.) is defined as the total land area being ^ Gross Acre (Gr. Ac.) is defined as the total land area being 

    developed plus 1/2 of the right-of-way on adjacent streets     developed plus 1/2 of the right-of-way on adjacent streets

^^ bldg sf = building square foot ^^ bldg sf = building square foot

Water Major Facilities Fee

2023-2024

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

% change

Page 7 of 33

183

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Water Major Facilities Fee

2023-2024

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Debt Service on the existing surface water treatment facility.

Nexus

Methodology

1. Calculate the total cost of system components and financing.

2. Calculate the number of units or EDU's that will benefit from and pay for the system according to relative system utilization per the water master plan.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

3. Rate = total cost divided by units.

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation which indicated a 61% increase.  The proposed increase has been deferred to a later date.

Water production, treatment, and transmission systems are necessary to accommodate new development.  Major components of the system are needed in advance 

of development and therefore must be constructed using financing.  The rates are directly related to system utilization by each land use category and include 

development's share of financing and construction.

AB602: Residential usage have been measured on a land usage basis and then correlated to a per home basis.  This same measurement is used to predict future 

capacity and treatment needs.  There is a better correlation between City data and the number of homes than residential square footage.

The Water Major Facilities fee pays for the construction and financing of transmission water mains and water supply and treatment infrastructure including water 

wells, recharge facilities, surface water treatment facilities, and storage facilities as needed to serve growth.

Planned construction of future capacity capital improvements including recharge, treatment plan expansion, water wells, and transmission mains per the Water 

master plan

Page 8 of 33

184

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



All areas except RT Phase 1, 2 $1,682 per Gr. Ac.* All areas except RT Phase 1, 2 $1,682 per Gr. Ac.^ 0.0%

RT Phase 1, 2 $182 per Gr. Ac.* RT Phase 1, 2 $182 per Gr. Ac.^ 0.0%

* Gross Acre (Gr. Ac.) is defined as the total land area being ^ Gross Acre (Gr. Ac.) is defined as the total land area being 

    developed plus 1/2 of the right-of-way on adjacent streets     developed plus 1/2 of the right-of-way on adjacent streets

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation which indicated a 61% increase.  The proposed increase has been 

deferred to a later date.

Water Oversize Fee

2023-2024

In order to provide for the distribution of water to all development, certain water mains are required to be larger than 8" in diameter.  

The additional cost for these larger water mains is to be paid for by all development because all development receives benefit.

AB602: Acreage is a common denominator between all land uses.  Acreage is used for the basis of this fee in order to evenly distribute the 

share across the City.  Therefore an acreage basis is more appropriate than a residential square footage basis.

1. Calculate the total cost of system components (those lines larger 8" diameter).                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

2. Calculate the total acreage of undeveloped (developable) land.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

3. Rate = total cost divided by total gross acreage.                                              

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

The Water Oversize Fee pays for the difference in construction cost between 8" mains and larger distribution mains.  

All water mains that are greater than 8" in diameter are included, except mains that are considered transmission mains which are 

included in the water major facilities fee.

% change

Page 9 of 33

185

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



All areas except RT Phase 1, 2 $27.40 per
Linear 

Ft.*
All areas except RT Phase 1, 2 $27.40 per Linear Ft.^ 0.0%

RT Phase 1, 2
$0.00 per

Linear 

Ft.* RT Phase 1, 2
$0.00 per Linear Ft.^ 0%

* Measurement of linear footage is to include all adjacent ^ Measurement of linear footage is to include all adjacent

   streets, alleys, or easements where existing or proposed    streets, alleys, or easements where existing or proposed

water mains are (to be) installed. water mains are (to be) installed.

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation which indicated a 61% increase.  The proposed increase has been deferred to a later date.

Water Front Footage Fee

2023-2024

All development benefits from the water distribution system.  Each property shares in the cost of the basic element of the distribution system (8" water mains) by providing for 

1/2 the cost of any adjacent water mains.

AB602: The repayment of this fee is on a lineal footage basis.  There is no correlation with the size of the home.

1. Calculate the cost of 8" water main construction on a linear foot basis.                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

2. Rate = 1/2 the construction cost per linear foot.

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

Development is responsible for the cost of 1/2 of the 8" water mains along all adjacent streets, alleys, and easements.  The Water Front Footage Fee pays for the 1/2 construction 

cost  of 8" mains in order to reimburse developers who construct lines along properties that are not part of the developer's property.  

The fee covers the cost attributable to water main construction that are to be constructed in streets, alleys, or easements where other developments will have frontage and/or 

connect to the main.  The component of cost for water mains that are in excess of 8" diameter is not included and is paid for through the oversize water fee. Mains that are 

considered transmission mains are not included in the water front footage fee, but are included in the water major facilities fee.

% change

Page 10 of 33

186

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



All Land Uses $2,454 per Gr. Ac.* All Land Uses $2,454 per Gr. Ac.^ 0.0%

* Gross Acre (Gr. Ac.) is defined as the total land area being ^ Gross Acre (Gr. Ac.) is defined as the total land area being 

    developed plus 1/2 of the right-of-way on adjacent streets     developed plus 1/2 of the right-of-way on adjacent streets

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation which indicated a 61% increase.  The proposed increase has been 

deferred to a later date.

Non-Potable Water Fee

2023-2024

A non-potable water distribution system provides for delivery of non-potable water to public landscaped areas, parks, and open spaces 

within the City.  The use of non-potable water in these areas is an essential part of achieving a water balance and reducing groundwater 

usage in the City.  These benefits are attributable to all development and the costs are shared "equally" among development according to 

land area.

AB602:The current method meets the intent of AB602 to impose lower fees on smaller dwellings that are typical of higher density 

developments.

1. Calculate the total cost of system components minus the non-potable water improvements installed and reimbursed.                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

2. Calculate the total acreage of undeveloped (developable) land.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

3. Rate = total cost divided by total gross acreage.

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

The Non-Potable Water Fee pays for the construction of a non-potable water distribution system that supplies non potable water for 

irrigation of open space and landscaped areas, mainly in public areas. 

All non-potable (purple pipe) water mains that are intended for distribution and transmission.

% change

Page 11 of 33

187

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Rates vary according to density and land use Rates vary according to density and land use

See attached schedule See attached schedule

No change in rates is proposed

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

The funds are used to buy water entitlement, acquire new water resources and participate in water banking infrastructure.

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- No change in rate proposed.

In order to ensure that the overdraft of the groundwater basin due to pumping is not exacerbated, and to properly secure adequate 

water entitlement going forward, new development that creates a water demand that exceeds the water entitlement that comes with 

the land must provide for the additional water supply.  For projects lying within the FID, they provide their water entitlement to the City 

at the time of development and receive a fee credit for the allocation.  All other projects lying outside the FID will require acquisition of 

additional supply.  The need for the additional water supply is directly tied to the project or land development that creates the demand.  

The costs associated with the acquisition of the new water supply are attributable to the new development.

AB602: Residential usage have been measured on land usage basis.  This same measurement is used to predict future needs.  There is a 

better correlation between City data and the land use than residential square footage.

1. Determine the cost to acquire additional water supply per ac/ft/yr                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

2. Develop relationship between development type/intensity, and water demand.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

3. Rate = annual water demand in excess of the entitlement (ac/ft/yr) X acquisition cost per ac/ft/yr 

4. Prorate the FID annual allotment as credit to development within FID

Water Supply Fee

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

The Water Supply Fee pays a share of the cost to acquire additional water supply for properties with development patterns that will 

exceed the current entitlement.  For properties within the FID, the entitlement is 2.2 ac/ft/ac.  For properties outside the FID, there is no 

designate entitlement.   The current cost to acquire annual supply is $1,250 per ac/ft.  The Water Supply Fee includes a share of the cost 

to secure a firm water supply from FID.  The current cost to development for the firm water supply is $4,300 per ac/ft.

2023-2024

Page 12 of 33

188

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Land Use

 Water Supply Fee

*Outside FID

($/gross acre) 

 Water Supply Fee

Inside FID

($/gross acre) 

Rural Residential (1 DU/2 AC) $16,100 $11,320

Very Low Density Residential (0.6 – 2.0 DU/AC) $16,100 $11,320

Low Density Residential (2.1 – 4.0 DU/AC) $13,880 $9,100

Medium Density Residential (4.1 – 7.0 DU/AC) $12,210 $7,440

Medium High Density Residential (7.1 – 15.0 DU/AC) $18,320 $13,540

High Density Residential (15.1 – 25.0 DU/AC) $26,090 $21,310

Very High Density Residential (25.1 – 43.0 DU/AC) $40,520 $35,740

Mixed Use Village $27,750 $22,980

Mixed Use/Business Campus $27,750 $22,980

Office $14,990 $10,210

Industrial $5,550 $780

Neighborhood Commercial $16,100 $11,320

General Commercial $16,100 $11,320

Open Space $8,330 $3,550

Public Facilities $7,770 $3,000

Parks $16,650 $11,880

Schools $15,540 $10,770

* Excludes lands within the existing Garfield and International Irrigation Districts which will require separate 

analysis.

Water Supply Fee

2023-2024

Page 13 of 33

189

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



3/4" meter $341 Each 3/4" meter $348 Each 2%

1" meter $424 Each 1" meter $435 Each 3%

1 1/2" meter (residential only) $712 Each 1 1/2" meter (residential only) $737 Each 4%

2" meter (residential only) $906 Each 2" meter (residential only) $940 Each 4%

1 1/2" turbo (landscape) meter $912 Each 1 1/2" turbo (landscape) meter $946 Each 4%

2" turbo (landscape) meter $1,039 Each 2" turbo (landscape) meter $1,080 Each 4%

3" turbo (landscape) meter $1,470 Each 3" turbo (landscape) meter $1,520 Each 3%

4" turbo (landscape) meter $2,425 Each 4" turbo (landscape) meter $2,523 Each 4%

6" turbo (landscape) meter $4,382 Each 6" turbo (landscape) meter $4,559 Each 4%

1 1/2" (MFR & Non-res) meter $1,227 1 1/2" (MFR & Non-res) meter $1,277 Each 4%

2" (MFR & Non-res) meter $1,391 Each 2" (MFR & Non-res) meter $1,449 Each 4%

3" (MFR & Non-res) meter $1,919 Each 3" (MFR & Non-res) meter $1,991 Each 4%

4" (MFR & Non-res) meter $2,993 Each 4" (MFR & Non-res) meter $3,120 Each 4%

6" (MFR & Non-res) meter $5,220 Each 6" (MFR & Non-res) meter $5,438 Each 4%

3/4" service w/meter $6,050 Each 3/4" service w/meter $6,485 Each 7%

1" service w/meter $6,179 Each 1" service w/meter $6,572 Each 6%

1 1/2"service w/ meter $7,250 Each 1 1/2"service w/ meter $7,522 Each 4%

2" service w/meter $7,947 Each 2" service w/meter $8,166 Each 3%

Transceiver* $145 Each Transceiver* $170 Each 17%

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

This fee provides for cost recovery for City forces to supply and install meters or to construct water services with meters.  

Water Meter and Water Service with Meter

2023-2024

1. Determine the cost of water meters of various sizes and types.                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

2. Rate = construction cost per each meter or service with meter.                                                                                                                                                      

3. Evaluation of the water meter fee indicated minor revisions to costs.                                                                                                                                               

4. Evaluation of the water service with water meter installation cost indicated the same minor revisions to costs.                                                                             

* Transceiver does not apply to 3/4" meters and can be 

shared between two meters.

* Transceiver does not apply to 3/4" meters and can be 

shared between two meters.

The water meter fee covers the City's labor and equipment costs to supply and install water meters and transceivers.  Water service with meter fee 

covers the City's labor and equipment costs to supply and install a water service from the main to the property line and includes all associated costs 

(excavation, pipeline construction, connection to main, backfill, compaction, resurfacing, and water meter).

The fee represents direct cost for the actual material cost and associated City staff and equipment costs.

AB602: The costs are per each item with very little dependence upon size of the home.  Therefore the per each basis is more appropriate than 

residential square footage. 

% change

Page 14 of 33

190

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $6,293 $7,968 26.6%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $6,294 $7,968 26.6%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $6,294 $7,968 26.6%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $6,294 $7,968 26.6%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $3,775 $4,781 26.6%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $3,775 $4,781 26.6%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $3,775 $4,781 26.6%

Retail $9,934 $12,575 26.6%

Office, Public Facilities $4,530 $5,734 26.6%

Industrial, Assisted Living $1,219 $1,543 26.6%

Schools $7,947 $10,060 26.6%

Churches $4,530 $5,734 26.6%

Mini Storage $15,929 $20,164 26.6%

Industrial $943 $1,256 33.2%

Office $3,506 $4,667 33.1%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $412 $412 0.0%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $412 $412 0.0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $412 $412 0.0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $412 $412 0.0%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $248 $248 0.0%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $248 $248 0.0%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $248 $248 0.0%

Retail $649 $649 0.0%

Office, Public Facilities $296 $296 0.0%

Industrial, Assisted Living $79 $79 0.0%

Schools $520 $520 0.0%

Churches $296 $296 0.0%

Mini Storage $1,040 $1,040 0.0%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $76 $76 0.0%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $77 $77 0.0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $77 $77 0.0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $77 $77 0.0%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $47 $47 0.0%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $47 $47 0.0%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $47 $47 0.0%

Retail $122 $122 0.0%

Office, Public Facilities $55 $55 0.0%

Industrial, Assisted Living $15 $15 0.0%

Schools $99 $99 0.0%

Churches $55 $55 0.0%

Mini Storage $200 $200 0.0%

2023-2024

per unit

per unit

per unit

per unit

per unit

Outside Travel Lane Fee

Proposed Rates, Area 2

Existing Rates, Area 1 Proposed Rates, Area 1

Existing Rates, Area 2

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre

per unit

per unit

per unit

per unit

per unit

per unit

per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Existing Rates, Area 3 Proposed Rates, Area 3

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

% change

% change

% change

% change

per 1000 bldg sf

Area 1                                      

RT Park Phase 1, 2

Existing Rates, Area 1 Proposed Rates, Area 1

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Page 15 of 33

191

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



2023-2024

Outside Travel Lane Fee

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $5,775 $7,034 21.8%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $5,775 $7,033 21.8%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $5,775 $7,033 21.8%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $5,775 $7,033 21.8%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $3,466 $4,220 21.8%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $3,466 $4,220 21.8%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $3,466 $4,220 21.8%

Retail $9,115 $11,100 21.8%

Office, Public Facilities $4,157 $5,062 21.8%

Industrial, Assisted Living $1,118 $1,362 21.8%

Schools $7,292 $8,880 21.8%

Churches $4,157 $5,062 21.8%

Mini Storage $14,619 $17,799 21.8%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $2,628 $3,322 26.4%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $2,629 $3,321 26.3%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $2,629 $3,321 26.3%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $2,629 $3,321 26.3%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $1,578 $1,993 26.3%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $1,578 $1,993 26.3%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $1,578 $1,993 26.3%

Retail $4,150 $5,242 26.3%

Office, Public Facilities $1,892 $2,390 26.3%

Industrial, Assisted Living $509 $643 26.2%

Schools $3,320 $4,194 26.3%

Churches $1,892 $2,390 26.3%

Mini Storage $6,654 $8,403 26.3%

* Gross Acreage shall mean the total area of land, including one-half the right-of-way on the boundary streets.

^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit.

^^ EDU = Equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:

             Retail - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

             Office - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

             Industrial - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

Existing Rates, Area 4 Proposed Rates, Area 4

per gross acre per gross acre

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

% change

% change

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit

per unit

per unit

per gross acre per gross acre

Existing Rates, Area 5 Proposed Rates, Area 5

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit

per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit

Page 16 of 33

192

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



2023-2024

Outside Travel Lane Fee

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Construction and financing costs for the roadway, curb, gutter, sidewalk, and street lights.

Nexus

Methodology

1. Calculate the total cost of system components and financing.

2. Calculate the weighted Gross Acreage for each land use category.

3. Rate = total cost divided by weighted Gross Acreage.

4. Convert the rate to a per unit cost for residential developments.

5. Convert the rate to a per square foot cost for non-residential developments.

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Roadway systems are necessary to accommodate new development.  The rates are directly related to system utilization by each land use 

category.

AB602: ITE provides a nationally accepted methodology for estimating trips generated from residential land uses.  The estimate of trips is not 

based on dwelling size as that data does not exist in the ITE database.  The major street fees are prorated based on impact (trip generation) per 

unit and is therefore best estimated according to land use instead of residential square footage.

The Outside Travel Lane fee pays for the construction and financing of those certain planned travel lanes of a Major Street that are located 

between the frontage improvements and the Center Travel Lanes.

Page 17 of 33

193

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $2,044 $2,062 0.9%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $2,044 $2,062 0.9%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $2,044 $2,062 0.9%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $2,044 $2,062 0.9%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $1,226 $1,237 0.9%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $1,226 $1,237 0.9%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $1,226 $1,237 0.9%

Retail $3,226 $3,254 0.9%

Office, Public Facilities $1,471 $1,484 0.9%

Industrial, Assisted Living $396 $399 0.8%

Schools $2,581 $2,603 0.9%

Churches $1,471 $1,484 0.9%

Mini Storage $5,175 $5,214 0.8%

Industrial $225 $222 -1.3%

Office $835 $825 -1.2%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $0.00 $0.00 0%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $0.00 $0.00 0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $0.00 $0.00 0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $0.00 $0.00 0%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $0.00 $0.00 0%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $0.00 $0.00 0%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $0.00 $0.00 0%

Retail $0.00 $0.00 0%

Office, Public Facilities $0.00 $0.00 0%

Industrial, Assisted Living $0.00 $0.00 0%

Schools $0.00 $0.00 0%

Churches $0.00 $0.00 0%

Mini Storage $0.00 $0.00 0%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $0.00 $0.00 0%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $0.00 $0.00 0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $0.00 $0.00 0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $0.00 $0.00 0%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $0.00 $0.00 0%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $0.00 $0.00 0%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $0.00 $0.00 0%

Retail $0.00 $0.00 0%

Office, Public Facilities $0.00 $0.00 0%

Industrial, Assisted Living $0.00 $0.00 0%

Schools $0.00 $0.00 0%

Churches $0.00 $0.00 0%

Mini Storage $0.00 $0.00 0%

Center Travel Lane Fee

Existing Rates, Area 1 Proposed Rates, Area 1

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Area 1                                      

RT Park Phase 1, 2

Existing Rates, Area 1 Proposed Rates, Area 1

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

2023-2024

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Existing Rates, Area 2 Proposed Rates, Area 2

% change

% change

% change

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per gross acre per gross acre

Existing Rates, Area 3 Proposed Rates, Area 3

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

% change

Page 18 of 33

194

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Center Travel Lane Fee

2023-2024

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $2,400 $2,482 3.4%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $2,400 $2,482 3.4%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $2,400 $2,483 3.5%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $2,400 $2,482 3.4%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $1,440 $1,489 3.4%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $1,440 $1,489 3.4%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $1,440 $1,489 3.4%

Retail $3,788 $3,918 3.4%

Office, Public Facilities $1,727 $1,787 3.5%

Industrial, Assisted Living $465 $481 3.4%

Schools $3,030 $3,134 3.4%

Churches $1,727 $1,787 3.5%

Mini Storage $6,077 $6,286 3.4%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $1,631 $1,710 4.9%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $1,630 $1,710 4.9%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $1,630 $1,710 4.9%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $1,630 $1,710 4.9%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $978 $1,026 5.0%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $978 $1,026 5.0%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $978 $1,026 5.0%

Retail $2,571 $2,699 5.0%

Office, Public Facilities $1,172 $1,231 5.0%

Industrial, Assisted Living $316 $331 4.7%

Schools $2,057 $2,159 4.9%

Churches $1,172 $1,231 5.0%

Mini Storage $4,129 $4,326 4.8%

* Gross Acreage shall mean the total area of land, including one-half the right-of-way on the boundary streets.

^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit.

^^ EDU = Equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:

             Retail - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

             Office - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

             Industrial - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

Existing Rates, Area 4 Proposed Rates, Area 4

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

% change

% change

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

Existing Rates, Area 5 Proposed Rates, Area 5

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

Page 19 of 33

195

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Center Travel Lane Fee

2023-2024

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

1. Calculate the total cost of system components and financing.

2. Calculate the weighted Gross Acreage for each land use category.

3. Rate = total cost divided by weighted Gross Acreage.

4. Convert the rate to a per unit cost for residential developments.

5. Convert the rate to a per square foot cost for non-residential developments.

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Roadway systems are necessary to accommodate new development.  The rates are directly related to system utilization by each land use 

category.

AB602: ITE provides a nationally accepted methodology for estimating trips generated from residential land uses.  The estimate of trips is not 

based on dwelling size as that data does not exist in the ITE database.  The major street fees are prorated based on impact (trip generation) per 

unit and is therefore best estimated according to land use instead of residential square footage.

Construction and financing costs for the roadway, median curb, median cap and maintenance strip, landscaping, and irrigation.

The Center Travel Lane fee pays for the construction and financing of those certain planned travel lanes of a Major Street that are located within 

the median area.  The fee also includes the adjacent travel lane on roads with 4 lanes or less, or the 2 adjacent lanes on 6-lane roads.

Page 20 of 33

196

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $802 $860 7.2%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $801 $859 7.2%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $801 $860 7.4%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $801 $859 7.2%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $481 $516 7.3%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $481 $516 7.3%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $481 $516 7.3%

Retail $1,264 $1,356 7.3%

Office, Public Facilities $576 $619 7.5%

Industrial, Assisted Living $155 $166 7.1%

Schools $1,011 $1,085 7.3%

Churches $576 $619 7.5%

Mini Storage $2,026 $2,169 7.1%

Industrial $129 $121 -6.2%

Office $481 $450 -6.4%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $105 $105 0.0%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $106 $106 0.0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $106 $106 0.0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $106 $106 0.0%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $63 $63 0.0%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $63 $63 0.0%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $63 $63 0.0%

Retail $166 $166 0.0%

Office, Public Facilities $76 $76 0.0%

Industrial, Assisted Living $21 $21 0.0%

Schools $133 $133 0.0%

Churches $76 $76 0.0%

Mini Storage $270 $270 0.0%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $37 $37 0.0%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $38 $38 0.0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $38 $38 0.0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $38 $38 0.0%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $23 $23 0.0%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $23 $23 0.0%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $23 $23 0.0%

Retail $60 $60 0.0%

Office, Public Facilities $27 $27 0.0%

Industrial, Assisted Living $7 $7 0.0%

Schools $48 $48 0.0%

Churches $27 $27 0.0%

Mini Storage $100 $100 0.0%

2023-2024

per gross acre

Area 1                                      

RT Park Phase 1, 2

Existing Rates, Area 1

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Existing Rates, Area 2 Proposed Rates, Area 2

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

Existing Rates, Area 3 Proposed Rates, Area 3

per gross acre

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Traffic Signal Fee

Existing Rates, Area 1 Proposed Rates, Area 1

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Proposed Rates, Area 1

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

% change

% change

% change

% change

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per gross acre per gross acre

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit

Page 21 of 33

197

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



2023-2024

Traffic Signal Fee

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $530 $586 10.6%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $531 $585 10.2%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $531 $585 10.2%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $531 $585 10.2%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $318 $351 10.4%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $318 $351 10.4%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $318 $351 10.4%

Retail $837 $924 10.4%

Office, Public Facilities $382 $421 10.2%

Industrial, Assisted Living $103 $113 9.7%

Schools $670 $739 10.3%

Churches $382 $421 10.2%

Mini Storage $1,346 $1,477 9.7%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $357 $378 6.0%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $357 $378 6.0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $357 $378 6.0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $357 $377 5.8%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $214 $227 6.1%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $214 $227 6.1%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $214 $227 6.1%

Retail $565 $596 5.6%

Office, Public Facilities $258 $272 5.6%

Industrial, Assisted Living $69 $73 5.8%

Schools $452 $477 5.5%

Churches $258 $272 5.6%

Mini Storage $902 $954 5.8%

* Gross Acreage shall mean the total area of land, including one-half the right-of-way on the boundary streets.

^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit.

^^ EDU = Equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:

             Retail - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

             Office - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

             Industrial - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

Existing Rates, Area 5 Proposed Rates, Area 5

per gross acre per gross acre

Existing Rates, Area 4 Proposed Rates, Area 4

per gross acre per gross acre

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit

per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

% change

% change

Page 22 of 33

198

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



2023-2024

Traffic Signal Fee

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Construction and financing costs for the signal, the power systems, the detection systems and interconnecting fiber optic system.

Nexus

Methodology

1. Calculate the total cost of system components and financing.

2. Calculate the weighted Gross Acreage for each land use category.

3. Rate = total cost divided by weighted Gross Acreage.

4. Convert the rate to a per unit cost for residential developments.

5. Convert the rate to a per square foot cost for non-residential developments.

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

Traffic signal systems are necessary to accommodate new development as they increase vehicular and pedestrian safety.  The rates are directly 

related to system utilization by each land use category.

AB602: ITE provides a nationally accepted methodology for estimating trips generated from residential land uses.  The estimate of trips is not based 

on dwelling size as that data does not exist in the ITE database.  The major street fees are prorated based on impact (trip generation) per unit and is 

therefore best estimated according to land use instead of residential square footage.

The Traffic Signal fee pays for the construction and financing of those certain planned traffic signals at the intersection of Major Streets and the 

interconnecting fiber optic system.

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Page 23 of 33

199

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $68 $78 14.7%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $69 $78 13.0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $69 $78 13.0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $69 $78 13.0%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $41 $47 14.6%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $41 $47 14.6%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $41 $47 14.6%

Retail $108 $122 13.0%

Office, Public Facilities $49 $56 14.3%

Industrial, Assisted Living $13 $15 15.4%

Schools $87 $98 12.6%

Churches $49 $56 14.3%

Mini Storage $178 $196 10.1%

Industrial $0 $0 0%

Office $0 $0 0%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $0 $0 0%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $0 $0 0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $0 $0 0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $0 $0 0%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $0 $0 0%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $0 $0 0%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $0 $0 0%

Retail $0 $0 0%

Office, Public Facilities $0 $0 0%

Industrial, Assisted Living $0 $0 0%

Schools $0 $0 0%

Churches $0 $0 0%

Mini Storage $0 $0 0%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $0 $0 0%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $0 $0 0%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $0 $0 0%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $0 $0 0%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $0 $0 0%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $0 $0 0%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $0 $0 0%

Retail $0 $0 0%

Office, Public Facilities $0 $0 0%

Industrial, Assisted Living $0 $0 0%

Schools $0 $0 0%

Churches $0 $0 0%

Mini Storage $0 $0 0%

2023-2024

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

Existing Rates, Area 3 Proposed Rates, Area 3

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per gross acre per gross acre

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Existing Rates, Area 2 Proposed Rates, Area 2

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Bridge Fee

Existing Rates, Area 1 Proposed Rates, Area 1

per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

Area 1                                      

RT Park Phase 1, 2

% change

% change

% change

% change

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

Existing Rates, Area 1 Proposed Rates, Area 1

per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

Page 24 of 33

200

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



2023-2024

Bridge Fee

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $595 $686 15.4%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $595 $686 15.4%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $595 $687 15.5%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $595 $687 15.5%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $355 $412 15.9%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $355 $412 15.9%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $355 $412 15.9%

Retail $937 $1,083 15.6%

Office, Public Facilities $428 $494 15.5%

Industrial, Assisted Living $116 $133 14.5%

Schools $751 $867 15.5%

Churches $428 $494 15.5%

Mini Storage $1,510 $1,738 15.1%

SFR - Rural (0 - 0.5) $204 $214 4.9%

SFR - Very Low Density (0.6 - 2) $205 $213 3.9%

SFR - Low Density (2.1 - 4) $205 $213 3.9%

SFR - Medium Density (4.1 - 7) $205 $213 3.9%

MFR - Medium High Density (7.1 - 15) $123 $128 4.1%

MFR - High (15.1 - 25) $123 $128 4.1%

MFR - Very High (25.1 - 43) $123 $128 4.1%

Retail $323 $337 4.3%

Office, Public Facilities $147 $154 4.8%

Industrial, Assisted Living $40 $41 2.5%

Schools $258 $270 4.7%

Churches $147 $154 4.8%

Mini Storage $523 $536 2.5%

* Gross Acreage shall mean the total area of land, including one-half the right-of-way on the boundary streets.

^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit.

^^ EDU = Equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:

             Retail - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

             Office - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

             Industrial - 1 EDU = 2450 square feet of building area

per gross acre per gross acre

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per gross acre per gross acre

Existing Rates, Area 5 Proposed Rates, Area 5

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per 1000 bldg sf per 1000 bldg sf

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

Existing Rates, Area 4 Proposed Rates, Area 4

per unit per unit

per unit per unit

% change

% change

Page 25 of 33

201

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



2023-2024

Bridge Fee

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Construction and financing costs for the bridge, culvert and erosion protection systems.

Nexus

Methodology

1. Calculate the total cost of system components and financing.

2. Calculate the weighted Gross Acreage for each land use category.

3. Rate = total cost divided by weighted Gross Acreage.

4. Convert the rate to a per unit cost for residential developments.

5. Convert the rate to a per square foot cost for non-residential developments.

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

Bridge systems are necessary to accommodate new development to allow Major Streets to cross waterways.  The rates are directly related to 

system utilization by each land use category.

AB602: ITE provides a nationally accepted methodology for estimating trips generated from residential land uses.  The estimate of trips is not 

based on dwelling size as that data does not exist in the ITE database.  The major street fees are prorated based on impact (trip generation) per 

unit and is therefore best estimated according to land use instead of residential square footage.

The Bridge fee pays for the construction and financing of those certain planned bridge facilities at locations where Major Streets cross various 

waterways.

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Page 26 of 33

202

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Area 1 $8,692 per Gr. Ac. Area 1 $8,400 per Gr. Ac. -3.4%

RT Park Phase1, 2 $2,894 per Gr. Ac. RT Park Phase1, 2 $2,797 per Gr. Ac. -3.4%

Area 2 $0 per Gr. Ac. Area 2 $0 per Gr. Ac. 0%

Area 3 $8,268 per Gr. Ac. Area 3 $8,003 per Gr. Ac. -3.2%

Area 4 $7,960 per Gr. Ac. Area 4 $7,823 per Gr. Ac. -1.7%

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Specific overhead lines have been designated to be placed underground, generally along major streets in developing areas.  

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Undergrounding existing overhead utilities is an aesthetic, and in many cases, safety enhancement to the general community.  Each 

developing property within a benefit zone is deemed to receive a benefit that is uniform among property locations and development 

types.  Therefore, the cost is spread among all properties equally on an acreage basis.

AB602:The current method meets the intent of AB602 to impose lower fees on smaller dwellings that are typical of higher density 

developments.

1. Calculate the total cost of all utilities to be placed underground.                                                                                                                                                                                                

2. Calculate the developable acreage within each benefit area that will contribute.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

3. Rate = total cost divided by gross acreage.

Utility Undergrounding Fee

2023-2024

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

The Utility Undergrounding Fee pays for the relocation of certain overhead electric utilities from overhead to underground, generally 

along major streets in urbanizing areas.   

Overhead electric utilities in older, developed areas and areas that are either on the City fringe or are to remain rural in nature are 

generally excluded.

% change

Page 27 of 33

203

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



All Residential $5,354 per Unit All Residential $5,662 per Unit 6%

Retail $0.68 per Bldg. sf. Retail $0.69 per Bldg. sf. 1%

Office $1.48 per Bldg. sf. Office $1.50 per Bldg. sf. 1%

Industrial $0.48 per Bldg. sf. Industrial $0.49 per Bldg. sf. 2%

^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit ^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit

^^ Non-residential Fees are based on building square footage. ^^ Non-residential Fees are based on building square footage.

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

The distribution of cost is based on potential hours spent at park public faciltiies by each use category, as opposed to a general percentage-based 

distribution.  Also, distribution of cost no longer considers grant funding.  As with all other development impact fees, park public facilities are 

funded 100% by development and grant funding is considered a cost-savings.  Rate increases are due to a comprehensice cost evaluation.

Park Acquisition & Development Fee

2023-2024

The Park Acquisition & Development Fee is to finance the acquisition and development of park and recreation facilities to reduce the impacts of 

increased user demand from increased population and diminished park and recreation facility capacity caused by new development in the City.

AB602: The need for additional open park space is identified in the Quimby Act as one (1) acre per 1000 residents.  The Census data provides an 

average population per dwelling unit but does not connect population to dwelling size.  Therefore, an average fee based on dwelling units is 

more empirical and accurate than basing the fee on residntial square footage.

1.  Calculate total number of potential hours to be spent at park public facilities by Clovis residents.

2.  Calculate total number of potential hours to be spent at park public facilities by employees working in Clovis.

3.  Calculate the total cost of the remaining public facilities.

4.  Calculate cost distribution based on percentage of total potential hours to be spent at park public facilities.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

5.  Calculate the projected total of residential units within the Sphere of Influence.

6.  Calculate the projected total of commercial building area within the Sphere of Influence.

7.  a.  Residential Rate = Residential development's portion of the total cost divided by total residential units.

     b.  Retail Rate = Retail development's portion of the total cost divided by total retail building area..

     b.  Office Rate = Office development's portion of the total cost divided by total office building area..

     b.  Industrial Rate = Industrial development's portion of the total cost divided by total industrial building area.                                   

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

The Park Acquisition and Development Fee shall be used to finance (1) only the public facilities described or identified in the Parks and Recreation 

Element of the Clovis General Plan, as amended, which shall be acquired and developed by the City or (2) the reimbursement to the City for the 

owner/developer's or person's fair share of those park and recreation facilities already acquired and/or developed.

The fee covers the public facilities described or identified in the Parks and Recreation Element of the Clovis General Plan, as amended.

% change

Page 28 of 33

204

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Single Family $481 per Unit Single Family $509 per Unit 5.8%

Multi-Family, non-Res $396 per Unit Multi-Family, non-Res $412 per Unit 4.0%

* Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit or EDU * Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit or EDU

EDU = Equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows EDU = Equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows

          Office - 1 EDU = 9680 square feet of gross parcel area           Office - 1 EDU = 9680 square feet of gross parcel area

          Industrial - 1 EDU = 9680 square feet of gross parcel area           Industrial - 1 EDU = 9680 square feet of gross parcel area

          Retail - 1 EDU = 9680 square feet of gross parcel area           Retail - 1 EDU = 9680 square feet of gross parcel area

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- This year's adjustment was based on a comprehensive cost evaluation.

Community Sanitation Fee

2023-2024

The Community Sanitation Fee is to finance initial community sanitation capital outlay to reduce the impacts of increased user demand 

from increased population and diminished community sanitation service capacity caused by new development in the City.

AB602: Residential service is once a week per dwelling unit with no variation for dwelling size.  The current method is unit based which is 

a more direct connection to the service provided than using residential square footage.

1.  Determine the cost for each type of vehicle and bin.

2.  Determine the number of residential units served by each type of vehicle.

3.  Determine the average number of bins used per residential unit.

4.  Determine the number of commercial EDUs served by each type of vehicle.

5.  Determine the average number of bins used per commercial EDU.

6.  a.  Residential Rate = total cost of each type of vehicle per residential unit plus the cost of the average number of bins per unit.

     b.  Commerical Rate = total cost of each type of vehicle plus the cost of the average number of bins per commercial EDU.

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

The Community Sanitation Fee is for the purchase of residential carts, commercial bins, disposal and community cleanup trucks and 

loaders, and street sweeping equipment.

The fee covers initial capital outlay for garbage trucks, community cleanup trucks and loaders, residential carts, and commercial bins.

% change

Page 29 of 33

205

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



All Land Uses $2,347 per Unit * All Land Uses $2,075 per Unit ^ -12%

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- Revised cost per square foot to construct new fire stations and the current cost of equipment.

Fire Department Fee

2023-2024

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

1. Calculate the total current property acquisition, construction cost, furnishings and equipment of an average fire station.                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

2. Calculate the number of residential and non-residential units within the service area of an average fire station.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

3. Rate = the total cost divided by the total units for an average service area.

The Fire Department Fee includes all costs related to the acquisition, construction, and/ or financing of fire stations, fire engines, ladder 

truck, and all associated equipment required to meet the needs of the new development within the City's sphere of influence.  The rate 

includes purchase of ladder apparatus that was previously funded under the Multi Story Impact Fee.  

^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit.                                           

Residential unit is defined as each living separate dwelling unit 

for single family and multi family developments.                                                                                

EDU = equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:                                                                                    

Hotel, motel commercial, professional, and industrial 

developments = 9680 square feet of gross parcel acre.                      

Assisted living facilities, churches, hospitals, and non public 

schools - 1 EDU = 1500 square feet of gross building area.                                                               

Public schools - 1 EDU = 29,000 square feet of gross lot acreage.

The Fire Department Fee pays for fire stations, fire engines, ladder truck and associated equipment for the entire sphere of influence.  

This fee is not for the maintenance or replacement of fire stations, fire engines, ladder truck, or associated equipment.            

* Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit.                                           

Residential unit is defined as each separate living dwelling unit 

for single family and multi family developments.                                                                                

EDU = equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:                                                                                    

Hotel, motel commercial, professional, and industrial 

developments = 9680 square feet of gross parcel acrea.                                                                           

Assisted living facilities, churches, hospitals, and non public 

schools - 1 EDU = 1500 square feet of gross building area.                                                                    

Public schools - 1 EDU = 29,000 square feet of gross lot acreage.

All development induces a need for fire protection.  The cost of the emergency response infrastructure includes the facilities listed above.  

The cost of the entire system is apportioned among all units within the entire sphere of influence to arrive at a rate per unit or EDU.  It 

was determined that ladder trucks are frequently used and are indispensible on many one and two story structure fires in addition to 

being available for high rise buildings incidents.  Therefore, the ladder and associated equipment serves the entire community and has 

been included in the Fire Department Fee.

AB602: There is no data to support an assumption that smaller dwelling units generate fewer calls for service than larger dwelling units.  

There is, however, generally accepted national practice correlating the number of stations to population.  Using Census data for average 

population per dwelling unit provides the nexus to base the fees on dwelling units more accurately than basing the fee on residential 

square footage.

% change

Page 30 of 33

206

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



All Land Uses $1,134 per Unit * All Land Uses $1,457 per Unit ^ 28%

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- Revised equipment acquistion and construction estimates.  

Police Department Fee

2023-2024

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

* Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit.                                           

Residential unit is defined as each separate living dwelling unit 

for single family and multi family developments.                                                                                

EDU = equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:                                                                                    

Hotel, motel commercial, professional, and industrial 

developments = 9680 square feet of gross parcel acrea.                                                                           

Assisted living facilities, churches, hospitals, and non public 

schools - 1 EDU = 1500 square feet of gross building area.                                                                    

Public schools - 1 EDU = 29,000 square feet of gross lot acreage.

^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit.                                           

Residential unit is defined as each living separate dwelling unit 

for single family and multi family developments.                                                                                

EDU = equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:                                                                                    

Hotel, motel commercial, professional, and industrial 

developments = 9680 square feet of gross parcel acre.                      

Assisted living facilities, churches, hospitals, and non public 

schools - 1 EDU = 1500 square feet of gross building area.                                                               

Public schools - 1 EDU = 29,000 square feet of gross lot acreage.

The Police Department Fee pays for police stations, vehicles and associated equipment for the entire sphere of influence.  This fee is not 

for the maintenance or replacement of police stations, vehicles, or associated equipment.            

The Police Department Fee includes all costs related to the acquisition, construction, and/ or financing of police stations, vehicles, and all 

associated equipment required to meet the needs of the new development within the City's sphere of influence.

All development induces a need for police protection.  The cost of the emergency response infrastructure includes the facilities listed 

above.  The cost of the entire system is apportioned among all units within the entire sphere of influence to arrive at a rate per unit or 

EDU.

AB602: There is no data to support an assumption that smaller dwelling units generate fewer calls for service than larger dwelling units.  

There is, however, generally accepted national practice correlating the number of stations to population.  Using Census data for average 

population per dwelling unit provides the nexus to base the fees on dwelling units more accurately than basing the fee on residential 

square footage.

1. Calculate the total current property acquisition, construction cost, furnishings and equipment of an average police station.                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

2. Calculate the number of residential and non-residential units within the service area of an average police station.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

3. Rate = the total cost divided by the total units for an average service area.

% change

Page 31 of 33

207

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Single Family Residential $760 per Unit * Single Family Residential $760 per Unit ^ 0%

Multi Family Residential $621 per Unit* Multi Family Residential $621 per Unit ^ 0%

Purpose of Fee

Scope of Improvements covered

Nexus

Methodology

Summary of Factors contributing to Rate Change

- No change in rate proposed.

Library  Fee

2023-2024

The Library Fee pays for the mitigation of adverse impacts to public library facilities and equipment attributed to new development.  

^ Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit .                                           

Residential unit is defined as each living separate dweling unit for 

single family, multi family, apartment, mobile home, 

condominium, cooperative, or planned developments.                                                                                

EDU = equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:                                                                                                     

Assisted living facilities and group homes - 1 EDU = 1500 square 

feet of gross building area.    

* Unit is defined as each separate dwelling unit .                                           

Residential unit is defined as each living separate dweling unit for 

single family, multi family, apartment, mobile home, 

condominium, cooperative, or planned developments.                                                                                

EDU = equivalent Dwelling Unit is defined as follows:                                                                                                     

Assisted living facilities and group homes - 1 EDU = 1500 square 

feet of gross building area.                                        

Existing Rates Proposed Rates

Fresno County in 2003 adopted a Heart of the Community study that addressed the planning, needs, and growth impacts to the County 

library system for the entire Fresno County.  This study identified the library facilities that will be required in the future.  The Clovis Library 

fee was approved to capture Clovis's portion of the Fresno County Library fee and use it only in the City of Clovis.  The City Library fee 

does not include all the funding required to construct all the Library facilites in Clovis' Sphere of Influence, since the Clovis library service 

area exthends beyond the sphere boundaries.  Additional funding would have to come from oher sources including tax measures, grants, 

and contributions.

AB602: The Fresno County study identied the needs based on new home counts with no correlation between home sizes and system 

needs.  Therefore a per home basis is more appropriate than a square footage basis.

1. Calculate the total cost of the remaining library facilities needed to serve the City's Sphere of Influence.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

2. Divide the total cost of the remaining library facilities by the total remaining library building area and obtain a cost per building square 

foot.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

3.  Divide the Cost per building square foot by the library building area needed per person from the Clovis Library Facilities Improvement 

Impact Fees Study to obtain Library cost per person.                                                                                                                                   4.  Multiply 

the Library cost per person by Persons per owner occupied dwelling unit from the US 2010 Census and obtain a Cost per Single Family 

Residential Dwelling Unit.                                                                                                                                                                                    5.  Multiply 

the Library cost per person by Persons per renter occupied dwelling unit from the US 2010 Census and obtain a Cost per Multi Family 

Residential Dwelling Unit.  

The library fee includes all costs related to the acquisition, construction, and/ or financing of public library facitlities and or equipment, 

including land acquisition, building construction, parking, landscaping, signs, monuments, computer stations, books shelving, furniture 

and other related equipment required to meet the needs of the new developmen with the City's sphere of influence.  

% change

Page 32 of 33

208

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Findings in Support of the Continuation of City Policies to Impose Residential Development Impact Fees

Appendix A

on a Per Unit or Per Acreage Basis

209

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



Findings in Support of the Continuation of City Policies to Impose Residential Development Impact Fees 
on a Per Unit or Per Acreage Basis 

 

 

AB602 was signed by California Governor Gavin Newsom in September 2021.  It became part of the State’s 
Government Code and it includes several requirements for agencies which are intended to: 

1. Promote new Statewide standards for Development Impact Fee Nexus Studies. 
2. Provide improved transparency by the publishing of information on an agency’s website. 
3. Support smaller and multi-family developments. 

 
A portion of AB602 specific to Development Impact Fees states to following: 
 
Government Code, Section 66016.5(a)(5) 

(A) A nexus study adopted after July 1, 2022, shall calculate a fee imposed on a housing development 
project proportionately to the square footage of proposed units of the development. A local 
agency that imposes a fee proportionately to the square footage of the proposed units of the 
development shall be deemed to have used a valid method to establish a reasonable relationship 
between the fee charged and the burden posed by the development. 

(B) A nexus study is not required to comply with subparagraph (A) if the local agency makes a finding 
that includes all of the following: 
(i) An explanation as to why square footage is not appropriate metric to calculate fees imposed 

on housing development project. 
(ii) An explanation that an alternative basis of calculating the fee bears a reasonable relationship 

between the fee charged and the burden posed by the development. 
(iii) That other policies in the fee structure support smaller developments, or otherwise ensure 

that smaller developments are not charged disproportionate fees. 
 
Stated another way, the City must either calculate the Development Impact Fees imposed on housing 
developments proportional to the square footage of the proposed units or make specific findings as to 
why they are based on another metric. 
 
There is no requirement for the City to include a financial element within its General Plan.  Therefore, a 
well-defined Development Impact Fee program and associated nexus studies function as the de-facto 
financial plan in support of the City’s General Plan.  They identify the anticipated service demands by type 
of infrastructure and establish a fair, reasonable method to finance the required capital projects and 
acquisitions to accommodate the anticipated service demands from development. 
 
The City of Clovis has expressed a desire to continue imposing Development Impact Fees on housing 
development projects in their current manner, which is not based on the square footage of the proposed 
units.  The unit of assessment is currently a per unit basis and in some instances a per acreage basis.  The 
current fee methodology and unit of assessment provides greater accuracy for planning than a square 
footage basis. 
 
The requirement of AB602 to impose Development Impact Fees on based on the dwelling unit size 
assumes that anticipated service demands are lower for smaller dwelling units and higher for larger 
dwelling units.  The City’s current methodology is supported by years of data and peer reviews, which 
contrasts with the unsubstantiated assumption of AB602.  

210

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



 
The City’s development code describes a maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) that limits the building sizes for 
non-residential development projects, but there is not a size limitation placed upon residential projects.  
There are height restrictions and setback restrictions from the property lines that vary somewhat between 
density ranges, but otherwise the square footage of the dwelling unit is largely based upon what the 
developer has determined is marketable.  Given this flexibility, a project will frequently see a wide range 
of dwelling sizes within each density range. 
 
The Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code, Sections 66000 - 66024) requires certain findings by agencies 
that establish, increase, or impose fees as a condition of approval of a development project.  These 
requirements are: 
1. Identify the purpose of the fee. 
2. Identify the use to which the fee is to be put (identify the public facilities to be constructed). 
3. Determine how there is a reasonable relationship (nexus) between the fee’s and the type of 

development project on which the fee is imposed. 
4. Determine how there is a reasonable relationship (nexus) between the need for the public facility 

and the type of development project on which the fee is imposed. 
 
Items 1 and 2 are clearly identified in the City’s Municipal Code. Items 3 and 4 are met through multiple 
actions taken by the City Council such as: 
1. The General Plan 
2. Specific Plans 
3. Master Plans for Sewer, Water, Recycled Water, etc. 
The method by which fee rates are established which evaluates the cost of improvements identified in 
the various adopted plans and distributes that cost among the developable properties within the 
respective service areas in rough proportion to their impact on, or need for, the public facilities. 
 
The City’s Development Impact Fee program has years of empirical data to define the average impacts of 
residential developments to services based on land uses and density; this proof is in compliance with the 
Mitigation Fee Act.  The data produces average impacts on a basis of acreage or dwelling unit, but the 
data does not provide a correlation to the square footage of the dwelling units.  The collection of fees for 
development-based demands is a one-time fee that represents the service needs of that dwelling unit as 
long as the structure exists.  The assumption that smaller units generate less service demand than larger 
units does not consider the reality that any dwelling may have different occupants and therefore different 
demands over its 50-year life, nor does the assumption consider the fact that a duplicate dwelling may be 
home to a different number of residents in each of its instances.  An example of this is that the number of 
occupants may change as the dwelling changes owners or the needs of the owner and their family 
changes.  Another example would be that identical dwellings may house a single occupant or multiple 
occupants.  
 
Description of City Development Impact Fee categories 

• Sewer and Water - The City has data related to measured sewage flow generation and water usage 
specific to land uses and density ranges of residential developments.  The Master Plans for pipe sizes 
and treatment capacity are based upon the average service demands of existing land, which in turn is 
used to predict future demands for residential and non-residential development.  The Master Plans 
identify the need for additional infrastructure based upon the number of residential dwelling units 
and the financing should be on the same basis, not based on dwelling size. 

211

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



• Non-Potable Water - The costs of the City system are prorated on an acreage basis, allowing for a 
lower cost per unit as density increases.  The non-potable water is used for irrigation purposes in place 
of potable water which helps the City reduce its dependence on ground water.  The benefit is more 
directly connected to the size in acres of the residential project than the sizes of the homes.  The 
current method provides a strong nexus in compliance with the Mitigation Fee Act while also meeting 
the intent of AB602 to impose lower fees on smaller dwellings that are typical of higher density 
developments. 

• Major Streets - ITE provides a nationally accepted methodology for estimating trips generated from 
residential land uses.  The estimate of trips is not based on dwelling size as that data does not exist in 
the ITE database.  The major street fees are prorated based on impact (trip generation) per unit and 
is therefore best estimated according to land use instead of dwelling size. 

• Undergrounding of Overhead Utilities – Similar to non-potable water, the costs are prorated on an 
acreage basis and allow for a lower cost per unit as density increases.  The current method meets the 
intent of AB602 to impose lower fees on smaller dwellings that are typical of higher density 
developments. 

• Community Sanitation – Residential service is once a week per dwelling unit with no variation for 
dwelling size.  The current method is unit based which is a more direct connection to the service 
provided. 

• Parks – The need for additional open park space is identified in the Quimby Act as one (1) acre per 
1000 residents.  The Census data provides an average population per dwelling unit but does not 
connect population to dwelling size.  Therefore, an average fee based on dwelling units is more 
empirical and accurate than basing the fee on dwelling sizes. 

• Fire and Police – There is no data to support an assumption that smaller dwelling units generate fewer 
calls for service than larger dwelling units.  There is, however, generally accepted national practice 
correlating the number of stations to population.  Using Census data for average population per 
dwelling unit provides the nexus to base the fees on dwelling units more accurately than basing the 
fee on dwelling sizes. 

 
The City’s current Development Impact Fee program neither favors nor penalizes one land use over 
another.  The fees are based upon the fair share impact of each development and their land use.   The 
type of dwelling unit for residential, whether it is single-family or multi-family, is the main factor that 
changes the demand for services.  The City’s data does not indicate that the main factor for service 
demand is dwelling size. 
 
The City is mindful of the State’s intentions to encourage residential construction of higher densities and 
they are assuming higher density development creates a lower demand due to their generally smaller 
sized dwelling units.  However, given a lack of empirical data to support this, the City feels obligated to 
keep their current basis of imposing Development Impact Fees instead of charging based on dwelling sizes.  
The increases in property values and rents are an indicator of a thoughtful plan for City growth and a well-
developed collection of development impact fees for funding the required services. 
 
In conclusion, the current method in which Development Impact Fees are imposed either on a per unit 
basis or a per acreage basis has proven to be a fair means for housing developments.  To charge based on 
a square footage basis would be unsupported by empirical data and less compliant with the Mitigation 
Fee Act. 

212

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval - Res. 23-___, 2023-2024 City of Clovis Annual 
Budget, Five Year Capital Improvement Program, and Information 
regarding the Clovis Successor Agency. (Continued from the May 15, 
2023, meeting) 
 

Staff: John Holt, City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 23-___ 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Consider approval of the City of Clovis Annual Budget, Five Year Capital Improvement Program, 
and information regarding the Clovis Successor Agency. This item was introduced on May 15, 
2023, and continued to the meeting of June 5, 2023. Staff is recommending the Council continue 
the public hearing, and adopt the budget resolution. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The 2023-2024 Annual Budget for general operations and capital improvement programs for the 
City of Clovis in the amount of $330.8 million is balanced using current revenues, anticipated 
rate increases and capital reserves and is hereby submitted, in accordance with the Clovis 
Municipal Code.  
 
The 2023-2024 Annual Budget was developed to grow the City’s operations to address growth 
and provide targeted investments in the City to improve the quality of life for its residents. While 
economic uncertainty still exists and the General Fund is still constrained, the City is in a solid 
fiscal position. The proposed budget further solidifies the City’s financial position in maintaining 
reserves, setting aside funds for future needs, and reduces the potential need for debt financing 
while restoring critical services and making significant investments in our City. The major 

213

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



challenge in the current budget, and years to come, is focused on the $105.3 million General 
Fund budget. Sales and property taxes make up 85% of the total General Fund discretionary 
revenues. Staff is estimating an ending General Fund emergency reserve balance for June 30, 
2024, of $22.7 million, or 22% of the General Fund expenditures. 

 

BACKGROUND 
The 2023-2024 Annual Budget projects sales tax revenues to be $32.0 million, which represents 
a 1% increase from the 2022-2023 Annual Budget. Over the last two years, sales tax 
experienced dramatic growth due to the shift to online purchases which was exacerbated by the 
pandemic. California’s AB 147, the Marketplace Facilitator’s Act, also provided vigorous gains 
in the county pools due to online purchases, of which the City receives a share. The City does 
not anticipate this rate of growth to continue and is projecting a moderate increase after 
experiencing robust growth in the prior two fiscal years. Sales tax is expected to flatten or grow 
modestly due to inflationary pressures on households shifting dollars away from discretionary 
spending as larger portions of income go to essentials such as food, transportation, and housing 
costs. Sales tax comprises 39% of the projected discretionary revenue for fiscal year 2023-2024. 
 
Property tax revenues are expected to continue to rise, although new housing development is 
not anticipated to continue at historical levels in the near term. Commercial property tax revenues 
will be closely monitored as they may be impacted by the accelerated shift to online shopping 
and remote office work. Property taxes, including in-lieu vehicle license fees, are projected to be 
$37.4 million in fiscal year 2023-2024, which represents a 11% increase from previous fiscal 
year. These property taxes comprise 46% of the projected discretionary revenue for fiscal year 
2023-2024. 
 
One of the keys for the long-term fiscal health of a growing community like Clovis is to 
accumulate savings sufficient to fund an emergency reserve that would adequately protect the 
City against an unexpected catastrophic event and protect City services until other options could 
be implemented during a rapid economic downturn. The emergency reserve is being maintained 
with 22%, or $22.7 million.  
 
Enterprise operations and other funds need to be self-balancing with sufficient reserves to meet 
service obligations and debt coverage. All enterprise operations and other funds are balanced. 
In addition, Sewer and Water operations have an authorized 3% rate escalator and Community 
Sanitation operations have an authorized 4% rate escalator. Sewer will implement the rate 
increase in this year’s budget and the full $7.30 bond surcharge will be rebated. Water will 
implement the authorized 3% increase and has two rate schedules: one for normal conditions 
and one for drought conditions. This year’s budget anticipates normal conditions. Community 
Sanitation will implement the 4% increase for recycling and green waste services, refuse service, 
and street sweeping service. Each year, staff evaluates all Enterprise Funds to determine if any 
rate adjustments are necessary. 
 
The Transit Enterprise remains fully funded and, with the City’s population exceeding 100,000, 
Transit will receive the entire allocation of Local Transportation Funding.  
 

214

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



The 2023-2024 Annual Budget for all funds totals $330.8 million and is balanced using current 
revenues, anticipated rate increases, and capital reserves. This budget represents a 14% 
decrease compared to estimated expenditures for 2022-2023, due primarily to several large 
capital projects being completed in the current year and not reflected in the proposed budget. A 
summary of expenditures by function is provided below: 
 

 
 

The General Fund, which is the only source of discretionary funding used for basic government 
services such as public safety, streets, parks, recreation, and senior services, is budgeted to 
increase 7% above estimated expenditures for 2022-2023. Department budgets are proposed 
to increase due to budget increases for core services as well as additional salary and benefit 
costs. Total current revenue in the General Fund is estimated at $105.2 million and expenditures 
of $105.3 million are being proposed. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
In accordance with the Municipal Code, and in compliance with State law, the City Council is 
required to adopt a balanced, annual budget for each fiscal year by June 30. The annual budget 
provides a spending plan for the upcoming year that is balanced with expenditures kept in line 
with revenues and includes a five-year capital investment plan for the community. 
 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The City Council must conduct a public hearing to provide an opportunity for the public to 
comment on the proposed annual budget; must review the proposal to determine that the 
financial plan fairly represents the fiscal policies and priorities of the City Council; and is required 
by local ordinance, in compliance with state law, to adopt a balanced budget by no later than 
June 30, 2023.  If the Council fails to adopt a budget by that date, then the City Manager’s 
proposed budget will automatically become effective to avoid any interruption in City operations, 
but no capital projects or capital purchases would be allowed until final action by the City Council. 
 

ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
On May 15, 2023, the 2023-2024 City of Clovis Annual Budget was presented and 
recommended opening the public hearing for departmental review and comment, continue the 
public hearings to June 5, 2023, and adopt the budget resolution no later than June 30, 2023. 
The recommended Annual Budget has been available for review by the public since May 15, 
2023 on the City’s website found at www.cityofclovis.com. 
 

Prepared by: Gina Daniels, Assistant Finance Director 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

General 
Government

3%

Public Safety
23%

Planning & 
Development 

Services
5%

Community 
Investment 
Program

15%

Public Utilities
25%

Culture & Rec
7%

Internal 
Services

22%

General Government $      9,602,900       

Public Safety 78,564,600 

Planning & Development Services 15,348,900 

Community Investment Program 49,006,000 

Public Utilities 82,712,800 

Culture & Rec. 21,690,900 

Internal Services 73,827,700 

  TOTAL $  330,753,800   

215

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.

file:///C:/Users/johnh/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/jays/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/dianab/Desktop/www.cityofclovis.com


ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 23-    

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING THE 
ANNUAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024, ORDERING TRANSFERS, AND 

ADOPTING THE SUMMARY OF APPROPRIATIONS BY FUND AND DEPARTMENT AND 
OTHER NECESSARY ACTIONS RELATED TO APPROVING THE 2023-2024 BUDGET 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council is required to adopt the Budget by June 30 of each year; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has conducted a public hearing on the recommended 2023-2024 
Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the adoption of Proposition 111 on June 5, 1990, requires the Council adopt an 
Appropriation Limit; and 

WHEREAS, the Council intends to establish the City's Appropriation Limit in conformance 
with the provisions of Proposition 111; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it necessary to adopt the 2023-2024 Budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Clovis as follows: 

1. The 2023-2024 Annual Budget and corresponding Personnel Allocation is 
approved. 

2. The City Council approves and orders the transfer of monies in and out of various 
funds as set forth in the "Notes to Resources and Appropriations Summary" of said 
2023-2024 Budget Book.  

3. The “Summary of Expenditures/Expenses 2023-2024 by Department within Fund-
Legal Level of Budgetary Control" attached as Exhibit A is approved. 

4. The Appropriation Limit as calculated and shown on Page 9 of the 2023-2024 
Budget book is approved for $404,728,778. 

5. The Council orders that any budget savings or unanticipated revenue be 
transferred to reserves in accordance with the Appropriation Limit. 

6. Any amendments to the appropriations as may be subsequently approved by the 
Council shall be in conformance with Section 2-8.11, Section 2-8.13 and Section 
2-8.17 of the Clovis Municipal Code. 

  

216

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



   

7. The City Council orders that $22,700,000 of the Fund Balance from the City's 
General Fund be designated as Emergency Reserve. 

8. The City Council approves the Five-Year Capital Improvement Program that is 
included within the Annual Budget. 

9. The Clovis Redevelopment Successor Agency’s information is included in the City 
budget and accounting systems for administrative purposes and is shown on  
Exhibit A. 

10. The updated Monthly Salary Schedules by bargaining group are attached as 
Exhibit B. 

11. The City Council will implement the approved 3% annual increase in sewer user 
rates and will refund in full the $7.30 per month sewer bond surcharge thereby 
adopting the fees itemized in Exhibit C. 

12. The City Council will implement the approved annual 4% increase in rates for 
refuse, residential recycling and greenwaste and street sweeping as shown in 
Exhibit D. 

13. The City Council will implement the approved 3% annual increase in water user 
rates thereby adopting the fees itemized in Exhibit E. The non-drought rates on 
Exhibit E will be in effect for 2023-2024. 

   *  *  *  *  *  
The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council 

of the City of Clovis held on June 5, 2023, the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   
NOES: 
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 

Dated:   June 5, 2023 

 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
  Mayor          City Clerk 

217

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



City of Clovis

Summary of Expenditures/Expenses 2023-2024

By Department within Fund-Legal Level of Budgetary Control

DEPARTMENT City Clovis 

City City City General Planning & Public Capital 2023-2024 Successor

Council Attorney Manager Services Finance Dev Serv Police Fire Utilities Improvements Total Agency

FUND

GENERAL

  General Fund 560,700$ 1,123,200$ 2,873,100$ 4,467,400$   3,982,100$ 54,524,000$ 24,040,600$ 13,768,100$   105,339,200$ 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

  Housing & Community Development 348,900      348,900          

  Landscape Assessment District 5,298,000       5,298,000       

  Community Facilities Dist 2020-1 32,700            32,700            

  Total Special Revenue 348,900      5,330,700       5,679,600       

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

  Liability & Property Insurance 6,791,600     6,791,600       

  Employee Benefits 39,311,900   39,311,900     

  Fleet Maintenance 12,084,100     12,084,100     

  General Government Services 6,295,000   9,345,100     15,640,100     

  Total Internal Service 6,295,000   55,448,600   12,084,100     73,827,700     

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

  Community Sanitation 27,625,000     27,625,000     

  Wastewater 19,499,400     19,499,400     

  Water 24,140,800     24,140,800     

  Transit 10,287,200   10,287,200     

  Planning & Development Services 15,348,900    15,348,900     

  Total Enterprise 10,287,200   15,348,900    71,265,200     96,901,300     

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS

  Sewer Construction

    Capital-Enterprise 560,000           560,000          

    Capital-Developer 7,047,000        7,047,000       

  Park Projects 1,240,000        1,240,000       

  Street Construction 24,865,000      24,865,000     

  Water Construction

    Capital-Enterprise 1,780,000        1,780,000       

    Capital-Developer 5,246,000        5,246,000       

  Housing & Community Development 7,060,000        7,060,000       

  Community Sanitation Construction 1,000,000        1,000,000       

  General Government Facilities 208,000           208,000          

  Total Capital Improvement 49,006,000      49,006,000     

Citywide Grand Totals 560,700$ 1,123,200$ 9,517,000$ 70,203,200$ 3,982,100$ 15,348,900$  54,524,000$ 24,040,600$ 102,448,100$ 49,006,000$    330,753,800$ 

Clovis Successor Agency Grand Total 1,362,000$ 

EXHIBIT A

218

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Unit 2

CITY OF CLOVIS
CFFA Monthly Salary Schedule - Effective July 1, 2023

Revised 04/27/23

3% Wage Increase

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5
2125 Firefighter   (Base) 100 7,097 7,452 7,825 8,216 8,627
2150 Firefighter  (2.5%) Ed Incent 7,274 7,638 8,021 8,421 8,843

MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree CDH 1120 177.00 186.00 196.00 205.00 216.00
PP 88.50 93.00 98.00 102.50 108.00

2175 Firefighter (5.0%) Ed Incent 7,456 7,829 8,222 8,632 9,064
MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree  AND CDH 1121 359.00 377.00 397.00 416.00 437.00

BS or BA Degree PP 179.50 188.50 198.50 208.00 218.50

2225 Fire Engineer   (Base) 200 7,860 8,253 8,666 9,099 9,554
2250 Fire Engineer  (2.5%) Ed In 8,057 8,459 8,883 9,326 9,793

MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree CDH 1120 197.00 206.00 217.00 227.00 239.00
PP 98.50 103.00 108.50 113.50 119.50

2275 Fire Engineer (5.0%) Educ Inc 8,258 8,670 9,105 9,559 10,038
MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree  AND CDH 1121 398.00 417.00 439.00 460.00 484.00

BS or BA Degree PP 199.00 208.50 219.50 230.00 242.00

2325 Fire Captain   (Base) 300 9,175 9,634 10,116 10,622 11,153
2350 Fire Captain  (2.5%) Educ Inc 9,404 9,875 10,369 10,888 11,432

MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree CDH 1120 229.00 241.00 253.00 266.00 279.00
PP 114.50 120.50 126.50 133.00 139.50

2375 Fire Captain (5.0%) Ed Inc 9,639 10,122 10,628 11,160 11,718
MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree  AND CDH 1121 464.00 488.00 512.00 538.00 565.00

BS or BA Degree PP 232.00 244.00 256.00 269.00 282.50

2200 Prevention Captain (Base) 350 9,864 10,357 10,875 11,419 11,990
2210 Prevention Captain 2.5% Ed In 10,111 10,616 11,147 11,704 12,290

MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree CDH 1120 247.00 259.00 272.00 285.00 300.00
PP 123.50 129.50 136.00 142.50 150.00

2220 Prevention Captain 5.0% Educ 10,364 10,881 11,426 11,997 12,597
MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree  AND CDH 1121 500.00 524.00 551.00 578.00 607.00

BS or BA Degree PP 250.00 262.00 275.50 289.00 303.50

2800 Training Captain   (Base) 350 9,864 10,357 10,875 11,419 11,990
2810 Training Captain  (2.5%) 10,111 10,616 11,147 11,704 12,290

MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree CDH 1120 247.00 259.00 272.00 285.00 300.00
PP 123.50 129.50 136.00 142.50 150.00

2820 Training Captain (5.0%) 10,364 10,881 11,426 11,997 12,597
MOU 30.2 AA or AS Degree  AND CDH 1121 500.00 524.00 551.00 578.00 607.00

BS or BA Degree PP 250.00 262.00 275.50 289.00 303.50

Prevention Captain and Training Captain positions are filled by Fire Captains

City Pub:\matrix\CFFA Matrix 07.01.23\2023-07-01 Monthly 9:29 AM 5/25/2023

Exhibit B

219

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Police - Unit 4

CITY OF CLOVIS

CPOA - Monthly Salary Schedule - Effective July 1, 2023
             Revised 04/26/23

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5
4025 Police Officer (Trainee) 100 4,411 4,632 4,864 5,107 5,362
4050 Police Officer (Recruit) 250 6,686 7,020 7,371 7,740 8,127

4125 Police Officer   (Base) 300 8,027 8,428 8,849 9,291 9,756
4175 Police Officer (5.0%) Ed Inc 8,428 8,849 9,291 9,756 10,244

AP or AA-AS&IP or BA-BS *CDH 1121 401.00 421.00 442.00 465.00 488.00
**PP 200.50 210.50 221.00 232.50 244.00

4180 Police Officer (9.0%) Ed Inc 8,749 9,187 9,645 10,127 10,634
BA/BS&AP *CDH 1122 722.00 759.00 796.00 836.00 878.00

**PP 361.00 379.50 398.00 418.00 439.00

4225 Police Corporal   (Base) 350 9,015 9,466 9,939 10,436 10,958
4275 Police Corporal (5.0%) Ed Inc 9,466 9,939 10,436 10,958 11,506

AP or AA-AS&IP or BA-BS *CDH 1121 451.00 473.00 497.00 522.00 548.00
**PP 225.50 236.50 248.50 261.00 274.00

4280 Police Corporal (9.0%) Ed Inc 9,826 10,318 10,834 11,375 11,944
BA/BS&AP *CDH 1122 811.00 852.00 895.00 939.00 986.00

**PP 405.50 426.00 447.50 469.50 493.00

4325 Police Sergeant   (Base) 400 10,112 10,618 11,149 11,706 12,291
4375 Police Sergeant (5.0%) Ed Inc 10,618 11,149 11,706 12,291 12,906

AP or AA-AS&IP or BA-BS *CDH 1121 506.00 531.00 557.00 585.00 615.00
**PP 253.00 265.50 278.50 292.50 307.50

4380 Police Sergeant (9.0%) Ed Inc 11,022 11,574 12,152 12,760 13,397
BA/BS&AP *CDH 1122 910.00 956.00 1,003.00 1,054.00 1,106.00

**PP 455.00 478.00 501.50 527.00 553.00

* These Codes are for internal use only
** This line shows the per period amount of the incentive

 3% Wage Increase  

City Pub:\matrix\CPOA Matrix 07.01.23\2023-07-01 Monthly 5/25/2023 10:16 AM
220

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Unit 1

CITY OF CLOVIS
CPWEA - Monthly Salary Schedule - Effective July 1, 2023

Revised 05/09/23

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5

1040 Assistant Building Technician 600 5,803 6,093 6,398 6,718 7,054

1080 Asst Water Systems Technician 670 5,920 6,216 6,527 6,853 7,196

1130 Building Maintenance Leadworker 800 6,507 6,832 7,174 7,533 7,910

1140 Building Maintenance Worker 300 4,880 5,124 5,380 5,649 5,931

1160 Disposal Leadworker 800 6,507 6,832 7,174 7,533 7,910

1175 Electrician 900 6,955 7,303 7,668 8,051 8,454

1200 Equipment Mechanic 650 5,901 6,196 6,506 6,831 7,173

1240 Equipment Mechanic Assistant 450 5,491 5,766 6,054 6,357 6,675

1280 Equipment Operator 700 6,092 6,397 6,717 7,053 7,406

1320 Equipment Service Worker 300 4,880 5,124 5,380 5,649 5,931

1360 Fleet Maintenance Leadworker 800 6,507 6,832 7,174 7,533 7,910

1370 Fleet Maintenance Service Writer 350 5,140 5,397 5,667 5,950 6,248

1400 Landfill Leadworker 800 6,507 6,832 7,174 7,533 7,910

1440 Maintenance Leadworker 800 6,507 6,832 7,174 7,533 7,910

1480 Maintenance Worker 150 4,335 4,552 4,780 5,019 5,270

1520 Meter Reader 200 4,900 5,145 5,402 5,672 5,956

1560 Parks Maintenance Leadworker 800 6,507 6,832 7,174 7,533 7,910

1600 Parks Sr. Maintenance Worker 400 5,480 5,754 6,042 6,344 6,661

1640 Parts Clerk 350 5,140 5,397 5,667 5,950 6,248

1650 * Parts Runner 100 3,628 3,809 3,999 4,199 4,409

1680 Sanitation Operator 250 4,833 5,075 5,329 5,595 5,875

1720 Senior Maintenance Worker 400 5,480 5,754 6,042 6,344 6,661

1760 Senior Sanitation Operator 550 5,637 5,919 6,215 6,526 6,852

1800 Street Sweeper Operator 500 5,581 5,860 6,153 6,461 6,784

1820 Utility Worker 100 3,628 3,809 3,999 4,199 4,409

1840 Water Systems Technician 850 7,091 7,446 7,818 8,209 8,619

1860 Water Treatment Plant Operator 850 7,091 7,446 7,818 8,209 8,619
* New Position

3% Wage Increase (Includes Pending Resolution for Parts Runner)

Draft Copy\CPWEA Matrix 07.01.23\2023-07-01 Monthly 9:42 AM 5/25/2023
221

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Unit 5CITY OF CLOVIS
CEA - Monthly Salary Schedule - Effective July 1, 2023

Revised  04/25/23

3% Wage Increase

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5

5060 Administrative Assistant 490 5,595 5,875 6,169 6,477 6,801

5375 Custodian 090 3,775 3,964 4,162 4,370 4,589

5795 Principal Account Clerk 340 4,650 4,883 5,127 5,383 5,652

5805 Principal Office Assistant 340 4,650 4,883 5,127 5,383 5,652

5826 Recreation Leader 180 3,847 4,039 4,241 4,453 4,676

5830 Recreation Specialist 310 4,556 4,784 5,023 5,274 5,538

5840 Sr Center Nutrition Services Worker 180 3,847 4,039 4,241 4,453 4,676

5930 Senior Custodian 110 4,253 4,466 4,689 4,923 5,169

5860 Staff Analyst 200 5,315 5,581 5,860 6,153 6,461

City Pub:\matrix\CEA Matrix 07.01.23\2023-07-01 Monthly 9:40 AM 5/25/2023
222

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Unit 13CITY OF CLOVIS
CPSEA - Monthly Salary Schedule - Effective July 1, 2023

Revised 04/26/23

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5

5076 Animal Control Officer 460 5,346 5,613 5,894 6,189 6,498

5081 Animal Services Aide 090 3,663 3,846 4,038 4,240 4,452

5301 Community Service Officer 460 5,346 5,613 5,894 6,189 6,498

5356 Crime Specialist 600 6,639 6,971 7,320 7,686 8,070

5481 Digital Forensic Analyst 760 7,777 8,166 8,574 9,003 9,453

5554 Fire & Life Safety Specialist 760 7,777 8,166 8,574 9,003 9,453

5635 Fire Inspector I 550 6,053 6,356 6,674 7,008 7,358

5636 Fire Inspector II 560 6,511 6,837 7,179 7,538 7,915

5664 Lead Public Safety Dispatcher 565 6,289 6,603 6,933 7,280 7,644

5786 Police Service Officer 450 5,612 5,893 6,188 6,497 6,822

5809 Property and Evidence Technician 350 5,161 5,419 5,690 5,975 6,274

5820 Public Safety Dispatcher 450 5,612 5,893 6,188 6,497 6,822

5875 Senior Animal Control Officer 430 5,459 5,732 6,019 6,320 6,636

5976 Senior Property/Evidence Technician 440 5,651 5,934 6,231 6,543 6,870

5979 Senior Systems Video Analyst 600 6,639 6,971 7,320 7,686 8,070

5981 Systems Video Technician 390 4,859 5,102 5,357 5,625 5,906

 3% Wage Increase

City Pub:\matrix\CPSEA Matrix 07.01.23\2023-07-01 Monthly 5/25/2023
223

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Unit 12CITY OF CLOVIS
CPTA - Monthly Salary Schedule - Effective July 1, 2023

Revised 05/09/23

3% Wage Increase (Includes Pending Resolution for Traffic Signal Operations Specialist)  

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5
5126 Assistant Planner 570 6,471 6,795 7,135 7,492 7,867

5151 Associate Planner 650 7,309 7,674 8,058 8,461 8,884

5176 Building Inspector 610 6,533 6,860 7,203 7,563 7,941

5161 Business Workflow Analyst 760 7,777 8,166 8,574 9,003 9,453

5162 Business Workflow Specialist 555 5,904 6,199 6,509 6,834 7,176

5228 City Surveyor 620 9,350 9,818 10,309 10,824 11,365

5230 Civil Engineer 660 9,607 10,087 10,591 11,121 11,677

5627 Engineer I 640 7,384 7,753 8,141 8,548 8,975

5105 Engineer II 750 8,141 8,548 8,975 9,424 9,895

5526 Engineering Inspector 590 6,509 6,834 7,176 7,535 7,912

5551 Engineering Technician 450 5,328 5,594 5,874 6,168 6,476

5561 Geographic Info Sys Analyst 630 7,078 7,432 7,804 8,194 8,604

5564 Geographic Info Sys Specialist 555 5,904 6,199 6,509 6,834 7,176

5566 Geographic Info Sys Technician 390 4,859 5,102 5,357 5,625 5,906

5576 Housing Program Coordinator 780 7,981 8,380 8,799 9,239 9,701

5681 Permit Technician 355 5,181 5,440 5,712 5,998 6,298

5726 Planning Technician I 370 4,857 5,100 5,355 5,623 5,904

5751 Planning Technician II 530 5,535 5,812 6,103 6,408 6,728

5776 Plans Examiner 590 6,509 6,834 7,176 7,535 7,912

5901 Senior Building Inspector 690 7,522 7,898 8,293 8,708 9,143

5936 Senior Engineering Inspector 670 7,375 7,744 8,131 8,538 8,965

5951 Senior Engineering Technician 560 6,021 6,322 6,638 6,970 7,319

5955 * Traffic Signal Operations Specialist 610 6,533 6,860 7,203 7,563 7,941
* New Position

Draft Copy\CPTA Matrix 07.01.23\2023-7-01 Monthly 5/25/2023
224

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Unit 14CITY OF CLOVIS
CTFP - Monthly Salary Schedule - Effective July 1, 2023

Revised 04/25/23

3% Wage Increase

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5
5027 Accountant 710 7,421 7,792 8,182 8,591 9,021

5580 Finance Business Systems Analyst 760 8,769 9,207 9,667 10,150 10,658

5592 Information Technology Analyst 630 7,070 7,424 7,795 8,185 8,594

5593 Info Technology Cybersecurity Analyst 760 8,769 9,207 9,667 10,150 10,658

5594 Information Technology Specialist 555 5,904 6,199 6,509 6,834 7,176

5597 Information Technology Technician 390 5,049 5,301 5,566 5,844 6,136

5847 Senior Accountant 770 7,792 8,182 8,591 9,021 9,472

5857 Senior Accounting Systems Technician 560 6,021 6,322 6,638 6,970 7,319

5962   Senior Information Technology Analyst 760 8,769 9,207 9,667 10,150 10,658

5963   Senior Information Technology Specialist 720 6,519 6,845 7,187 7,546 7,923

City Pub:\matrix\CTFP Matrix 07.01.23\2023-07-01 Monthly 5/25/2023
225

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Unit 11CITY OF CLOVIS
TEBU - Monthly Salary Schedule - Effective July 1, 2023

Revised 04/26/23

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5
5201 Bus Driver 150 4,290 4,505 4,730 4,967 5,215

5661 Lead Bus Driver 190 5,149 5,406 5,676 5,960 6,258

5986 Transit Dispatcher 250 4,712 4,948 5,195 5,455 5,728

3% Wage Increase

City Pub:\matrix\TEBU Matrix 07.01.23\2023-07-01 Monthly 5/25/2023
226

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Unit 6CITY OF CLOVIS
MANAGEMENT (MSC) - Monthly Salary Schedule  - Effective July 1, 2023

Revised 05/09/23

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5
6010 Accounting Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6020 = Assistant City Manager 820 15,784 16,573 17,402 18,272 19,186
6100 Assist. Dir. Of Planning and Develop. 670 12,757 13,395 14,065 14,768 15,506
6050 Assistant Finance Director 640 12,389 13,008 13,658 14,341 15,058
6670 Assistant Public Utilities Director 670 12,757 13,395 14,065 14,768 15,506
6365 Battalion Chief 610 12,065 12,668 13,301 13,966 14,664
6150 Building Official 520 11,358 11,926 12,522 13,148 13,805
6220 Business Development Manager 290 9,907 10,402 10,922 11,468 12,041
6025 City Clerk 200 8,443 8,865 9,308 9,773 10,262
6120 City Engineer 670 12,757 13,395 14,065 14,768 15,506
6160 = City Manager 899 20,719 21,755 22,843 23,985 25,184
6780 City Planner 520 11,358 11,926 12,522 13,148 13,805
6170 Communications and Marketing Analyst 195 7,942 8,339 8,756 9,194 9,654
6180 Communications Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6225 Construction Manager 250 9,286 9,750 10,238 10,750 11,288
6228 Crime Analysis Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6145 Deputy Building Official/Plan Checker 385 9,815 10,306 10,821 11,362 11,930
6125 * Deputy City Engineer 620 12,149 12,756 13,394 14,064 14,767
6430 Deputy City Manager 850 12,146 12,753 13,391 14,061 14,764
6230 Deputy City Planner 400 10,152 10,660 11,193 11,753 12,341
6434 Deputy Director of Info Technology 470 11,184 11,743 12,330 12,947 13,594
6238 * Deputy General Services Director 580 11,851 12,444 13,066 13,719 14,405
6240 Deputy Finance Director 580 11,851 12,444 13,066 13,719 14,405
6368 Deputy Fire Chief 680 13,276 13,940 14,637 15,369 16,137
6580 Deputy Police Chief 650 14,123 14,829 15,570 16,349 17,166
6540 = Director of Planning & Development Serv 720 14,804 15,544 16,321 17,137 17,994
6270 = Economic Develop, Housing & Communic  700 14,100 14,805 15,545 16,322 17,138
6255 Engineering Program Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6251 Executive Assistant 110 6,157 6,465 6,788 7,127 7,483
6235 Facilities Maint & Purchasing Manager 385 9,815 10,306 10,821 11,362 11,930
6280 Facilities Maintenance Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6330 = Finance Director 720 14,804 15,544 16,321 17,137 17,994
6340 * Finance Manager 460 10,954 11,502 12,077 12,681 13,315
6350 * Fire Administrator 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6385 = Fire Chief 730 15,554 16,332 17,149 18,006 18,906
6395 Fleet Manager 250 9,286 9,750 10,238 10,750 11,288
6410 = General Services Director 720 14,804 15,544 16,321 17,137 17,994
6411 General Services Manager 460 10,954 11,502 12,077 12,681 13,315
6414 * Housing Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6438 Information Technology Supervisor 230 9,898 10,393 10,913 11,459 12,032
6442 Landfill Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6420 Management Analyst 190 7,709 8,094 8,499 8,924 9,370
6445 Parks Manager 250 9,286 9,750 10,238 10,750 11,288
6470 Personnel/Risk Manager 550 11,395 11,965 12,563 13,191 13,851
6480 Personnel Technician 100 6,036 6,338 6,655 6,988 7,337
6520 Plan/Develop Administrative Manager 270 9,379 9,848 10,340 10,857 11,400
6570 Police Captain 690 13,818 14,509 15,234 15,996 16,796
6600 = Police Chief 830 16,283 17,097 17,952 18,850 19,793
6630 Police Lieutenant 625 12,491 13,116 13,772 14,461 15,184
6645 Police Services Manager 480 11,077 11,631 12,213 12,824 13,465
6643 Principal Utilities Engineer 620 12,149 12,756 13,394 14,064 14,767

* New Position  /  = Executive Management

3% Wage Increase (Includes Adding Finance Manager AND Pending Resolutions for Deputy City Engineer, Deputy General Services Director, Fire 
Administrator, Housing Supervisor and Transit Manager) 

Draft Copy\MSC Matrix 07.01.232023-07-01 Monthly 3:30 PM 5/25/2023

227

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Unit 6CITY OF CLOVIS
MANAGEMENT (MSC) - Monthly Salary Schedule  - Effective July 1, 2023

Revised 05/09/23

Code Position Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5

3% Wage Increase (Includes Adding Finance Manager AND Pending Resolutions for Deputy City Engineer, Deputy General Services Director, Fire 
Administrator, Housing Supervisor and Transit Manager) 

6650 Property & Evidence Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6675 Public Information Officer 195 7,942 8,339 8,756 9,194 9,654
6680 = Public Utilities Director 790 15,784 16,573 17,402 18,272 19,186
6720 Records Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6730 Recreation Coordinator 130 6,406 6,726 7,062 7,415 7,786
6743 Recreation Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6790 Senior Planner 280 9,381 9,850 10,343 10,860 11,403
6835 Solid Waste Manager 275 9,994 10,494 11,019 11,570 12,149
6825 Special Projects and Life Safety Mgr 420 11,001 11,551 12,129 12,735 13,372
6845 Street Maintenance Manager 250 9,286 9,750 10,238 10,750 11,288
6095 Supervising Civil Engineer 370 10,726 11,262 11,825 12,416 13,037
6850 Supervisor of Animal Services 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6875 * Transit Manager 275 9,994 10,494 11,019 11,570 12,149
6885 Transit Supervisor 220 8,517 8,943 9,390 9,860 10,353
6895 Utilities Manager 265 10,684 11,218 11,779 12,368 12,986
6950 Water Production Manager 260 10,002 10,502 11,027 11,578 12,157

* New Position  /  = Executive Management

Draft Copy\MSC Matrix 07.01.232023-07-01 Monthly 3:30 PM 5/25/2023

228

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



EXHIBIT C 
 
 

Clovis Sewer Monthly Charges 
 
 

Residential Rates 7/1/2023 

SFR per unit $23.46  

MFR & Mobile Home per unit $18.22  

Pretreatment per residential unit $0.06  

Sewer Bond Charge per residential unit $7.30  

Rebate per residential unit ($7.30) 

School Rates  

Elementary school per student $8.74  

Middle school per student $12.88  

High school per student $17.21  

College per student $4.01  

Pretreatment per school connection $3.95  

Commercial Rates  

Low per 1,000 gallons $3.03  

Medium per 1,000 gallons $3.42  

High (markets, convenience, mortuaries) $7.26  

High (bakeries, ice cream, restaurant, hotels) $7.21  

Industrial Rates  

Low - per 1,000 gallons $3.03  

High - per 1,000 gallons $2.439  

High – per lb BOD $0.347  

High - per lb SS $0.374  

Minimum commercial or industrial flow charge per account $18.22  

Pretreatment charge per commercial or industrial unit  

Category I  $27.54  

Category II $4.05  

Category III $1.29  

Sewer Bond Charge per school, commercial or industrial 
connection 

$7.30  

Rebate per school, commercial or industrial connection ($7.30) 

 
 

229

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



Exhibit D 
July 1, 2023 
Residential Curbside Refuse Rates: 
 Basic Service (96-gallon)    $26.44  

Basic Service (48-gallon)   $25.12  
 Additional Service (96-gallon)  $13.22  
  
Residential Recycling Rates:  
 Basic Service (96-gallon)      $4.61  
 Additional Service (96-gallon)    $4.61  
 
Residential Curbside Organics Rates: 
 Basic Service (96-gallon)      $6.76  
 Additional Service (96-gallon)    $6.76  
 
Commercial/Residential Street Sweeping:    $2.86 
   
Commercial Refuse Rates: 
 1-yard commercial bin service: 
 

No. of 
bins: 

Once a  
         week 

Twice a  
week 

Three times 
a week 

Four times a  
week 

Five times a 
week 

Six times a 
week 

1 $74.46 $148.92 $223.38 $297.84 $372.30 $446.76 
2 $148.92 $297.84 $446.76 $595.68 $744.60 $893.52 
3 $223.38 $446.76 $670.14 $893.52 $1,116.90 $1,340.28 
4 $297.84 $595.68 $893.52 $1,191.36 $1,489.20 $1,787.04 
5 $372.30 $744.60 $1,116.90 $1,489.20 $1,861.50 $2,233.80 

  
2-yard commercial bin service: 
 

No. of 
bins: Once a  

week 
Twice a  

week 
Three times 

a week 
Four times a  

week 
Five times a 

week 
Six times a 

week 

1 $130.38 $260.76 $391.14 $521.52 $651.90 $782.28 
2 $260.76 $521.52 $782.28 $1,043.04 $1,303.80 $1,564.56 
3 $391.14 $782.28 $1,173.42 $1,564.56 $1,955.70 $2,346.84 
4 $521.52 $1,043.04 $1,564.56 $2,086.08 $2,607.60 $3,129.12 
5 $651.90 $1,303.80 $1,955.70 $2,607.60 $3,259.50 $3,911.40 

  
 3-yard commercial bin service: 

  
Additional Service (extra bin):  $37.90 
Commercial Can Service:   $37.19    

No. of bins: Once a  
week 

  Twice a  
  week 

Three times 
a week 

Four times 
a  week 

Five times a 
week 

Six times a 
week 

1 $193.49 $386.98 $580.47 $773.96 $967.45 $1,160.94 
2 $386.98 $773.96 $1,160.94 $1,547.92 $1,934.90 $2,321.88 
3 $580.47 $1,160.94 $1,741.41 $2,321.88 $2,902.35 $3,482.82 
4 $773.96 $1,547.92 $2,321.88 $3,095.84 $3,869.80 $4,643.76 
5 $967.45 $1,934.90 $2,902.35 $3,869.80 $4,837.25 $5,804.70 

230

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



 

 
 

EXHIBIT E 
 

Clovis Water Rates Bi-Monthly 

 7/1/2023 7/1/2023 

 Non-drought Drought 

Residential   
Dwelling Unit Charge $26.12  $26.12  

Water Use   

Tier 1 (0-23) ($/kgal) $1.07  $1.27  

Tier 2 (23-40) ($/kgal) $1.78  $2.58  

Tier 3 (40+) ($/kgal) $2.19  $3.27  

   

Tarpey Unmetered (65kgal)-(63kgal) $131.07  $163.20  

Tarpey Large Lot $6.29  $6.29  

Tarpey Excess Use Charges ($/kgal) $2.19  $3.06  

   

Commercial   

1" or smaller $21.02  $21.02  

1 1/2" $27.96  $27.96  

2" $38.62  $38.62  

3" $76.48  $76.48  

4" $192.37  $192.37  

6" $767.32  $767.32  

8" $1,360.19  $1,360.19  

10" $2,130.93  $2,130.93  

   

Commercial Water Use   

Tier 1 (0-23) ($/kgal) $1.07  $1.27  

Tier 2 (23+) ($/kgal) $1.45  $1.72  

   

Recycled Water   

2" $38.62  $38.62  

3" $76.48  $76.48  

4" $192.37  $192.37  

6" $767.32  $767.32  

8" $1,360.19  $1,360.19  

10" $2,130.93  $2,130.93  

   

Recycled Water Use ($/kgal) $0.67  $0.70  

Construction Water $131.07  $163.20  

231

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: June 5, 2023 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Change of Council Meeting Schedule. 

Staff: John Holt, City Manager 

Recommendation: Approve 

ATTACHMENTS: None. 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Councilmembers should consider recusal if a campaign contribution exceeding $250 has been 
received from the project proponent (developer, applicant, agent, and/or participants) since 
January 1, 2023 (Government Code 84308). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve the cancellation of the regular Council meeting scheduled for 
Monday, June 12, 2023. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
There is a need to change the schedule of meeting for the City Council in June. Staff is 
recommending that City Council cancel the meeting of June 12, 2023. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Staff is able to consolidate the agenda items to the first and third meetings in June. Staff is 
recommending that City Council consider canceling the meeting of June 12, 2023. Given 
adequate notice, staff will be able to amend the timing of actions coming forward so that 
operations will not be affected by the cancellations. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Pursuant to the Clovis Municipal Code, the City Council meets in regular session on the first, 
second, and third Monday of each month, except when those Mondays occur on a recognized 

232

AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.



City holiday.  The City Council needs to confirm any change to the schedule of meetings in order 
to properly notice the public of the City Council’s schedule of meetings. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
A revised schedule of meetings will be published in conformance with law. 
 
Prepared by: Rebecca Simonian, Executive Assistant 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager AH 

 

233

AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.


	Top
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.	ADM - Presentation of Proclamation to Chief Binaski 230605
	ADM - John Binaski Retirement 2023

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.	PDS - Mike Harrison Retirement 230605
	ADM - Mike Harrison Retirement 2023

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.	ADM - May 8, 2023 Minutes 230605
	ADM - May 8, 2023 Minutes

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.	ADM - Adopt Ord. 23-03 R2023-003 230605
	ADM - Adopt Ord. 23-03 R2023-003 Willow Corridor Marker

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.	ADM - EDC QTR 3 230605
	ADM - EDC QTR 3 SR
	ADM - EDC QTR 3 ATT 1

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.	ADM - BOOT 3rd Qtr Report 230605
	ADM - BOOT 3rd Qtr Report SR
	ADM - BOOT 3rd Qtr Report ATT 1

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.	ADM - Property Lease 230605
	ADM - Property Lease SR
	ADM - Property Lease ATT 1

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.	ADM - Revenue Polling 230605
	ADM - Revenue Polling SR
	ADM - Revenue Polling ATT 1

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.	FIN - Investment Report February 2023 230605
	FIN - Investment Report February SR
	FIN - Investment Report February ATT 1 Dist of Investments
	FIN - Investment Report February ATT 2 Monthly Inv Trans
	FIN - Investment Report February ATT 3 Cert of Deposit
	FIN - Investment Report February ATT 4 Municipal Securities
	FIN - Investment Report February ATT 5 Treasury Rates

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.	FIN - Treasurer's Report February 2023 230605
	FIN - Treasurer's Report February 2023 SR
	FIN - Treasurer's Report February ATT 1 Cash Balances
	FIN - Treasurer's Report February ATT 2 Inv Activity
	FIN - Treasurer's Report February ATT 3 Orig Maturities

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.	GSD - Claim Rejection Sheth 230605
	GSD - Claim Rejection Sheth SR

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.	PDS - TM 6367 Final Acceptance
	PDS - TM 6367 Final Acceptance SR
	PDS - TM 6367 Final Acceptance ATT 1 Vicinity Map

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.	PDS - CIP 19-11 Bullard Avenue Rehabilitation Bid Award 230605
	PDS - CIP 19-11 Bullard Avenue Rehabilitation Bid Award SR
	PDS - CIP 19-11 Bullard Avenue Rehabilitation Bid Award Att 1 Vicinity Map

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.	PD - MMC Grant and MOU 230605
	PD - MMC Grant and MOU SR
	PD - MMC Grant and MOU ATT 1 Authorization to Execute Res 23-
	PD - MMC Grant and MOU ATT 2 Budget Amendment Res 23-
	PD - MMC Grant and MOU ATT 3 MOU

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.	PUD - C&D Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreements
	PUD - C&D Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreements SR
	PUD - C&D Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreements ATT 1 Approved Hauler List

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.	PD - Sideshow Ordinance
	PD - Sideshow Ordinance SR
	PD - Sideshow Ordinance ATT 1 Ord 23-

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.	PDS - Master Development Fee Update  230605
	PDS - Master Development Fee Update SR
	PDS - Master Development Fee Update ATT 1 Res. 23-___
	PDS - Master Development Fee Update ATT 2 Fee Schedule
	PDS - Master Development Fee Update ATT 3 Fee Comparisons
	PDS - Master Development Fee Update ATT 4 Nexus Sheets

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 18.	FIN - Budget 2023-2024 230605
	FIN - Budget 2023-2024 SR
	FIN - Budget 2023-2024 ATT 1 Res 23-___
	FIN - Budget 2023-2024 Exhibit A 23-24 Budget Resolution with Trust Fund
	FIN - Budget 2023-2024 Exhibit B 23-24 Budget Resolution
	FIN - Budget 2023-2024 Exhibit C 23-24 Budget Resolution
	FIN - Budget 2023-2024 Exhibit D 23-24 Budget Resolution
	FIN - Budget 2023-2024 Exhibit E 23-24 Budget Resolution

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.	ADM - Change in Council Meeting Schedule 230605
	ADM - Change in Council Meeting Schedule SR

	Bottom

